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Cashless spends in limitless ways
TMB Credit Cards

No Joining Fee & Annual Fee
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':} * Platinum Credit Card Titanium Credit éard

pe f’}@( * Eligibility:
3 ’r y Platinum Credit Card
? (4 Minimum Deposit amount - 50,000
) ‘_’,’ Minimum period of deposit - 3 yaars
L1/ A
# Titanium Credit Card
z Annual gross income above #3 Lakhs

Features:

= No lolning fee and annual fee
= Credit limit up to ¥5 Lakhs

= Free Personal Accident Insurance - 75 Lakhs
* EMi repayment facliity available
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Board's Report for the year2016-17

Your Board of Directors has great pleasure in
presenting the Ninety Fifth Annual Report with the
Audited Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2017, the Profit
and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the
yearended March 31,2017.

1. Overall economic review

The global economic activity recovered at a slower
pace than expected during the year 2016-17, which has
impacted the growth of Indian economy and consequent
investment and credit demand. This was constrained by
global financial crisis, Brexit and other challenges faced
during the year. The growth in GDP of India has slowed
downto 7.1% in 2016-17. The average CPl inflation rate
has come down to 3.8% during FY 2016-17 from 4.9% in
FY 2015-16. Going forward, implementation of the
Goods and Service Tax (GST) and the measures taken
in the Union Budget to boost the rural economy,
infrastructure, micro, small and medium enterprises
(MSMEs) and affordable housing will help to improve

the domestic demand.

2. Banking scenario

The performance of the Indian banking sector
remained subdued due to lack of strong credit demand,
increase in stressed assets, low profitablity and
deteriorating capital positions during 2016-17. The
overall credit growth for the financial year 2016-17 was
5.08% as compared to 10.7% in 2015-16. However the
deposits of the banking system witnessed a growth of
11.75% during 2016-17 as compared to 9.72% of the
last financial year. The growth in deposits was mainly on
account of surge in funds due to demonetization of
Specified Bank Notes in November 2016. RBI has cut
repo rates by 50 bps points between April 2016 and
March 2017. RBI has kept rates unchanged since
October2016 at6.25%.

Bwis@misefer Sinsens 2016-17

2 _mseaT eumBuler SWEGBHT &P,
QB MetoTetnMOM EHSMeUG, CUBLMHIT OINflHemalL|L 60T,
seoofiéGems — GFwwiurLL  31-03-2017 Sleotm)
WPREUEMLES 6UBLSSDETEOT &eonl el &H600TEHE
OMILD UeTOILILLDES SiflEems SpBLDenD 2 _RIS6T
Wpedr FMLINILLSED QLITHLLBLDEFS] SlemLBmMTse6T.

1. [BL.IP60T GILIMARHEMMTSHITT 66D LDM|ShII6) :

2_eaLIELNBEMSTT HLeUHens 2016-
17 &b SheoorB  THTUMTHHMHENL  (&6DMEUTEDT
WpetGerhmd SmHss. 5 SHSHW aUNIHETTSTISSe0T
aueTTEAUIemeT LTSSSSILET. (PHEOG LDOMID &HL6dT
Coemeujld  uUNSsHHH. SF 2 _eosemmell  [BH
OBmesRUIsd  HSLEUUGSSUIULG — Upssl  bmmib
seuneLsemen s Shevoreedt GuUNEl. &LHSSH. 2016-17
ShLD S}6v0TIEED AIDNES 2 6THILB 2 DUSS. ShHimesd
7.1% 5560850 GHOOHEHFH. 2015-16 Shld Shevoriged
4.9% &eNBsWLD, 2016-17 &Shb Spevor®, 3.8
speldswd. MBay mSTGamT  efewed  GOUILG
uetoTelise eNBHLD, GHEOMHS 2_6Tengl. HBEUOTI FIHE
wonib  Geeweu  eufl  HeOLPeHOLILGSSICUSEILD,
SUmbLUyD  QUTRETTSTT  eos@GeflluBed,  &leo
BemL(pemmEeneT  aTBHE @ umEDS.  Goayb,
2 _emalLemly, fAn@&mn. &onsfl BnieleTmisemenb,
orgGellsEEng. 2 6MBMLG Coeneuenwt SiFsfss
2_gefluins, FNHSLNET 6liEaem6T gHUGSHS eUbBSEDS!.

2. eumIBsGIemmuieor emeD :

2016-17-8plb ShevoT(B 6UAI6EUTE0T &L 60T
Cpemen  BedeOMOEILD OFTHFHEHeMEOT  HILD
GSODHSHTAILD GSeODHS SeOmuLd LHMID LPSHEDL 6T
Bemeo  GLOMFLDEMLOUSTAID, SHBW  6uRS  HlewD
DMILIQU|LD [BeMED GeWEOBEME. OLDNSHS HL6OT EU6MTES
2015-16 &b  SheooiG 10.7%  55NBHHSIL 60T,
QUIGemsWId 2016-17 Shd ettt 5.08% FHNBHLD.
BLBS Shevoi(B eWEULILSHOSHTemE 9.72% 2 L6oT
QUL Gemswisd 2016-17 Shd ShevorB 1.75% F56M88LD
2_wimeflemeor &evorLgl. 2016 meubum LiesorgUilLpLiifeor
SJEU0TLDNG  &HEUUIHGHEND SlfHd  L6woTDd  6meLiL
MEUGHLILLLE. glged 201660@mHa g 2017
8sndemL UL sMesHed LT Mamel eurkid 50 Leierfl
apuGun eNB55BemeT GHMDSHSH. LUMIS [farmel eurnsd
SsGLnum 2016 dlpHas 6.25 NEss5H6e0 ehsHels
LDAMMPLD QFILILIEN606mED.
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3. Business Performance

The Bank had a successful year in its 95th year of
operations and recorded satisfactory performance.
During the year under review, the total business
increased from ¥ 52,946.58 crore to ¥ 54,162.47 crore
registering a growth of 2.30%. The gross NPAs and net
NPAs both in absolute terms and as a percentage of
total advances marginally increased over the previous
year.

Performance Highlights:

= Net profitdecreased from ¥ 402.16 crore to
%316.66 crore (-21.26%).

= Deposits of the Bank increased from % 30,368.87
croreto ¥32,190.15 crore (+6.00%) during the
year.

= Advances decreased from322,577.71 croreto X
21,972.32 crore (-2.68%) during the year.

= Gross NPAs increased from 1.84% t02.91%.

= NetNPAs increased from 0.89% to 1.74%.

The total income increased by % 240.80 crore

during the year from 3,570.67 crore in the previous

year to %3,811.47 crore during the year under review

representing 6.74% growth.

Interest income rose by %128.79 crore from
%3,252.17 crore to %3,380.96 crore. Other income
increased by ¥112.00 croreto ¥430.51 crore during the
current year. The increase in total expenditure was at
%90.60 crore. The total expenditure rose from 32,845.12
crore during the previous year to 32,935.72 crore
during the current year. Earnings per share decreased
from ¥281to 322.

4. Profitand appropriation

The net profit stood at ¥316.66 crore after making
all necessary provisions under various categories as
per the prudential norms prescribed by Reserve Bank of
India. After adding thereto the surplus of %2.71crore
brought forward from the year 2015-16, there was an
available balance of 3319.37crore, which has been

appropriated as under:

3. euklfuiedr eletollss FUIEDEMEDT :

DG euUmIBUI6T 95-6ugl 6UIBHLLDTEDT
Seleunecoor® OlewerHHHZOMHEeMQLD  Eflw
CFWIODBDEDIL 60T OFWIOLILLHM6D [HLDG EURIBEHES 6D
GUHMIBTLDTEIT ShevoTLTE SlemLDibFl6TeNgl. &eieunsvor®
aumiBuledr QLISHs  euetdfiisld I52,946.58
Comouiedlphgl I54.162.44 Gamuns 2 WIMHE
2.30% &5eNdBsLD euenTEs] Hevor(Benengl eurlBuieor
GLDNM5S &LE0THEMED CIDMSS LDOMILD B&ET eUTTEHEL0TSH6IT
OMILD SiGedT FHMNBHLD LS 6UBLH™S el DG
2 _WINThGI6Tengl.

QFWIeOLIML1960T HAMLIL] SILDSRIGET :

= Baegeomud I 402.16 Gameuiedmnbal. I 316.66
Camowins GewmhgleTeng (-21.26%)

= eurBlBufetr emeulifd I30,368.87 Gampuied
8mihgl I32.190.15 Gamewins 2 wWiikHss (6.00%)

= 6URIE  GUPRIBW  BLETBET  22,577.71
CGampuied SamHH 21.972.32  Csmpwns
GemmbgleTengl (-2.68%)

= OwNSs euInasLeT 1.84 5655560 EH
2.91% &HEIHLNG 2 _WIMHSSI.

= Bey  eugnasLeT 0.89%  &&6lss5H0lmHE!

1.74% &86iL0ns 2 _WIhss.

6URISUI6OT GILDMGS 6UAHLDMEDILD I240.80 Gamp
Olfsond  &LHES UL  6UIHLDMEUIDNeT 3570.67
Gameuiedlpihg I381.07 Cameuwins SiPsflss 6.74%
FHEIBHLD 6U6TTES BEOOTBET6NE).

6uURe  eugpeumil 3128.79 Gamp Sifsfsg
WPhemsW  Spevorigedt  I3252.17 Gampuiedldphbal
13380.96 Gamgsd 2 WhHgeTeng. ST 6UBLDTeILD
12 Gamp oifsflsgs I430.51 Gamewns
o WIbgleTengl. eurIBuled GLDMSS QFee|seT I90.60
Gy &IPHM555. 6LDTHS 61FEYHET HLHS 6UIBL
eFeoeuneor  12845.12  Gameuiedlphs  SeleudpLLd
32935.75 CGamewine o WIAHSI6TeNg.  66l66UNdhH
UBIEHGLD FrLigul Seomud I28 edlpHE 22 s
&EODHSIETENSI-

4. 8edMLLPLD &IHHBHETBLD :

Seleunevor® unpy  Merel  eurBlSudedr
QUEDIWEDNES S6roimIs GHEMEULITET  6FIHSBEHEN6IT
ueb@eumy Wfleyselieor &b &S DTy 2 MRiG6T 6urRS
3316.66 Gamg FrLIQU|6TENE. Q1FOTD Shevor® 2015-1660T
8eonugPent emswidpliumeo I2.71 Gameenwiu|b Carsg
awngsLd 2 eten I319.37 Gamyp SLpsevorLeumm| LSTey
QFILILILILIL (BETNT .
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Transferred to: Zin crore BHIESBHET : % Gampuded
Statutory Reserve 95.00 sLLITO Q5680 95.00
Special Reserve U/s 36(1)(viii) of IT Act, 1961 27.00 fiplly 95666 auplonen aifiésrLi 1961, We36() (vier & 27.00
Investment Reserve 0.03 Wws6 5686 0.03
Capital Reserve 19.21 LPEOBETT QEFIHSEB 19.21
Interim Dividend paid (Rs.2.00 per share) 28.50 BeLsame Smnu LEEG 0616558 (52 QB LEEHE) 28.50
Tax on Interim Dividend @ 20.357647% 5.80 BewLsame0 Seomu LMEG eufl 20.357647% 5.80
Transfer to General Reserve 120.00 OUME QHSSLIRDEG LOMHDULLLE 120.00
Balance carried over to next year 23.83 SBEs NG OBNNE AFOILGL LSS OBTems 23.83
Total 319.37 QLTSS 319.37

5. Dividend 5.8e0mul URISEH :

Considering the profit earned and the overall growth
in the business of your Bank during the year, your Board
of Directors was pleased to declare a second interim
dividend of 12%, on the post bonus issue share capital,
on June 14, 2017 payable to all the members as on the
record date of June 23, 2017.Considering the first
interim dividend of 20% on the post bonus issue share
capital, paid during the month of January, 2017 the total
dividend for the year 2016-17 comes to 32%, i.e. ¥3.20
per equity share of ¥ 10 each) involving an outgo of
¥54.88 crore (including dividend distribution tax)

towards dividend to the shareholders.

6. Capitaland reserves

The Capital and Reserves of your Bank stand
increased to ¥ 3,224.04 crore from the previous year's
level of ¥2,941.68 crore, showing an increase of 9.60%

after effecting the above mentioned appropriations.

Sec 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 provides
for deduction in respect of any Special Reserve created
and maintained to the extent of 20% of the profit derived
from the business of providing long term finance for
industrial or agricultural development or development of
infrastructure facility or housing in India. Accordingly,
the Bank has created a Special Reserve of 27.00
crore during the year to avail of the tax benefit under the
Sec 36(1)(viii) of the Income TaxAct, 1961.

2 _MIS6T SWSHGSHTH6T 2 MRIS6T 6UMRIS FFLIRU|6T6T
Seorudb  OMID QLGBAWNSS  eueniFulemeors
BHHSD 6&Me0oTB 2017 £3°%01 23 Sledtn)] 2_MILILfeoTyns
2 _atem  OleMETEUBSGD UMIEG  LPOSHOTHH6D
8revoiLneug SevLsEmed Seonul  URBSLIE  12%
Sinledlinded EPsFHLIeHLBDMTHET (LpHeoND el
UMBIELTS UMBIS CcPeosesded 6sndss GLmeren
URIGSET  eupmdBwiier, 20 &FssHEmHWLD
BEOUTEHEBBSHSTED OLNHHD 32 FHEIHLD SBMeus Qb
URIBHG T 3.20 eonull URIELNS euULPRISLILLB6T6TS.
85601  cpeOld GG  seeunerd  (54.88

@eonmuliumaid® eurfl 2 1 uL) Gameuwin@Lb.

6. CLPELSEDILD LDMMILD &HIHSBSET

2 _MIG6T  euRBUI6T  LPEDSHEOTLD  LDMMILD
Q5I6SGsH6T LGN Q&HIEEBHmENLLD Q&S LeTeorT
WhensWw  Shevorigedt  [Bemeowimeor  I2941.68
Cameuiedlpihg I 3224.04 Gamowins 2 wiihg 9.60

FBEIBLD eUETTEAWEDLHSIETENS.

eugponeoteufly &L 1961 9fley 31() (viii)eor L
asmpbled, efeusmuSifeNpss. SllLemL &L LemLDLIL
6usd LOHMID 6F &LLEMLILBEHEE STGHS HevorL
&nend sLeT Lbgner Seonusded 20 &seligd HApLiy
R@&sELTe  aFsLWILLBETeTgl. SIGETUR  6)HLDTE0T
arflésens auneusnens I 27 Camp Avly eHIsSE0

QFILIWLILILIL (BETN .
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7. Capital adequacy

The accretion to capital funds during the year
amounted to ¥282.36 crore which raised the net worth
of the Bank to % 3,224.04 crore. The Capital to Risk
Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) stood at 13.27% (as per
Basel lll) as on March 31, 2017, which is more than the
minimum required level of 9% stipulated by Reserve
Bank of India.

8. Deposits

The aggregate Deposits of the Bank as on
31.03.2017 stands at ¥32,190.15 Crores, registering a
growth of 6.00% over the level of ¥30,368.87 Crores as
on 31.03.2016. The interest rates for deposits were kept
aligned with the prevailing trends in the Banking
Industry.

9.Advances portfolio management of assets and
development of business

The Bank continued its lending activities in
conformity with the policies and guidelines of Reserve
Bank of India. The Gross Advances of your Bank has
declined marginally during 2016-17 and stood at Rs.
22,262.49 crore as on 31.03.2017, against
Rs.22,821.32 crore achieved as on 31.03.2016. The
sluggishness is due to overall deceleration prevalence
in the economy and the concave credit traction due to
surplus liquidity, a causative factor of demonetization in
our country.

The Bank continued its thrust on lending to priority
sectors including Agriculture and Micro and Small
Enterprises comprising both manufacturing and service
enterprises. The level of advances to priority sectors
stood at 12960.75 crore as on March 31, 2017, which
constituted 58.87% of the quarterly average Adjusted
Net Bank Credit (ANBC), as against the regulatory
minimum requirement of 40%.

Agricultural Advances reached ¥4182.91 crore as
on March 31, 2017, which constituted 19.91% of
quarterly average ANBC, as against the regulatory
minimum requirement of 18%.

Total advances to the weaker sections stood at
%3095.53 crore as on March 31, 2017, which
represented 13.38 % of the quarterly average Adjusted
Net Bank Credit, as against the regulatory minimum
requirement of 10%.

Your bank also achieved the stipulated mandatory
targets for the sub-sectors like Loans to Small and

7.cLDED&HE0T 560T6016mMEY

6uRIBuUTNeoT cLpeosenT B Slemey I 282.36 Gaip
SFefgsdemme eumBuienr Bey wHIY I 3224.04
Gampwns 2 wnpgerengd. BASEL [lluig
PEOSOHENGD BLIT  &HS 61&FNSHSISHSEIHEELDTE0T
efldsd 31-03-2017 Siedim| 13.27% & ungs Merel
eURISUIeed  UEDIWMNIGELILL BTN  GewDHS LLEF
SleTeUNEDT O FBHEIBHHIHBGSLD SIBSBLONELD.

8. emeaulil Bd euensd :

aumiBuierr emeulBs &LBS ShevorG 2016
g 31 Gssy  Beweownmeor I30.368.87
Gamouedlmha! 2017 wnms g 3 Csd
¥32,190.15 Gsmawns o wiphg 6.00 &seigbd
eUeMTEFIIEmLIBGI6ToNE. 6meulil| BHHE 6ULPRISLILIBLD
ally eldsb emds geopuled Beoeyd el
5580 & Barmer SleneflGeoGL eneusSLILLIHHSS-

9. aumISuiedr HL60T GULDRIGHED Hl6MM :

umgs rflemel  eurRIBUNedT  EUEMTIIEDDSHEIHHS
2 I'U(B DG 6URIE &HL60T GULDHBIGEUHED OSMLITHS
FOULG eubBTngl. euRSuled SlefGSLLLL CILDTSHSE
SL6E0T QHMemsIITeTgEl 2016 LMTs 31 Sledim) SlewLibBS
322,821.32 Gsmpuied &wmhHs FOHM GSemDHgE 2017
e 31 Sleorm 322,262.49 CGamowing SmHaE!-
QLB 6NHs GUNIHETTSTILD euae(LphSHSHTed hLLL
ohgBemed OMID 2 ufl LeoTLLp&SSHSHTEd UL L
&pUunerr  sLeT  Gpemer  eunmledt  &myevor
SMJE0OALIMG [FLDGI [BITLIP60T LIGOOT LDSLIEDLIS E6MMEELD
BLONIRSHEMS SHHSS-

euRBWNeTs Fm.BEGSSTOSMLPI6, eleus b
gbuBslLLL 2 husd Goemel [BMIEUEITRIGEHHELD
womib  (peorenflemn  glemm  UiflefeormaELd L6
QUDEIGUSAILD OFs  (PpsBWSFHeIDd  sTBSHE
eupBeOTDE. 2017 wnms 31  Gsd  BeoeugliLie
WpeTen)flemd  HEMDHEHHES EQUPRIBLILLL  CLDIHS
sLeTHEET  I12,960.75 Gamown@ld.  &eleunmmeot
BLETEET SLHS 6UBLSHT [BEHIHsLETSHEMed 40%
8mss  CeuetorGeDeTn  UNpslsiel  eurRISWITed
aueblLMISSLILL L SDHB6T0IEIS 58.87% SBHHSE!-

2017 g 31 GCsd BeoeugLiLle eNeusms
BLETEET I4,182.91 GaMauIn@Ld. &LbBS Shevoi(® Bars
sLevfled & 19.91% 2 _6Tengl. &g EUDTWMISSLILILL
GODHFLILES Slemeuneor 18% el SlH&LDN6oTS.

2017 eugL s 31D GCsgd BeoeugLiLie
medleuemLbs Lflefeor@ps®  GULPRISLILLL — &SL60TSH6T
33095.53 Gameuwin@Lb. &g Bsr &Leflsd 10% 660D
GEODHSLILE Slememel Xl 2_wibhgl 13.38% 2_6Tengl.

2 _MRIGET EURIBIITEOTSH HIEWEOUTsH FHleMME6Ted
BrevoruisslUrL. SsHGHemeT  SHeWLIHDHHEBOTDSI.
Sigieb dn WwONID &N eNeUsTW &HLEOTSH6T  [HI6voT
BMICUETTRIGEBHSHTE0T  HLEOTSHEM6D  GILIIHLDLIMEOTEMLDI|L 60T
Be0&GHEMET SleMLIHFIETETS.
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Marginal Farmers and Advances to Micro Enterprises
with comfortable margin.

Under export credit your bank achieved a level of
Rs. 482.68 crore as on March 31,2017.

During the current year, your bank will strive to
increase the flow of credit to Agriculture, Retail Sector,
Weaker Sections and the MSME sector.

Your bank actively participated in all the initiatives
and schemes of Government including Pradhan Mantri
Mudra Yojna(PMMY)) with a specific loan scheme in the
name of TMB Micro Entrepreneurs Scheme. Crop
loans / KCC are covered under Pradhan Mandri Fasal
Bhima Yojana (PMFBY). Government Schemes with
NABARD administered subsidy, like Dairy
Entrepreneurship Development Scheme (DEDS), Agri-
clinic and Agri-Business Centre Scheme (ACABC),
Solar Water Pumping system Scheme,
Entrepreneurship Development & Employment
Generation Scheme (EDEGS) etc, are implemented by
your Bank. Your bank has also implemented six new
schemes for Agricultural and Allied Activities during the
year2016-17.

Under the Financial Inclusion (FI) programme the
number of villages allotted to the Bank has increased to
127. Under Fl, a total of 4,77,893 Basic Savings Bank
accounts have been opened by our branches of which
59,200 have been opened under SBFIN and 92,424
accounts are opened under SBJDY. As part of its
endeavor to improve credit linkage in Fl villages, your
bank has introduced overdraft facility to SBJDY
accounts under Financial Inclusion Programme. AEPS
On Us transactions through Hand Held Machines was
made operational.

10. Investments and treasury operations

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Bank
made a total turnover of %1,36,669.12 crore in trading
operations, resulting in a net profit of 297.70 crore, as
against ¥24.59 crore in the previous year. Sale of
securities from 'Held to Maturity' category to the tune of
1381.86 crore was made during the year resulting in a
profit of ¥41.97 crore (previous year313.88 crore).

The net investments of the Bank stood at
%11,504.48 crore as on March 31, 2017, as against
%8,864.71 crore as at the end of the previous year. The
Investment-to-Deposit Ratio of the Bank was 35.74%,
as against 29.19% at the end of the previous year.

2017 e 31b Gsd MHeoeurliLily gHMILDS

sLemiflefled 2 mimem  eumidE I482.68  Gsmg
SleOLHSIGTENSI.

BLOY  [BF  Ohevoniged 2 _MRIGH6ME  6URIS
efleusmuid,  Hlebeoemm  eueofidld  WHMID  Hmy
GSNIHOSTPOBEBHS  CUDRIBLILILEYETEN &L EOTEHEN6IT
SBBLILBSHS|GTENSI.

2 _MBIGET 6URIE SIFFMRIsEHST S LRiSe6M60
&E0BE  G1HMeU0T(B  (LPEWEUTLILL 60T  SHe0TEl  LIRiseriLiemL
eIpRIGSEDE. Wpsner whdSM wsr Gungeorm HLLLd
6urBIBUN6dT HievoT QSMLPlED (LpemeoTGountt HLLSHeT SLp
QSMLMRISLILILL&I.

Wggnedr S unged Giom Gwimggeorm S Gdeor
8 LuiiésLer WOMID efeusmul &LeT SiLedL
esnLmsluCLg. NABARD fieuns  Lomeofiuiggieor
OIpsNMhIES SLLMIGEMTET  LIMEDLI6T0TEmeI0T  6\HMLSled
Guum-@s SrLb, Geuermevor OHMID  Beusmmevor
auettfiss emowl SLib, sfw Bis@pmit  wpemwm SHLLLb,
esmpled pwhdl Sifelmsd oHmib GeuemedeumiLiLg

SuLb  Gunettpemer 2 _miGET  eumid  2016-17
&), 6001 (B & 61l 6D el 6u&mw LD O mI LD g L. B
BLEIRGMESHEBHES SNl  LYHW  SLLMIGemET
SIDOLBSBIL|ETENS).

SlemeTUBESD  CURISGFEmE BLLEHB0T SLP
DG QURISHES @FSISSLULLL SINDE&EeT 127 &bs
2 _WINhgleTengl.  SlemetteudheE&GLD  eumid  Gseme

BrLsden &p 59,200 SBFIN sevoré@ser LbOMILD
92,424 SBJDY seure@send Ownsshd 4,77,893
OlgliemL. G  &HeU0THSHEBLD  6IMRIG6ET  6URIS
Bemenserfled LTMDASSILLG UBSDE. SlemETEUIHESLD;
aumids Gsemey SULHPHe0T & DG  CURIBWITEOTS
Spnmpmigefied GeLllL HeoUT&ESNG &HLEOT  GULPMRIGLD
ausHemwl AM(WPHELLGSSWeTeNSl. ShSHMT EemevorLiL|L 60T
LI6OOTLD QIFQISSILD (LPemD M&ILIL5HS SWHHTHHE0T cLpeOLD
BLEUIRSENSHEET 6\FUIOLIBGHSLILIL LS.

10.(LP&HEOBSET LDHMILD SHIHEUED [HLEULSHEDSHSHE:

31-03-2017 &ldTm] (PIPeUEmLILILD  ShevoTIREd
URIBLIMGOTEH OIDEMMHIS &HLEOT USSIHIGET  6UMTRIS
D@D euetoiiBSHHed I1,36,669.12 Game efwmumgLd
eFLgIeTeNGl. SelleuetufiEsSeT ELPEOLD FLIQUI QUIHEUTL
¥97.70 Gamaun@d. (pHemsw 6L I24.59
Camaun@ld) &SeleuLLD (WPpHTey ST  6UEDT
OEUHBHESS Fnlpl (LPEHEOGHEMN®EHE I1381.86 Gy
elbm I41.97Csme &eomud FLIQUETENE. (LPHEDSIL
Spevor® Seomuid T13.88 Gamp).

amduler  Bar  WpeedG®eT  31.03.2017
311,504.48 Gamuins Smhedl. (PHemsI eUdbHLLD S5
18,864.71 CGamRwmgLb) 6u MRl & uf eor
WPBHEOBBHEBHGSLDEmEULIL| BBs@D 2 eTem  6flBHLD
35.74 g56l5L0M8 2_6T6ng.
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The average realized yield on the investment
portfolio during the year decreased to 7.77%, as against
8.04% in the previous year, due to redemption of high
coupon securities and reinvestments at current yield.
The income earned during the year from investments,
comprising interest income and dividend income
excluding income from RIDF was %798.74 crore as
against ¥732.79 crore in the previous year.

11. Foreign Exchange Business:

The total merchant turnover of our bank grew from
23,388.68 crore during the previous year to 328,411.85
crore during the year ended 31.03.2017, registering a
growth of 21.48%.The profit on foreign exchange
business for the year 2015-16 was %20.23 crores
against % 26.24 Crores during the previous year-2015-
16 with a negative growth of 22.90%.

Our Bank has arrangement with a global network of
665 overseas Banks by exchange of bilateral key under
SWIFT (Society for Worldwide Interbank Financial
Telecommunication). It facilitates smooth and fast flow
of communication in the international business. The
SWIFT arrangement has enabled the Bank to give
timely and efficient service to its foreign exchange
customers. Our Bank has tie-up arrangements with
GCC Exchange Centre, Dubai, Universal Exchange
Centre, Abu Dhabi and Times of Money.

The total number of of 'B' category branches that

dealt in foreign exchange business was 37.0ur Bank
has the necessary infrastructure to render speedy
service relating to inward remittance and for crediting
the beneficiary's accounts on receipt of the foreign
currency funds in our Nostro accounts abroad.
Our International Banking Division, Chennai provides
information on Foreign Exchange market and market
rates on the Bank's website to help the clients in
knowing up to date information on forex. Our Bank is
committed to increasing the Forex Business activities
significantly in adding good revenues to the bank in the
coming year.

12. Branch network

During the year 2016-17, 18 new branches, 48 new
Automated Teller Machines (ATMs), 2 Regional Offices,
5 e-lobbies and 2 Centralized Retail Assets Processing
Centres (CRAPC) were opened. With this expansion,
the Bank's network has increased to 505 branches,
1063 ATMs, 12 Regional Offices, 17 e-lobbies and 4
CRAPCs.

(PHeOBW UL 29.19 &56fisD) SeleudpLd Sds
GUIREUMILI  HISHEIQU] LUSBITRIGET (PBT6Y OLDMSTED
WPHEOBEEMET cLpedld BewLgs FIN& euHLOTEID 7.77
F561HLNG (PHEDSW 6UBLLD 8.04%) GeOmHESIETENS!.
WPeeOGsaNelBhs SHemLsHe eullp WHMILD URELGES
OBMem&UN6OT  6UIHLDMEDILD  [HLLILIMETOTIQEd  I798.74
Gamowine 2_sTengl. (PHeMSW eUdBLLD I732.79 Gome)

1. SIBBWE aFemeusvoll aueofleLD:

31-03-2017 Sledim)| (LPIREUHLIHSH  Sh6T0TLR6D
eumiBufleor  OlbBuIsasmeueooll  euetUfldGld  HEDED
WpeT@GeorHpLD HevoT(® I28,411.85 Gamouwinsg 2 Wb
(pemsw eugpLLD 323,388.68 Gamp) 21.48 FH6NSLD
eue&s] sevor@Beengl. SbBW G1Feomeuevoll eu6eTvfESHHE0
FrLIwl &eonub Selleumevoriged (2016-17) 320.23 Gamg
WPhensll  Shevoniged  (2015-16) 326.24  Gsmuins
8mHeg. 22.90 #5650 APFAWIHLHSIETONSI. HLOSI
GURIE 2 & SleneleonedT eURIBHEHHE SemLGuimeot
LIEOOTLDAOM)|  STemeasNLTL Slemiplifed &cpLiLBeoTTed
2 _60&H5HH 266 665 GURIBHEHLEIT CIGMLITL C\&BT6eT6T
PYEDg!.

85601 cpeold GeuelBNL(B eueTEsSH6D &HoH616D
ufiiomhprRaissT  We  eflemreaunsald  Se@&eunsea|Dd
BLUUBSDS gaensdmag . 6l ml & ufl eor
QUMESHEMBILITENTHEEBES &Dhe (Ppempuied Caeme
yflweyd o seydetimgl. mwg eumd GCC uflwnbm
6w Gumil uwjesfleuriged LMbmOM emLDWID, Siysma
OMILD  ewLLDed  Spl  evoll  GumedTmeUDMIL 60T
Lrilrb&1600TT6Y QLILIBSMHIGET CIFILISIGTETSI.

Beleuneoor(® SlBBWIE QF6MEUETT 6UETTNSHESS60
FGBUBLD Hemenseledr eTevoTet0HEMmE 37ShE 2_6M6Ngl.
[BLDGI 6UMRIBWINEITE GleuelBLIed Sdhhgl SnHnelneg
SIUIUIUGLD  U6UTHEmS  6UHRIE  GleuefBILIed
MEUSB(HHGSLD HEUUTHED C1HMEMSBEMII CLIDM)|S C\SBTE00TL
2 | Geor@Gw  vweotmeliseT  &evUTEBHG.  SiflEHLOTE
uflomopld  eFLISNE 6GuRBUTET 2 L &L L 6mLDLIL
GUNFILDMETTHTS 2_6T6TS).

BIDG 6UhmIE OBBUIF 61FE0M6U6TDNl  HEHEUEDEET
LOMID  &HewSH [HEOGUTMHIGEM6T  6UI & ulleor
& em evoT W B 6T & B 60 6 6u afl ull L B 6u (b 6 &l
QMG WNETTEEEHGS  SBBWs  6&Fe0meussofl
BeoeuIhIGEmeT 2 _LeGGSLE0T SPHH eBMeTEUSDE
2 geluns 2 6T6Mgl. [HLDG 6URIS SibBUIFeFeomeussofl
euetfisHems — SFsflugeor  cpeold  eurmiBufeot
QUIHEUMTEMI 2_WITHSHIUSNES 2_MIS LY,6ooTBETENS.

12. femenser alfleunsasLd :

2016-17 euBLES6d 18 LYHW Hemerser,
48 LHw snefwms LevorLiLL@eunLn Swihdrmiser, 2
LD6TOTL6D  OlQIeNesMmIGeT, 5 &-eomiser LpmId 2
AW Hedevemdm HLeoTEEmET LfEDlSESLD EWMLDIIRISET
BossliLL(GeTengl. SsHer  eflemeneuns  6urRISUNGIT
sLLemDL 505 demensel, 1063  grevflwimid
UevorlIUL. (BeumLm SwhPHrmIseT, 12 LD 600TL_6D
SleIEmIGET, 17@enmiseT OMID 4  HBW
feveoemdm  BLeITHEEMET  LIMEDBGSD  EDLDWIMBISENTES
2_wImgsLILLBETeng!.
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13. PERSONNEL

The Bank's total staff strength was 4384 as on 31st
March 2017, consisting of 1569 Officers, 2136 Clerks
and 679 subordinate staff. During the period, 32
officers, 245 clerical and 65 subordinate staff members
were recruited. Totally, the Bank recruited 342
employees during the year and 236 employees were
promoted to the next cadre in the normal promotion

process.
The per employee business decreased from

Rs.12.53 crore to Rs.12.47 crore during the year under

review.
The Bank's Staff Training College at Nagercoil and

Staff Training Center at Chennai conducted 87
programmes, imparting training to 2415 employees
during the year.

In addition to the in-house 87 programmes, 274

officers were deputed to other institutions like SIBSTC-
Bangalore, NIBM-Pune, IDRBT- Hyderabad, FEDAI
and other ftraining institutions for attending training
programmes. 11 directors and 17 executives of our
Bank also attended the Corporate Governance
Programme at [IM Campus, Kozhikode from

13.07.2016 to 15.07.2016.
Industrial relations in the Bank continued to be very

cordial during the year with frequentinteraction between
the management and the Officers' and Employees'
Associations and various staff welfare activities were
undertaken during the year. The Bank continues to lay
emphasis on developing the individual skills of its
employees and providing a healthy and cordial working
environment so as to get maximum contribution from the

employees of the Bank.
There were no employees who were in receipt of

remuneration above the limit prescribed under Section
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 requiring the Bank
to furnish a statement with particulars prescribed under
the Act. Since the bank is an unlisted company
disclosure of the details with regard to remuneration
paid to its employees as referred to in sub- section 12 of
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
5 (1) of the Companies (Appoinment and Remuneration
of Managerial personnel) Rules 2014, is not applicable
toit.

13. LbevflgHeuen GLoLDLIML. (B&H&6mm

201710 eu@pLLD LommE 316D eurRBuleT GLDNSHS
e Sluirsefedr erevoretolidems 4384 ShGLD. BHed 1569
Sfenlaer, 2136 eWsSTHeT WOMID 679 U
85 eumLSFD 32
245 eWssNeEeT oMb 65 Ub

oM SIIMBEBHLD  SILMBIG6IT.
Sigsnser,
e flwirser  BubleslurBeTeneonT. &hs  6UIBLLD
Qs 342 ewplunser  BwLblsaLILL(BeTeTeoTT,
G 236  2MPWITHEHES
eULPRIBLILIL (BeTengl. SeleudbLHPed SH6vfl @dH erPluIgmed
euevtflsld 312.55

Gamouwins

usedl 2 wimey

emaWIMemLILBLD
12.47

Gameuedlmha!
SODHSIETENS.  BrerGsmeie
LOMILD G1FetTemevTUNed SleMLDBGIETEN eurRISUTeT LuiHa

seoanflsefleo 87  Bapeyser  cpeold 2415
e Bluneersd UWDd SefsslurGereng. GLDLD
274 odsnflser, In Bmeverrser  SIBSTC

eumiseast, IDRBT emamsomung, NIBM yGeor, FEDAI
BLHEID LWIDd  euGLLselld &HeOmSH OSBMTETeUSNEG
BLILAGELILLL60TT. DG 6urRIBuNedT 11 SWaHESHITsH6T
LDHM)LD
Bmieueotd, CamplsGsmisd 13-07-2016 WPpHed 15-07-
2016 BHEOLOLUDD  [BMI6NEITHRISEHE S
QUEIGPeOD eflBHemer

UGLILN6D &HE0IBGI C1&MEVOTL 6DTIT.
Seleuneooriged  6UMRIS

17  Brendsesbd, SbSw  GLpeomevoremLD
eUEDT

senLLlgsH60 LWID&Lpsmm

Breunsssn e L
Slfsnleer FRSSSNDGSLD LDOMID 2Pl FRSSSDELD
8emLCw  Slpssle  HHSIHILU
BEOLOLDMEDT. &relpd 2 M6 OSMLIHS SHT6ToTLILILL S.
oom Sluir

Ul b m B! & 6T
meOenIBETe0T  UGaIm  [BLEUHEDHHET
GLome\BM6TETLILIL L 60T.

BmieuenimigeT &FULb 2013Ufley 197 OMILD
Bmieueor  (Bwibeot LDOMILD  [BMIEUEDT  LIOofiLITEMTE 6T
oarfuib) eNF&er 201460TUIR  GUEMPWIEDDSHE GLDED
eumBuUled sFLoUETD eaHS 29 Lhl Wl (H& & LD
GULDMRIGLILIL 61606060

6URIS &@db ULIUAESILILLTES [BmI6eTLDNSE0MeD
oem Slui&eT UMD LbhMlw eNupmhiseT Bnieueor &Ll Ld
2013 Urfley 197 2_rifley 12 woHMILD Bmieueor (BuiLbeot
WOILD  [Bmieueot orfuid) eld
2014e01Li1e QeuefiuiL. GxHemeuuiedemnen

LI60ofWLIMEITIT&6IT
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14. Inter branch adjustments

The Bank has continued to maintain a very good
record in the matter of internal housekeeping. Since the
Bank has installed a core banking solution with hundred
percent networking, it was possible for the branches to
balance all their accounts and the balances were tallied
up to March 31, 2017.There was also timely submission
and scrutiny of the control returns, which was given
adequate importance at all levels with necessary follow

up.

15. Internal control and inspection/audit

Risk Based Internal Audit system

The bank has put in place an effective and strong
Risk Based Internal Audit (RBIA) System. During the
financial year 2016-17, RBIA audits were conducted in
470 branches of the bank. Submission of compliance
reports and closure of audits are followed up through the
respective Regional Offices.

Half-yearly review of the Treasury Department is
conducted by Inspection Department.

Post-Credit Supervision process

In addition, all accounts having credit limits of
Rs.3.00 crore and above are subjected to post-credit
supervision. Totally 1045 such accounts in 183
branches were covered during this year. Receipt of
compliance reports is monitored by the Credit Audit &
Monitoring Department.

ConcurrentAudit system

The bank continued to have the system of
Concurrent Audit, which covered 182 branches.
Concurrent Audit has been recognized as an important
tool of internal control and is in force at major branches
including all the 'B' category branches designated for
forex business.

Further, International Banking Division, Treasury
Department, DPS Cell, ATM Cell, Chennai Service
branch, Accounts, Establishment and Business
Development, Departments, CRAPC at Thoothukudi
and Central Processing Centers at Chennai,
Coimbatore, Tirunelveli and Madurai are also subjected
to Concurrent Audit. Submission of compliance reports
and closure of audit findings are followed up through the
respective regional offices / departments.

14. Heme6sEhHHemL GUILITEIT SH6e00TohEGHSHem6T FHlLIMTEHSHED

uRIBWLINETEH — HemensehsBenL G 2 eiem
BLOIRGEEDHSHEMET  QUIRIGUGSSHIUDD  HemLLIIRSELD
DLy SeoTembemw OHMLITHE HeWLLIESHSE 6UBSDSI.
HemenseT SlewetIHEID 100% LNFsGWING CILDEDTOILIMHET
cLpEOLD Sem6TITEBLILILLSH60T LILIEoTTE 20178hD Shevor(®

WM& 318 b G5 8 w et m Sl em 6T B §l
BemensEpsBemLCwiwner sHeorsGHeT GBI
eFLwInLL BeTeneor.  GLOpUMTEDEIGSTS — EUMMRIGLILIGLD

BHHEUD  LILIQUIEDSHET SHTOSMDSHD E6DEDMLDEd  EUMTRIS
sgflunmuus D& Gurmgdw W& 8w s gl 6uLb
QEMB&ELILGSEDNE. 2 6THLUML  LRIGLUBGSSI6US0
2 gten DS HEOTEWLD QFHMLIBLD OUMBLG 6UrRS
BLeNBeDS  TBHS  eumBHDE. oM GrysHed
BWETHEHHS SemLUTEONesT LDM)| 6UTe)| &He00TéESH6re0
shaenedls esPunsmisenet HeooTGLIRSHE0 LDHMILD
Baemeusener GmT  6FLGHD GUTETDEme 2 _RIGET
euRIBUNed HewLLila&sLILGBS60TMET.

15. 2 sl BUUT®B, Shlile) mHmID &evoflibens

RIS @ 2 MBWINeT LDOHMILD SmemLbulmeot
8LienTbhs o aNpeisemns SlewUedUS
e&MevoTBaTengl. 2016-171D eUELSHD 470 Bemenseried
SpliieyseT GLOMEGETEMLILLL60T. Shlile) Simleemsuieo
&6U0IL  GHeDM&BemeT FlOFILSHD LLOMILD  Hevolbemns
e set Singns Upnhil SigIeUesMmIS6T —eLPeOLD
&600TB 600N &S LILIBSMSI.

HL60T ULpRISWILIedr GLmLMTem6N G\FILISHED:

gn@Bgeons I3 Gsme OHMID SigHE& GDULL
&BL60T 6UTLDLEET QBMe0TL.  SleMEUTHS  SHEU0TE &S ETBLD
Ubensw  sLeT  Gouniemed  OFWELPENDHS
2_eemnasLILBBTDET. &g Shevoriged 183 Hemenaerfied
awnssons &5  Gumeim 1045 HeEUUTEGS6IT
GoraaslurLgl. SbHile)] ANsemnsuled STl GHenMES6T
HLEOT H600N&H6ms LDOMILD  &H6T0THM6TONLIL|  SIEWMILITED
&600T&H MO0 &SLILGSDS!.

2_L0IHELE0T H600lEHeme DlemLDLILY:

2 LGGLET  Heoofldems — GCLoMESEISTETEIHLD
weon 182  Sewenseafied  QFWOLBHIHLILILLSI.
QURIBWINETEH 2 LsLGUUTLG SLLMIS6N60T  660TmmeoT
2 L eDIBGLET Heoolliensd (GLDMEGTETEHLD  (LPEDMEmIL
gnmis esmeoor®  SBBWl  QFemeueToll  6UETUNBSHEmS
GLDHOsTETEHLD  SlenTHE Hemensefad SHeoofleemae
GumesmereriurL .  Goeb  SiBBul  GlFeomeussof
eueoofisifley,  smeyeouifley,  GFeTemeoTUNEETET
GaemeusdBemenaer. DPS 19fley, ATM 9fley. @&ettement
CPC seos@sgsemn. Bieunsssenn. SMH5SHISGLL
CPC. esetrement, GamuLbLsgiT, HpebeoGeusdl LbHMILD
DglenT ShBW SLmisafld 2 LGGLET Heuollsensd
QFILILLD (M CLoHEBEIGMETETLILILL SI.
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Information System Audit

An Information System audit cell has been
established under Inspection Department as per RBI
guidelines. Information System audits are conducted at
470 branches and controlling offices along with Risk
Based Internal Audit.

A process for continuous offsite monitoring of Core
Banking operations is deployed by IS audit cell. Under a
software tool based supervision process, certain key
and vital areas are subjected to offsite monitoring.

Every year, critical Information systems deployed in
our Bank like core banking system, E-Banking, Mobile
banking, ATM, RTGS, Treasury, CTS clearing process,
Server and network infrastructure etc., are subjected to
external Information Systems audit.

Management Audit system

To assess the robustness of the systems and
procedures established in various operational units in
the Bank and to have an oversight of the effectiveness of
management, various departments at Head Office and
all Regional Offices are subjected to Management
Audits once intwo years.

During the year under review, Management Audits
were conducted at Hyderabad, Thiruvananthapuram,
Mumbai, Madurai, Trichy, Coimbatore Regions,
Treasury Department, International Banking Division,
RTGS / WUMT Cell, DPS Cell, Risk Management,
Legal, Business Development, Establishment, Credit
Recovery & Follow up Departments and Information
Technology, Chennai by the Inspection Department of
the bank.

Revenue Audit

For the calendar year 2016, Offsite Revenue Audit
was conducted for 500 branches during the month of
January, 2017. Further, revenue leakages which are
monitored and reported by concurrent auditors at
branches were followed up for recovery through
concerned regional offices then and there.

HHEUED 6(LPIBIG(LPEMM SH600lSH608

flsmel  eurmBuledr  euPlEMLBHedleTUR  6db
BHE6UD SleMLDLIL| HE0Uf&HemE, ShlIEYSIEND HEmeDEmLDUNED
BoIeulILILBETeNE. HHEUD GLPMHBIGLPEDD SleMLDLIL|L 60T
gnlowl GLrsmbs 470 HSemensef@id SLBUBSSILD
SlQIUSMRIGEMILD HLSHSLILIL(BETEMSI.

amdbuiar Seuss 615 W6 D& 6T
QBHMLIEFIIMEDT  CIFWIEDLPEDMSEET  SH600THME00NSHELILILB
H5HEUD UTHBTLULY HeoolsEemsd & (DeUTe
QFWLIOLGSSLILGSEDGI. CILDEOTEILIMIHET SlipLiLiemLudleomeor
Gupuniemeuuiedr Swd  Heo  Wles  (Lps&BILDTEDT
&l 6® M & @Ip LD 6 6 61l & & 600T & IT 60011 & & 60l & &
2 'LIBSSLILBEDEI.

66166UMTH 6UIBL(PLD 6EuUmIBUI60T  (Lp&&uILDmeoT
HHEUD  OleWLDLILIGETTENT S6eWevoTiil 6umld  SlemibLily,
Wlebteotem)  eurRid, ewmemued eumid, ATM, RTGS,
smeyeod CTS &iey eswedpemm, &rieum  bHMID
SemetoTl 2_L &L L6WLDLIL| 66y SlenarHEID GleueriLiLm
561D SlemLDLIL| H600NHNHEE 2 L LIBSSLILGSEDSI.

(BLDeDIMET0TEmLD & 6001 &H6me

auRBuwienr LbGaum Swssmisefer Sleo@aered
2 eT6m  SleWDLILSGET  WOMILD DL (LPemmEerieoT
eueyeunerr  Sp@unsSwionenr  Bewedemw!  BUITE
eFleusHGL OHNID  GLoeomevorembufedr  Hmement
Gpuniemey OFILIISNGSD HEMEEWLD SQIEUEDSBEHHED
o etem LGN HEDMSENQID LDOMID SleMEOTHSI
UpnhBw  SlQIEUEERISEHD STetor®  ShevoT(BHEBEHE
& (b (P ™ M Goeneaumenld & 6ol & 6D & & G
2 ' LIBSSLILBBEDE!.

S6lIeUNeToTIEd  WANSINLINS,  HHEUTHSLILD,
(PLDEmLI, LDGIWY, HH&FF, CHMULDLSSHTT Sl LD6TOTL 6D
SlQEUDERIGEMNAQID &HHEUED Hl6OM, LGTETTLH 6Uhid
Wfley, RTGS/WUMTWMley, DPS  fley, &Ln
GLpeomevoTemLDEIEMD, FLLLD, 6u600flE&ELOLDLNG, [Bieunsid,
BLOTSTLULMUSHIEDD, SHHEUD  OSTLPEOHIL LISSHIEDD,
Lie0enTmiLIe)SSHlemn ShBll SHlemmeEh&E@&LD GLDEDM6ToTEmnLD
5H600ll&6mS HLHSLILILLFI.

GUIRHGUMIL &600fSHEmE :

BeTeEML  Shevot(®  2016M&TE0T  GMIHOUMLL
SHeouflBemsIITeTgd 500 Hemensefled 2017  egevreur]
LISHHPD BLSSLLLLGI. PennEaBHeT 6T GrIsHHed
HEUONBEMSBILITENTEHET — cLPOLD  HEOUTHBL(B — SM&Hems
QFILWILLGEDS. SSE0TELPeOLD  EUIHEUML  FLDUMSLILILL
WPODBHBHET  LDETOTLED  SIgQIeUeDSLD  eLpedLd  LEL &Ll
UGBS
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16. Vigilance

The functions of the vigilance machinery of the Bank
are broadly divided into 3 types, viz. preventive,
predictive and punitive. The Vigilance Department
undertakes a study of existing procedures and practices
prevailing in the organization with a view to modifying
those procedures or practices that provide scope for
fraud and also finding out the causes of delay and the
points at which the delays occur and devising suitable
steps to minimize delays at different stages. As such,
the Chief of Internal Vigilance has conducted and
completed the study of Systems and Procedures in
fraud prone areas during the month of February 2015
and necessary directions were given to the respective
departments for taking corrective measures. To
educate the employees of the Bank, the Vigilance
Department brings out various fraud awareness
circulars and conducts training programmes
periodically. As a part of creating awareness, 'Vigilance
Day'is observed on the 31st of October every year. The
Vigilance Department plays a vital role in the
implementation and follow-up of the directives and
guidelines issued from time to time by Reserve Bank of
India. Upon the directions of RBI, Vigilance Department
has also formulated/implemented a Vigilance Policy
from 1stApril 2013 and the Policy was lastly reviewed on
March 8, 2016. The 'Whistle Blowing' mechanism is
being actively encouraged as a tool for better
governance.

Further, a scheme of 'Protected Disclosure' framed
in accordance with the guidelines issued by Reserve
Bank of India on April 18, 2007 is in operation in the
Bank.

As per the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Bank being a company
accepting deposits from the public is required to setup a
'vigil mechanism' for the directors and employees to
report their genuine concerns or grievances. Further,
the vigil mechanism should provide for adequate
safeguards against victimisation of employees and
directors who avail of the vigil mechanism. While the
purpose of both the protected 'disclosure scheme' and
'the vigil mechanism' is the same, under the 'Protected
Disclosure Scheme' prepared on the lines prescribed by
RBI, Reserve Bank of India is the Nodal Agency
designated to receive complaints under the Scheme,
whereas under the 'vigil mechanism' set up in
accordance with the provisions of the new Companies
Act, the Chief of Internal Vigilance in the Bank will be the

16. H600T&HT600fLIL] :

seoorsmeofilil Lflefleor Geuemed eLpedTm)
auemswnes UMsslu@dng. Slemen 5G5S0,
(PEOTERLIQUINISHED, — SHeOoTESHSHED.  HLLULNED 2 e6mer
SHE00THTEOUALIL (LPeDD SHeuMGewsT SBLILSNGS gEleuTs
Pl &m0 SewL6euafiuied e pemmaser
LIHMILENLDSESUIGEDG. 2emflT&EeT bSSUNeD Heum seT
6UBLD (WPeoTeorGr  HBLUG esnLiuns  efpllievorTey
gnUBSSIUBT @ih Smsns Uigeufl gD 2015
SpD She00T(B (LPHED (LPSHBIILDITEDT  [FLEUIRSHEDBHEHEHEHE
siflwimeot (pigey eTG&SLILGSDE. GLDQILD 2em PlITSHEbeE
seoell UsLBL euemsuled  (pemdmBaEB  GGTLITUmE0T
soprlsensser gfiwner &meo SemLeeuefiuisd LuIHd
SlelsalIuL®G eumEng. Guoaud Maral GCumis Sl
Sndwnedesr  euPlsn@Gsedledr Ll  &evoTamevofiliL
osneTemSHEMET gL 2013  (PpHed HeoTHBe0BHSI
QUDEIS euBBng. &ser LmuflEeensor LomTe 2016,
8ed eELwLLg. "Whistle Blowing" ereorn ei&metems
HEOL(LPEODLILBSSLILILBETENSI.

Gayd unmps Memey eurmiBuieor gLiped 18 2017
QUL (BHe0s&6TLR — LUnGISTIUTeT  aeuefLLBSSI5He0
SrLibmerg  eumsuled AFWOLUBESSULGEDE.

BmieuenmigeT LD 2013 Wfley 177 edaerfeor
8 eumswnerg  eweullyBEsemer  gnUSTED
effllievoriey Swsspenn goLUBSS SusGbiseT
WODID  2mPlITHEeT SlUTHET  GeDMSHET Sl
2 _600TEWLDUINE0T H6UEMEDEEMEN 6\5MeN&Hs 6Uend CIFILISSI.
Gayld efllLijevoriey SWsHspenn 6uEE SWisEeoTT
WOMILD 2o flumGensem  LLPI6NTH & LILLITLD 6D
UNgsmMiuUsnNE® eIPleuenswns SmeéEELb.
GeuefMLL@ESHEIHHO  SHULD oMb  eApPliLevormey
Busswpenm ShBW Bpevorigedt CEN&ESMIGEBLD QG
wrdflwnerg. ungg  femel  eurmd LsmiseT  eUM
BublsslurLL  (posemDWns 2 etengl.  YHw
BmleuehIgeT FULLD eNF(pemmseriednile e0ehs 6eLOILIL]
Hemeoemd  SiFamfl e plirsefledr Lsnisemer 6LD
BubleslrGererm.  euRsuIuier  Swssmisereor
L&MT&emeT 6ILUD Seuollbems GLp Hemeeurm BullblésLLB
o_eitermmt
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designated authority to receive the complaints from
employees and the Chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Board will be the designated authority to receive the
complaints from directors.

With a view to ensuring compliance with both the
RBI circular and the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, the Bank had re-drafted its 'Protected Disclosure
Scheme' in tune with the requirements of Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013. It was felt that as the two
different schemes on the same subject being in
operation simultaneously may lead to conflicts and it
would be advisable to converge the two schemes into
one.

We had sought clarifications from RBI whether it
would be in order to revise the scheme, inter alia, by
providing for a common nodal agency, say for example
the Chief of Internal Vigilance in the Bank, to receive the
complaints under the revised protected disclosure
scheme.

We, later received clarification from RBI that they
have no objection in making the Chief of Internal
Vigilance or the Chairman of Audit Committee of Board,
as the case may be the Nodal Officer for receiving
complaints. Accordingly, the “Protected Disclosure
Scheme” suitably reviewed in line with whistle blowing/
vigil mechanism under section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 was approved by the Board of Directors in the
meeting held on February 28,2017 and was adopted.

17. Customer Service

The Bank is well known for its good and courteous
service to customer. The Bank has constantly been
endeavoring to meet the expectations of the modern
day tech-savvy customers by introducing new and
innovative products and features.

In order to provide a platform to the customers for
addressing their queries, a dedicated Customer Service
Cell has been formed at Head Office. The Bank has
also provided an all-India toll-free helpline (1800-425-
0426) wherein the customers can clarify their doubts
about the products / schemes and also register their
grievances. We have a dedicated Phone Number
(9842461461) for Customer care / Help. Italsoincludes
“SMS” based Customer Help Line. Customers can
invoke help by sending a SMS with the text, “HELP”.
We are also having two dedicated E-Mails for the use of
customers to register their grievances and complaints

BmleuemIEeT  FULLD 2013 ifley 177&eor
e@aerfleotLipu|ld LMDS Mamel eurrSuUNeT SFHMMGHENESE
2 L TUMLT&EYD QeUeTLILBSSISHD SLLLD DM 6UeDT6Y
eFLwlLLLE. 8B &peo SULmsend @Gy
Coressded @Gy GCrrsdHed 6FILIOLGHSLILGEUSTE
s&55I6)&6T gDUBLD eTeiTLSHMeD STevor® SHLLIRISEN6IIL|LD
Q60TDNS SemevuTLILIF 6T60TM| 2 _6vorILILIBSMS).

85 sbubsLIs upy famel  eumSuiLLD
8mha eNenssd OUDLILLG6Tengl. 2 6T e0Ehs 6Pl
FHemeend  ABHMAGWIT  Oledeogl HevollEems  G(LD
H6me0eUEIT  (LPILPEMLDWING L|BMTEHEmET 6ILUMI6UHED 6ThS
S GsLemeoni|lD Sedemed 6TedTD)  OBfleNSgl6meneoriT.
OlFe0TLIR  LMGISMILTET  QeueflLBGSSHIHED S LLDT6OTS
effliyeooriey Swiss Wpewpuledt S OLMMISSHLDTEOT
weopuied ufEesslur(G BnieuemiseT sl 2013.
Wfley 177eor &p 28 Wlipeufl 201786 BewLOUDMD
GITRIGENSI [BIT6UTS G(LD Snl LHH6D QLULHE OLDLILILL F.

17 _eumesemament Ggemeu

URIBWITEITEH SiHedT HAmHE LOMILD SHevfleurmeor
Gremeud® OLWIT  6UDDE. euRISWINEOTE  Helieor
QSMPIDEILL  CUTQEHEMSILITEMTSH6ME0T  6TSTLIMTLILSHEm6IT
WTHE QFLILDEUNBL®G LGIemLDWITET LDHMILD LIed LbSLiL
Gl B CFemeuBEmENILILD SH&! C1&ME00TIHSHSBDSI.

QUMRBEDEWTETTEEHE® @G SLsded
lasdmbgs Cremerenil SeflLSDHETES CUTEHEDEHUITETT
eMLDWILD  eURIBUNETT — HemeDemD  SlQIEUDSHSHB D
BoelLrGeTengl.  eUTEGENEWTENTHEEHE  HH6UD
SlelsseD, 2 _seued Seeus esmeneGLS! erevor 180-
0425-0426 cpeold Goemer SlefaslLGEDS.

GUMQBEMSBILITETTEHET GNIEHEFIIS cLpeold 2 _HeN
eup Help eeotemLl  Q&LE 9842461461 eT6diD
erevoresoliD® Slemifl 2 el 6up  pigujb. GLogyLd
Customer service @tmbank.in LD M LD
complaints@tmbank.in  &5s &wm LeTerTEhaed
waeufl  euUPLNG  CUMIRSEDSBILITENTEET SRS EHEML L
& 6M D & 60 61T | LD Ysl & B 60 1M & 6m 60T & 6 61T L] LD
BHHIHBHMENLLD  UHe] 6Fiw  Sweyd.  GgyLd
aumIBuleT  6h® @I Seeuemeowld  Www.tmb.in
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- customerservice@tmbank.in and
complaints@tmbank.in. Customers can also register
their suggestions / feedback / complaints / grievances
through our website www.tmb.in. The customer will
receive instant acknowledgements to their E-Mail ID for
the suggestions / feedback / complaints / grievances
registered by them. Our Bank has also implemented a
centralized registry / database for recording and follow-
up of complaints. Branches and Regional Offices can
also register the complaints received at their level in the
CCTS (Customer Complaint Tracking System) module.

18. TECHNOLOGY ADVANCEMENT:

Our Bank is taking various efforts to provide technology-
enabled products and services to customers by
adopting latest technologies. Expansion of Branches
and ATMs by using multiple network technologies, such
as MPLS, Leased Line, VSAT, GPRS, CDMA and
VPNoBB with redundant mode to provide continuous
customer service without any disruption through various
delivery channels viz. Internet Banking, ATM, Mobile
Banking, Point of Sale terminals, Cash Deposit Kiosk,
Passbook Printing Kiosk, Cheque Deposit Kiosk,
Product Information Kiosk etc.

19. Product Innovation, new Products and Services

During the financial year 2016-17, the Bank has
made / done the following for the beneficial use of the
customers.

v' Tie up arrangement with M/s.E-Billing solutions
private limited - 18.05.2016,

v" Auto generation of SMS alert message for frequent
cheque return customers - May 2016,

v' Corporate Internet Banking facility Introduced for

corporate entities - June 2016,

Salem Regional Office opened - 06.06.2016

Ahmedabad Regional Office opened - 17.06.2016,

Digital Account opening system introduced during

October 2016,

v" Revamp of "'TMB VISA and TMB Santhosh Saving
Bank Schemes - October 2016,

v" Revamp of TMB Royal Savings Account Scheme -
November 2016,

v" Introduced the following new IT products on
27/02/2017;

1) Mobile Wallet,

2) IMPSfacility through ATMs,

3) Cardless Cash Withdrawal through ATMs,

4) VISAContactless Debit Card,

ANENEN

Semevoniigend eunufeons un Swegd.  GLDEYLD
CCTS Customer Complaint tracking system -
QUMPGHEMSILITENT  Gemmaefieor Beoeugld uOM  6&MbS
aametemr CCTS eredim Stemidliy ghLGSSLILILBETENSI.

18) Q&MLPledRILL 6u6mTEs

QMRGEMBIINETTHEHSE Sphs  GFeme
Slefllugnans eumd  (peot SmHes  GumeGeu
ueoGeum 2 Wb OSMPOHLLRSeT  SlelsHg
amdng. MPLS @sseme Semevoriy VSAT, GPRS,
CDMA Gunetin LieosILILLL OSMLSIEOHBIL LIMRIGET eLpeOLD
dememr WOMID ATM  elfleunésd 6FLE  6uBSDE.
eunpsensnen eusdssns ATM Senevonuger eumid
Bgemer, GIDMemLIGD 6URIE BFemeu, LIMUNGITL. Shooll BFeD,
UM SlLemL, LetiD FaSHSID Wby, &nGsmemed
eFQIHSID Swhdrd, eurmd Cemeusst UDHM Ml
2 ga|b soeued SuiHdro SpBweunrledr  epeod
HemLuleoeom GFemel ULPTRIS 6UIHBMSI.

19. yHw CFemeusar :

2016-2017 &hb  euBLEHHD
Gremeusmel SMILPpsLILGSHSLILILLSI.

SLD&B600TL.

v eaumdwnerg M/s. E-Billing Solutions Private
Limited 2_1_eor @emevorbgl G&emeu eULDMHIGBDSI.

v 2016 G WMsb WPHd 6UMGEEHSIITETTHEBHHE
snG@smemed  HHUud  eFLwucLted  SMS
GNeFLE eublwns sTGeaT HHEUD SlDILILLD
6UFS.

v 2016 gfedr &MTUGIL Semeonugen euhid euFd

ABlWPpsLILBSSLILLBETESI.

v gf60T 6 2016 PpHed BFEDLD LDETITL6OLD SIE)I6E0EHLD
QSMLRIBLILIL BETESI.

v gfedr 17 2016 (PpHEd SIGLSNLMNE  LDEOOTL6D

SlIEUEDBLD OSITLMRISLILIL (BETEMEI.

v &s6Lnur 2016 e IpedrLed  Wpemmuied
&600THG OSMLMRIGLD 6UFH

v &s8Lmur 2016 TMB &bGanep Gauiliy Suiib
wopmitb TMB VISA GsuluyssLLb
EremLnéaLILIL BeTengl.

v meubur 2016 TMB pmwued Geuliys SHribd
EgemLDa&aLILIL(BeTeng).

Wugeufl 27 2017 Sledim SLp&e60oTL. S6ETOTLISENT
Gremeusms SM(LPsLILGSSLILL(BETENS.
1. GILDTEMLIED 6UMEDL.
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5) Chennai Corporation Property Tax (CCPT) Payment
through ATMs,

6) Institutional Fee Paymentthrough ATMs,

7) GreenPinfor ATM/Debit cards,

8) Online E-Term Deposit/ RD opening through Bank's
Web Portal,

9) TMB Store,

10) AEPS Payment,

11) TMB Speaks (offline App for Bank Services) and

12) Kissan Card.

v Launched the following Credit Cards & Debit Cards
on 22/03/2017;

TMB Titanium Credit Card,

TMB Platinum Credit Card,

TMB Titanium Debit Card,

TMB Business Debit Card,

TMB Titanium Contact less Debit Card &

TMB Platinum FX Multi Currency Travel Card
(Prepaid)

oA WN~

20.Awards/Ratings obtained by the Bank:

v" Our Bank has secured 2nd place in terms of number
of Branches activated & the number of NPS
applications mobilized.

v' Our Bank has secured 3rd best Bank at National
Level under Private Sector Category for the year
2015-16 instituted by State Forum of Bankers' Club,
Keralaon 11.12.2016.

v" Our Bank has been awarded as Best Private Sector
Bank by ABP News BF Sl awards on 14.02.2017.

v" Our Bank has won ASSOCHAM awards under the
following categories on 03.03.2017 for the year
2015-16:

» 'Winner' under Small Bank class - Agricultural
Banking category.

» 'Winner' under Small Bank class - Best Social Bank
category.

» 'Runner up' under Small Bank class - Government
Schemes category.

» 'Runner up' under Small Bank class - Priority
Sector Lending category

Rating:

During the financial year 2016-17, CRISIL renewed
the rating for the Certificate of Deposit programme of the
Bank for 21,000 crore as A1+ (indicating “Very Strong”
rating).

2. TMB eXlempeuneot Lievord 61FIsHSILD 6usdh (IMPS)

3. gneflwms Swmpdgbd (ATM) cpeod SiemL
&6be0ITLDED LI6TOTLD QLMD 6u5ES

4. VISA &iLemL ¢peod Contact Less Debit eusd

5. gneflums Swpdgb cpeod (ATM) egedrement
LDMB&T 65THEIeNT AFQSSHILD 6ussH

v 6. gnesllumid SWbBTLd cpedld Hled & e e
BmieueTmIGafe0T &l HLL600TLD AFQISHSILD 6UFSH

v 7.emdsb LweTLGSsSToed @ Spsdw  erevor
QUMIHEd  WOMID  LIDOLD  QFLUD  6uFs

v 8. Senemnugend euplins Beneeneulil] LDHMILD
QHMLT  eweullly SLLD OSMLBIGLD  6uss

9. TMB Store
10. AEPS eusd

1. TMB 8emevors Ly  Goemeu  &edeor
aImBFEFemel LMD 61FS

12.  efleusmuisenassnsor &L6OT S emL

SpBHTEDID  HLET  SlLenL.  WOMID  UbmI
Sl LemL 22.03.2017 & 61 M
SIBlWp&LILGSHSLILILBGETETSI.

1. TMB 6eueoreleusefll  &Leor SiLemL (Titanium
credit Card)

2. TMB  wueuer sLeor SlLemL  (Platinum credit
Card)

3 .TMB @euevoreleuerefl  upm) SitewmL (Titanium
Dedit Card)

4. TMB eueoofles ubm &itemL (Business Debit
Card)

5. TMB eeuevoreleusiterfl Contactless upm SiemL

6 TMB ueuemr SiLemL  (Platinum) _rr_r,
eFeeumeniie@ &LoLomeot Lwlevor SiemL  [(Travel
Card) FX Muticurrency Travel Card)]

20 aumid eunn edh&IS6T LHMILD LbBLISGS6T

mog emd GCuAlw @ueydur Herib (NPS)
6X6UOTEOOTLILIMRISET Sl low186D, 6an1£ Bemenael SHsLONS
Srrouded Capdlu Sietelled SpetoiLmeug SLHensL
Hlipsgiemensi.

bgl eumd 11.12.2016  Sledim)  2015-16LD
6)(BL élb GURIBWIN6NTT&ET &erLl LonBed LDedTmLD, Gaem
@GDLD seoflnt - glewm  eumiBuied epedToMD  HAmHs
eumBIBWINS eX(Hg SlefesLLLLgl.

BLDG  6ums  &m) é'r, ST 6UMIB&SHMT60T
elgpems ABP 61518 BFSI &g sﬁ]@amg; GULDTRIBWIS.
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21. Risk Management

The Bank has a proactive approach towards Risk
Management. Its risk philosophy involves developing
and maintaining a healthy portfolio within its risk
appetite and regulatory framework.

The Risk Management Architecture of the Bank
comprises an Independent Risk Management
Organizational structure at the Corporate level, Risk
Management Policies, Risk Measurement Tools and
Risk Monitoring and Management Systems. The Bank
has a well defined risk appetite statement and the
independent risk function ensures that the Bank
operates with its risk appetite framework.

The Board of Directors of the Bank is primarily
responsible for laying down risk parameters and
establishing an integrated risk management and control
system. The Board of Directors is supported by a Sub-
Committee of the Board known as the Risk
Management Committee of the Board (RMCB), which in
turn is supported by the Asset Liability Committee
(ALCO) and the Risk Management Committee of the
Executives (RMCE). The executive level Committees
are headed by the MD & CEO of the Bank. The Bank's
RMCB reviews its Risk Management policies and
recommends to the Board for approval. The Board also
sets out limits taking into account the risk appetite of the
Bank and the goals set.

CreditRisk:

The credit risk mechanism consists of policies and
practices that include mechanisms for risk identification,
risk measurement, risk grading/aggregation
techniques, reporting and risk control/mitigation
techniques, documentation, legal issues and
management of problem loans to protect asset quality
and ensure orderly growth and targeted risk adjusted
return on assets.

The Credit Risk Management policy along with
Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques &Collateral
Management Policy address the Credit Risk related to
lending. Credit Approving Authority, Prudential
Exposure Limits, Risk Rating System, etc., are used in
managing credit risk.

In an effort to migrate to advanced approaches for
credit risk, bank has migrated to system driven internal
rating using web based rating models solution acquired
from M/s.Crisil Risk & Infrastructure Solutions Ltd.

mbgl 6wk Association &hed SinflefsasiiuLrL
dm| eURIBSH6T eUenEHEHNET DS LOl&ES Felpsh 6URIS
oLy eflEens Cleuemgl. GLDEYLD HLOPEDLII 6URIS
BLD&B600TL. BTE0T 6Xl(HSISEmENLI ELIDMIETENSI.

efleusmu  eumBuleor Amlw eurmBser  Lflefieor
LD eubrl eLbmIeTengI.

dlw eumidBser flededr Sp HAnBs Fops
GUMRIBSHEHME0T GleUDMIMIILI ALIDMIETEMSI.

Olps B LMRIGEHSETET DOMILD  (LPeoTen)flemip
FIEODHEBES &HLOT EUPHIGeUHD Sl eURISH6T
Wrflefletr L) &pevorLmbd SLLb euDm)eTeTg.

EUIDYARIN G}

8y 18 &pevonged CRISIL &y SIS 6D
BLDGINRISHSNET  eweUlls FTemlsp SHrLb I1000
Gamewins Lgifiesiur@erengl. Goayd A1+ (L[S]@J'_F,g;
auellemwwnerg) eerm s WWHLEGLLD
GULDMRIBLILIL (B6TETSI.

21. 8L GLbedTetoTemLD

eumiBwneors &L Gbeonevoremibulledt  (LpedT
BLONRGHENS TNIGLPEODENI]  6DEHIUITETITB  EUHBEDSI.
RIS QUMEIG e eNSsErsE 2 LULGB SH0T6HE
@55 @b SHBrmeEdBwbnear Seonssmemel 2 (HeUTsHs
upmoflgg eumeuGs eunhIBUNET EGBTETEmSILIMELD,

GLDEOMEUOTEMLD  BLLEMIDLIL  QIp  &&HBTLDTE0T
8L GLeonevotemlD SlemLbLemL  O\&TevoTBaTengl. LT
GLoeoreTTemLD  G\EMETenS, SLIT  SleTeil®  HhedseT,
8L sevoanerofily LOMID Bieuns Slemly, L
CaMunBeensE 2 LULL  6URIE  GIFWIEDLIMLLR6060T
2 M 6FIIW 6URIBWINTETSH [HEOTS 6UEDTWIMNISSLILILL
8L Onsems WLOHMID  Fwndeoroneor  SLi
CIFLLIEDLIML LR6M60T 6\&M600T(B6TETS).

QGBRBmeHH ST  GLemesoTenLbemiL
Bnieysed SLGEUUBSSISHO, WO SLi  Slereysemer
GMDHH0 ShBemel eUmE SwsGeoTT G Lpeleor
(PSHE0TEmLD  OLMTMILLNGLD, [Brieuns & Lpeledr  glemevor
Gupeuneor L GLoenetITemD@G (LD  LDOMILD  C\FTHSI
eummILy & Spdweneu Brieuns SHESeTTHEBHS
slemevotL|fléleotment, Brieundsmer Bemeouded HewLELMILD
gl LIRISG6T eurRIBufeot Bireuns SuisEeoTT HemevemLbuied
meOLOLUMID eurslBufeor &L GLbedmesotemd &P SLi
GLpeOMEDITEMLD  E\BMETEmEEMW  QLILIHED — SarfiLILgiL 60T
SLTGLDeOMETITeNDEE — HTEOEUEDIWEND  SleMLDSHSHED
WOMID SiHD&ETET SnedT SMHD ShBWIEUDEDDILD
BrreusB&&eoTmeoT.

HLeT Lt

LT SLIT QFILILPemDWITETS Q1&M6Tems LDHMILD Fled
BEDL(PEDMEHEN6T C1SMET0TB SlemDESSLILILLE. Seubniled L
SlemLIMeTD &MevorLgl. SLi Sleney, L SILLGSHSISHED
WpempaeT, SLi SLBULBSHSISD (Penms6T. SLiT Slnflbens
S eU6TITLILI(B S &1 6D. FrLU g emenTmeT  ShdWwemel
2 _6enL&BWSMGLD
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Market Risk:

Asset Liability Management Policy and Investment
Policy aid the management in mitigating the Market Risk
in the Banking and Trading books. The overall
responsibility of managing the market risk lies with the
Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) of the
Bank. The Committee meets regularly and decides on
the size, mix, tenor, pricing and composition of various
assets and liabilities. It primarily does identification,
measurement, monitoring and management of liquidity
and interest rate risk. It uses tools such as Ratio
analysis, Gap analysis reports - Structural liquidity,
Dynamic Liquidity, Interest Rate Sensitivity etc. Value at
Risk (VaR), Duration Gap Analysis etc. for management
of liquidity and interest rate risks. The fundamental
focus is to add value both from the earnings perspective
and from the economic value perspective.

Operational Risk:

Comprehensive systems and procedures, internal
control system and audit are used as primary means for
managing Operational Risk. The Bank has putin place
a Board approved Operational Risk Management Policy
based on Reserve Bank /BASEL guidelines. All new
products introduced by the Bank pass through a 'New
Product Approval Process' in order to identify and
address operational risk issues, apart from evaluation of
otherrisks.

Implementation of New Capital Adequacy Framework:

The Bank has implemented the New Capital
Adequacy Framework under Basel-ll as per the
timelines prescribed by RBI. While the Bank, to start
with, has adopted Standardized Approach for Credit
Risk, Standardized Duration method for market risk and
Basic Indicator approach for Operational Risk, the
initiatives so far undertaken / envisaged are geared
towards enabling the Bank to comply with the standards
set out for more advanced capital measurement
approaches in the Basel-Il Accord.

The Bank has also developed a framework for
quantifying the Pillar-2 risks and has put in place a
comprehensive Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) framework in line with RBI guidelines,
which has been validated by external agencies

sLeoTEMLLLET  QBMLAYemLW  &L6dT  SLewd
GMDLUSHG &LET SpUSHH GS6WDLIY  [HILLIMRISEIBL60TIT60T
sLe0T &L GLpemevoremld  Gl&MeTems  LDOHMILD  L6toTemiL
GLoeorevotemip  G\GMETeNs  OTUDDLLGEDS. &L6T &L
Brieudsgedled &Lt QUUSED SiBany Stemwoliy, 6IGeus
eeuefiLLn® eupby, &Lm HIIE Slewmly  SpBuwleme
2 LBWBLILGSSLILGSTDEDT.  6URISWINETE & 6me0orLILD
SiigliLiewLufleoreor G QBTGSBEW6N E\BTE0ITB &6u0fl6n
cpeold  AINBL  (WPpewmES — mHlediLg.  Ssmameot
esmpleomLrub M/s.Crisil Risk & Infrastructure Solutions
Ltd., BnieuesSL1b Smhe eunmIsLILL LS.

&hems SLi

MUy S600T6ES LSosmiseled euRBUNeT &Hens
@l_son;r SOOLILSDS. Q&rrg;@ eummiuy Breunss esmeTend
LDOMILD @g,sﬁl_(Bs QBTeTeNs SpBILenel HleneuorLflBemmeor.
RLEOTHS EHOS SLewy Biieuds@Ld UMDILL curkiéuieor
QEFTSHS Qun@]uq Breunes G(LpemeY &rrrr;r;g;gj @1;5,5
SPOUMEDTZI QULDSELDITE Fnl' LIRIGET &nllp S6T6Y, STED, HEVLIL,
6lemed  LDMOMILD usn(%a.l[gj Q&FTHE QLTI Qg,rr@uqessmm
@1966)% Qeu.lésom)arr @Iaa@@snrrsmgj SleMLIMENLD &HTeT)|SH6D,
G&6d. sevUBMETNGHSHED LOMILD [Biewid Breuss5e0.
el ey SLi SpBwueuhemn  (PHETEDLDWINS
uesofwnpmiBeiimeor.  Sppsner  smelsenns  eMBsLD
usLUMLe|, SenLaeuefl LGLILMLIE| rl&ens &L L enLDLILITET
Briem,  wmoid  Brieww,  euslp 6By 2 evonTSmeEdT
SpBweuDemD 2 LGUTBGBMTDET.  Soweu  SleWeDTHS60T
SllglILIEDL. &HEU6DTLD, (LPETGEDTMITEESTENT QUBLOMEDILD FFL(B&edle0T
DS DODID  PETGETMTESTET  FLPSWIMD  LDSLIBLILLD
2 WINBgIeUE SHGLD.

eFweoum(B SLi

eFweun-G &L BrreunssHed.  efifleureor
SiemLOLILE6T LODHMILD HEDL(PEDDSET. s L BLLIML Q60T
SiewIDLIL| LDHNID Hevolibens SHBILIEMEU (LPSHEOTEMLDUINE
o erengl. unmps Mamey  eumid  womib  BASEL
SpBweunmledr  UPBM(BHEOEEWET  SHLILIEHLUIMTSHE
615 IT600TL asweurr® 8L  @eomesoremiDs
QBMeTemsIINETSl  6umIBueor GLDeOME0ITemIDE & (Lpelen
MEUBSLILLB QLILISHED SleflesULL(BeTengl. ks QI:PGDLb
ABWpsILUBSSLILGLD LB  6IUMIHLSEBSETET  LDHM
SLiisemen  LDALIG Q&u_len(‘&g,r@ Q&u.l&)urn.@ 8L
Ly &emeUTBEDEILILD  SHMLIIMENLD  STEUoTEYLD  LDDHMILD
asfwiL@EsSsab YSw swmiliy QULSED 6FWedpemn
cLpeoLD QLIS SlefissLILLB HenermLILBGSDE!.

Lmened 2 edsHeT SILedLI(BE 5560

GURIBWIMTEOTEH LIMeed 2607 LI LBl eLped&H 6ot
g,smsoﬂsmpq 6UEMI(LPEDMEEWET  SHLDEOLBSHSIL6TEMS).
BLEOIGHETOT  BLi&Eh6S BeoveoluGsHw
S GLPEODEOWILILD,  EFHEDHESHMOT  SLTBEDSHES
BemeOLLGSHSI &HT60H OSMLITEFS (LPemMEMIL|LD LDHMILD
QFWID(LPEDDEEHHSTET  SLTHEBHS —SlQLILIEHLSHEm6IT
SLRBHM(BLD SIE00)G(LPEODEDIILLD, 6UhIE SDeOLBGHS
SpublsE  Osnenear  eumRSuler  (WPWDHEASET.
GURIBWIMGOTEH LMeed 2 @UUBSLILIYR ghUBSSLILLL,
GwbLUEHSLULULL  @peds er &l er el B
SN GSWPMDHEHHETET 6 6M I U6 D & 60 6T
SeOLIIRUILSHES 256 Bng!.

GUMBIBWIMEOTH  UMemed 2  @UUBSLILIR
ghuGSsILLL,  GLUGSSILLL  epeseor  Slerel®
SN GSWPWDEEHHSHTET 66w [T W 6D D& 6 6
SOLLILLILSDNG 2 56 SDE!.
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In order to shift the matrices of measurement from
traditional volume based measures to risk based
measures, bank has implemented a robust and
scientific fund transfer pricing system.

The Bank strives to provide maximum returns to its
stakeholders while maintaining a solid capital base to
support the risks associated with its diversified
business. It has a strong Common Equity Tier 1 capital
adequacy ratio in order to support the execution of its
growth plans and business strategies, while meeting the
regulatory capital requirements at all times.

Strengthening the Resilience: Basel-lll Initiatives

Basel-1ll guidelines which are a comprehensive set
of reforms, to strengthen the regulation, supervision and
risk management of the banking sector were issued by
Reserve Bank of India in May 2012. Liquidity Risk
Management and Basel-lll framework on Liquidity
Standards were also issued in July 2012.

The capital standards and new capital buffers will
require banks to hold more capital and higher quality of
capital than under the current Basel Il rules. The new
leverage ratio introduces a non-risk based measure to
supplement the risk-based minimum capital
requirements. Banks in India are well capitalized and
are already above the minimum prescribed ratios. As
Basel-lll transition is phased in over a longer timeframe
upto 2019, the pressure for immediate capital infusion
may not be there.

The new liquidity ratios under Basel-Ill framework
on Liquidity Standards ensure that adequate funding is
maintained. The Bank is complying with RBI guidelines
in computing and reporting the Liquidity Coverage Ratio
(LCR) and is awaiting final guidelines for Net Stable
Funding Ratio (NFSR) norms in the Indian context.

Our Bank has been proactively conducting internal
assessment of adequacy of capital, liquidity ratios and
leverage ratios in accordance with Basel-lll standards.
The Bank's capital position is in compliance with Basel-
Il expectations, well above the minimum requirements.
The bank expects to make a smooth transition to Basel-
Il standards, as per RBI's timelines.

eumIBWINeoTEl LN6de0iT 2 SLITEemen SlenellBeusnETS
6(H EUEDT(LPEDMEMILI 2_(heunsajeTengl. Gayd LMps Mfsmeu
aumiBufeor NS PeMEHETETLIY @IH  (LP(LDEMLDWIMEDT  eLPEDSHE0T
senefiemmey WLWEITEWEDD 616D T L e M & 60 61
2 _meunsdwjetengl. &g 6evefll BmeuetTriGeTmed GEMTSHEm6nT
QFLWLUL(G 2 mid aFLIWlLL (BeTeng).

61 1Bl & LI IT 60T &I umy b ul w b meor &l e 61l 60T
SlplILiemLUT606WLDHES HewL(pemmaeedlpha SLLm@aerfeor
SlPLILIEDLUNDEMLDBES [HEML(LPEDDEEDHSHES LDTNIEUSDHNS 6(H
2 _mifwineot LbOHMILD 6MlEhEhMeDTLILLTaULDTEDT [BHDMHM  6Xlemed
BIT6TOTIL! (LPemDEMI! SHLDEDLIBSHSIL|ETETE.

eurRIBWINTETE SHeotgl GeumurL ewmuny SLisensE
ShHIauns,  eUEdlemLDWITET  (PEOSHEOT SIS HENsHenS
uprofluuGsn(. 6 Rl & U 601 P HEOLLITITENE E1h & & LD
SIFsLRITEDT  OMUSHMS  &TELUSDES  UTEUGSEDS.
eumRBWITeTE  SLLDmeT eunsumEG Tier-1 cpeoser &&H

diggems LgMLMSHE e&TeoG — eumBuleT  euemTEs
BLLRISEHSGLD, ewmuny 2 585EpHGLD  ShsTeuns
2 _6ierngl.

Umered 3 (Lpulm&l&en

urened 3 NP LedmEET, EURIBESH HleWmEW
6UEDlemLDLILIBSHSIUSDGLD,  HEOOTHMETOLLSDGSLD  LDHMILD
8L GenetTen&SNSa D, UMgs Merel  eumiSwine
2012 G webL eeueluiLlULL @b  (LPLPEDLDUITEOT
EnSmesonGLd.  uvemolipss — Gemiun@ser &L
Georevoremd  LDOMILD  Lmeved 3 NP LpemmaarfiedTLi,
uetoTLILLp&E Camun@aer eeuefiuiliurL g

YBWw cpeosent bmlpenmaefeotule  snELITgieTen
umeved 2  eNFwpenmsefedrLle — Hevor& S L LILIGLD
POSHOHMSHE  SMLIQEID,  HHLDTEOT  ELPEOSHEDTLD
amBsErsE® CoHemauluGang. SnH eunRSseT LBl
efdpemmaefieorue, SLi  SlpluenLulsd CoemeuliLGLD
GODHSLULE eNBsmesemer el OlFswns  gnaerGel
emEUSFIGTENGl. Limened 3 eflf(LpemnsEhed LDMMIEUSDETET
&Me Sleme)y 2019 Shevor(® eUemT SBLILISTED 2 L 60TIUINES
CLPELSEUTLD ST BEUSDSHTEOT SH(LPSHSHLD S6DDHS (HHBDETH.

umeved 3 epOlwpenpuleorue yBw  Biemwn
eNdBsmseT Gungibnerr B eweUSHHLLEDS 2 M
QFLSDG. 6URIBWIMEOTS [HLD [HILIDSTE0T  LIGTOTLIL|LDES
efldésd oMb HBep Beweowner [BF elBs5ms
semLUfguusDaETer  ungsd  Merel  eurm&Sueor
NS (pemmaEenen erSTEHISS|GTENS.

[BLDG| GUMRIBUIMEOTS| (LP6OT [HLEUIRSEDSIINTES LITE6D
3 ampplpenmaefieotule cpeger EHemed,  LIGTOTLILLDSES
NEFHMmIGET LDOHMILD LIMEIE cLPEOSTSSDGSLD &L 60)IEELDTe0T
6URIBUNEOT cLPEDSHETT NBHLD Limeroed 3 6X&(LPeDMEETEOTLIR
CopemeuLBLD  GeODHHULE  Slememer el LSl&
OlfsonaCeu 2 _eatengl. LTS Mamel eumid BrisvorulsgieTem
&M  Slemey&@G6T,  eUmBWINeTg,  Umewe 3
effpemmaeflednile LDMNEUSDES 2_MiE Q&BTeooTBETENS!.

(17]
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22. Compliance Function

The Bank has a robust policy on compliance and the
related reports are reviewed by the Board and the Audit
Committee of the Board periodically. An executive of the
Bank in the rank of Deputy General Manager has been
designated as the Chief Compliance Officer and in the
rank of Chief Manager, a Company Secretary has been
appointed. As per the policy, all the regulatory, statutory
and internal compliances are being monitored and
periodical reports are placed before the competent
authority.

Bank gives utmost importance to compliance with
all the applicable statutory provisions and regulatory
guidelines issued by the RBI and we assure you that the
board of directors will leave no stones unturned to
ensure its effective compliance.

23. Compliance with the provisions of Companies Act,
2013

The Bank has already complied with the various
provisions of the Act to the extent they are applicable to
the Bank.

DIRECTORS AND OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL

The Board of the Bank as on March 31, 2017
consisted of 13 Directors. During the year under review
(2016-17) and as on date the composition of Board was
as under:

22. eumd Kleoumn BenmGeumm GeuevoTiou Iemeuse :

eumld Weotumnm BeomGeunm GeuevoTiouiemEEH6T
UDDIL QHTETens QETEND NEUSBHHEDS. SWSHEBT
Gpeuned  gflwmeor CrusHed SlMflsenaseT QUDLILILB
M| Splile) FLWILILGSEDS. EURISUNCT SHleweoor GILME
Geoment UFeNlufed 2 _eitenr 2wt SiFsmfl Sgmameor
(pSeTemD  SiFsMilnseyd, Hewedemd GLbedmenT SI

aflensuliad Bwblssuur@Gererni.  GayLb
BmieuetieSeor  QFweOmendhld  BulILblésLULIL (BET6meoTHT.
auRSuleT  Q&TeTemaUTeTLY  QLPHIGIPEDD  eNga6T
guLUueuimeor  eNFpemmas6eT  LbOHMILD  eurkiBudleor
2 6eNMmihe  G&MeTemsufedtule  eumid  NeTUDm
GouevoTiQUIEMEUGET  HEOOTEMEUNGHELILLB — SIHMDET6oT
ONfBensEET  HGHSH ~— OHEMETUTILSHET  (LPEDTEDTTED

eweusEHLILGEDS. SnHw Mamel eumd eeuefuilGeter
QUNTBHSID FUL eNSLpemma&6T LDOHMID 6(LPMHIELPEmD
aflen GoeoseT SeusssSNG — 6uRE  Lsa|b
WPHBWSFHIOUD OSTRHENG. SWHSHTHET GLP Olgeor
LwgnieTen Beturaasems 2 MIBLILGSS 6HS SDSEBLD
el L G el L m g & 6T M B M m & 6
2 RIS Eh&E&2_NISlefessGmiLD.

23.s1b6levfl FLLLD 2013601 L HedTUmnm Geuevoriouieme

QURIBWITEITEH HEOTHGL  QUNBHSID LOGaum)

srLeNgselleoruly ghosearGeu 618 W 6D &emear
BenmGeunmlL6Tengi.
SWHGHTH6T HMILD 1 s Brieuns SlHsmfl

s 31, 2017 Sledrm)| eurmiBufedr eumflwib 13
BWHGHTHemeT  OBMeooTBeTenSl.  Splle) — HTe0SHHE0
(2016-2017) Gwadb SetmeuenT  G(peeor
&L LemLDLIN6OT SLp 2 _6TemeuT&6.

S.No/ Name Designation Particulars
1 | Thiru H.S.Upendra Kamath MD & CEO Majority sector (Banking)
2 | Thiru S. Annamalai Non Executive Part-time Chairman Minority Sector
3 | Thiru S. R. Aravind Kumar Director Minority Sector
4 | Thiru V. V. D. N. Vikraman Director Minority Sector
5 | Thiru B. S. Keshava Murthy Independent Director Majority sector (Banking)
6 | Thiru A. Shidambaranathan Independent Director Majority sector (Accountancy)
7 | Thiru P. C. G. Asok Kumar Director Majority Sector (SSI)
8 | Thiru K. Nagarajan Director Majority sector (Law, Agriculture & Rural Economy)
9 | Thiru B. Vijayadurai Director Majority sector (Accountancy)
10| Thiru P. Yesuthasen Independent Director Majority sector (Banking)
11| Thiru K.N.Rajan Director RBI Nominee
12| Dr K.V.Rajan Director RBI Nominee
13| Tmt S.Ezhil Jothi Additional Director Majority sector (Corporate Law)
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All Directors, other than Managing Director and CEO
are non-executive Directors on Board.

Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
and other Key Managerial Personnel

The Board of Directors at their Meeting held on
March, 27, 2017 co-opted the Smt.S.EzhilJothi as a
director. Also, Board approved the appointment of Mr.
Prakash Chandra Panda as Company secretary in the
place of Mr. Deepak Sankunni, who resigned on 8th
September, 2016.

Appointment of independent directors

As per the requirements of Section 149 (4) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Bank is required to have at
leasttwo independent directors on its Board.

The Bank has three independent directors, viz. Shri
B. S. Keshava Murthy, Shri A. Shidambaranathan and
Shri P. Yesuthasen. All these independent directors
were appointed by the members at the 93rd Annual
General Meeting held on January 29, 2016.

1. Shri B. S. Keshava Murthy to hold office upto
January 28, 2019. Shri Keshava Murthy is a retired bank
executive; his qualifications are M.Sc. and CAIIB Part|.

2. Shri A. Shidambaranathan to hold office upto
January 28, 2019. Shri Shidambaranathan is a
Chartered Accountant. He is also the Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Board.

3. Shri P. Yesuthasen to hold office upto
November 25, 2017. Shri P. Yesuthasen is a former
executive of Reserve Bank of India, specializing in
foreign exchange.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board comprises all the
three independent directors and the two RBI nominees.
It's constitution is in compliance with the requirements of
Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
comprises four members including two independent
directors and two other directors and is in compliance
with the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies
Act2013.

Brieuns SWs@SHT LLOHMID SHewedewld [Bieuns sl
560y  OlewerHE @ BWEGBHTHEBLD  CFWEFTIN
BWSGSHITEH6T ShEUMTEHET.

BWEGmHI%H6T LbHmD 19 B Brieuns Slfsmflesefleor
&(Lpefiied LommmLD

BWHGDHT&HET  GLPeUeTg Lomig 27, 2017
ST HEWLELDD Snl L HH60, QdH Senevor SIS HINS
Smt.S.aeGandeaw GCsrHasGHIHI6TeTS.
B Npsneg &HHTT LMEOOTLTeNEY, QFLLLDLUT 8 &b
Gsd 20166d predevIDN QFILS B .SLS FO1S60Te0NHEES
udeons BmieueTHEHOT OFWeOMETTTE BevoTuiSHS (LD
SIBIESMILD CULDRISUIS!.

HE0T60NFeMFWIMEOT EUISEHTSH6T BUILDEUTLD :

BwsGnT Bnewer sULb 2013 Wfley 149(4)
61 Coemeauaseafierye aumisE SiGer GLpeied &emDHSS
& 1y evo1 (B & 60T 60l & 60 & Wi IT 60T S W& G 60T T & 6l
& 55BeueroT(BLD.

GURIBUN6D  epeTm 5 60T 6Dfl & 6 & Wi IT 60T
Busgniser o eteneri.  Hib.B.S.CaFeucpiss.
Bm.A.dgbuppnser. Bam.P.gssnser Spdw
HevtevfiFenawinenr SwisGmiser (gevteufl 29, 201660
BLBS) 93-&hb  eUGBLMHET  OUNE  Sall§Hed
BUILBSBSLILILLTITE&ET.

10 8.B.S.Caseucpisd-28 gevteurfl 2019 euemy
8uugeuied Biiunt. Hm.B.S.Caseucpisd Sleurser
Qlley eubp eumd Bieund, Sewrs s5& M.Sc.,
wond CAIIB (ues-1)

2) Ba.A.AebLpBseT-28 gevteurll 2019  euemy
8uugeufed Bieiiuni. . A.ASDUDBIHET  SleuTseT
6@ ULLU &6OUTHSBTENT. SleUT SHeoolbensds G Lpeileor
HEMEDEUTHLD SHeUMTT.

3) Bm.P.gsgngenr-25 meubunr 2017 euemy
8uugseiufed Bleuuni. Bab.P.gssnser Sleurssr LTgHw
flsrmel eurmIBuledT (Ppevreotmat Brieuns OBl Sheunt.
(SipBw eFemalstoiiuiied fAmLiL euDmer).

SHENSEnS GLp

seofiaems G  eunflusded  epeorm)
HeoTevfiFenFLITenT SWsHESHTsH6eT HmID &pevor® rfgmel
6uBIE  [BUWILDEOTHMDTHEBLD 2 6Teneont. &he Slewibliy
Bmieueor gL 2013 Uifley 1786 Coemeusersd
SeouTHELNG 2_6T6NF).

uflib&lemy LDHMILD ST 18

uflbgieny OO 2oBuisESpeded Srevor®
SeotevfiFemFwIerT  SweGmiseT  OMID  Syevor®
SWHsGHTHeT 2 UL [BIei® 2 milferisenerns
esnevor(BeTengl. &g sbeuenll UL 2013 Wfley 178
8eir CHemEUHEHHE S6TITHSHLDNG 2 _6T6g.
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Internal Auditors

The Bank is required to appoint an internal auditor
as per the requirements of Section 138, who should
either be a chartered accountant or a cost accountant,
or such other professional as may be decided by the
Board to conduct internal audit of the functions and
activities of the Bank.

As the Bank already had concurrent auditors,
internal inspecting officers, compliance department etc.
pursuant to the various requirements applicable to a
banking company, the requirement of internal audit was
already being complied with.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and
Stakeholders' Relationship (SR) Committee

The Bank has constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee of the Board in pursuance of
the requirements of Section 135 and a Stakeholders'
Relationship Committee of the Board in pursuance of
the requirements of Section 178. The CSR Committee
met 2 times during the year under review and the SR
Committee metonce.

The Bank's CSR initiatives usually involve setting the
foundation of various programs at a small scale to learn
from on-ground realities, getting feedback from society
and then putting an enhanced sustainable model to
ensure maximum benefit to the society. For this reason,
during the year, the Company's spend on the CSR
activities has been less than the limits prescribed under
Companies Act, 2013. The CSR activities are scalable
which coupled with new initiatives that may be
considered in future, moving forward the Company will
endeavor to spend on CSR activities in accordance with
the prescribed limits.

Woman Director

The Bank is required to appoint a woman director
pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 (1).
Smt.S.Ezhil Jothi was co-opted as a director by the
Board in its meeting dt.27.03.2017.

24. Board/Committee meetings

The Bank's Board met 24 times, and its sub-committees
including the Audit Committee held a total of 65
meetings during the year 2016-2017.

961560018 6m & UITITITE 6T

Wifley 138 CoemeuserfleotLiy  6umd 66
UL L WISSH600TSHEHT Sl6D60S] 60H SIL&& LDSLIL| SH6T0TSHESTEIT
Slebedg  DOHD  OFHMPlOWeDD  FMMTHS  HLDDT
2_eTseuolisenasnengns Bullslss Geusoor®BD — 6redrmiLD
uRIBUNeT QFWIOLNB&ET  OMID  [BLEUPHEDHSET
2 _aTperolieens GFWILLGLD eredimid &pedled (Lpigey
QFIWLIWILILIL LG

2 o1 Hevolsenawneniaefieor CHemeusGamL
aURSUIeD gn&eTGel SHeuollSHenEHWITETTEET, 2 6TSblIe)
Ofsnleer, Sevssgenn HBCWINT  2_eTeMHmed
CaupurL  GCoemeusenld  gnseTGer  SevoreHLd
QELIWIILIL (B6TerTg).

BMI6U60T Felp&LIOLIMMILIL] &HLD LDMHMILD LIBIGSIITEH6fe0r
2_MeEY(LDemM (GHLP

Urfley 135 elfsemer HNeTUDOMILD 6UEMSUTED
GURIBIITETHI BMIEUETT &Felps QUMMILIL &P GQ60TemDI|LD
Wifley 178601 effsmemen  NeOTUOMILD  GUEMSUT6D
URIGSNIT&Eefledl 2 meywpemn &P  RE0TemDILLD
gnUBSSWE. SeleuBLES6d BmieuetT &elps QLIMMILIL
GLpeunents Spevor(d (PewDWLD  URIGSNITgerer
2 DOPEDGY QB  WPEODWD  EHESSeTENE!.

BmieuesT  FepEOUMMILIL &L  6ILOLTLPSILD
GeumuLL  HLLM&GemeT 618 Mevor (B 6 dh 6U F 6D
WPpoeTemDWIng  Sspdngl.  fnl  asmuledled  &FHS
BLLMmI&EREE Chreurs@en  asaoTm  HeOTH
shoHgIBEHmeT  CalL®B Ssn® S5&meSMT  Gumed
SIBSLILIQUITEDT [FEOTEMLDSHEMET FeLPESBMNG GULDHIGSMDSI.
8hs Shevor® BmieUeTEFLLLD 201360 GMILULILLemGeTL
GODaUTHEGel  Felpd  [FLENRSGEDSHSH6MND Q&6
QFILIWILLLLE. Usl SHleusssSHeor cpeold  LledTeudsLd
&e0MmRIG6red Bmieueor QMmUY S  Sisedr
CoHemeusEmaN (LP(LDEMLDIINTE GIFIIL|LD.

Q\L600T SIS GSBIT

Wfley 149(Medr LI euEIE @@ 6L SWSHGHEDT
BuipeotLd el GeueoorBLD.

Bmd.e1Ple0Cend BwsGnims 27.03.2017 Siem)
BEDLOLDD L'l 5560 CHMHESBHSLILLLIT.

SWSGHTGLD LDHMILD FHI60600TE@E (LD Fnl L MRIS6T

2016-2017__&pevoriged  aumiBuiledt SWHSHISLW 24
(PEMDILILD FHIEW6TOT GH(LPSHEET 65 (LPEMDU|LD Sl |ETEMSI.
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Directors Name No c_)f Board N9 of Board No of Qommittee No <_)f committee

meetings held | meetings attended | Meetings held meetings attended

Shri S. Annamalai 24 22 13 8

Shri S. R. Aravind Kumar 24 23 38 38

Shri P. C. G. Asok Kumar 24 22 27 21

Shri B. S. Keshava Murthy 24 22 32 26

Shri K. Nagarajan 24 24 24 24

Shri K.N.Rajan 24 24 18 18

Shri K.V.Rajan 24 24 19 19

Shri A. Shidambaranathan 24 24 49 49

Shri B. Vijayadurai 24 24 35 34

Shri V. V. D. N. Vikraman 24 23 26 23

Shri P. Yesuthasen 24 23 28 27

Smt S.Ezhil Jothi 1 1 1 1
25.Annual General Meetings 25.6UdRLIT OUIN&IS oL LTBIG6IT

The bank has not been able to hold its 94th AGM (which
should have been held on or before September 30, 2016
and the time was extended by the Registrar of
Companies, Chennai up to December 31, 2016) as the
bank's clarificatory petition moved before the Madras
High Court is yet to be heard by it. Bank has advised the
legal counsel to get an order from the High Court
expeditiously, to hold AGM of the bank.

26. Corporate Governance

The Bank's Corporate Governance philosophy is woven
around its total commitment to ethical practices in the
conduct of its business, while striving hard to enhance
the stakeholders' value. Your Bank has endeavored to
adopt the best corporate governance practices,
wherever possible. It also adheres to the principles of
transparency in transactions, disclosure of information,
integrity, social accountability and statutory compliance.
The Bank has followed the directions and guidelines
issued by RBI from time to time regarding Corporate
Governance.

It has also complied with the various requirements of the
CompaniesAct, 1956 and the Companies Act, 2013 with
regard to corporate governance, wherever possible.

The Bank has set up the following committees of the
Board for focused governance in the important
functional areas and for proper control of the affairs of
the Bank.

94eug QUGBLMBET LTSS ol lH0s
aumBwned BLHS Sweeflsdemed (OUNH & (LDEUTEOTSI
30.09.2016&& (WpedT [BLES  (PRSSLILILLRIHES
GeuetoT(BLD.  BMICUETHDEOT  LIBEUTEmEDOTLILD  SHMeTeoT
Gpdemiws 31.12.2016 euewy [BLigdgleTeng). &g
SLOUMBSLDNET  6uUmIBUfNeOT 6lenéads LDeT) — 61F60T6m6nT
o wmbd aTDSHed HTHHD OFLWNILLEG SedTenid
N&MIeme00TeHE  6UIMDED 2 _6iTeNg). eUMRIBWITEOTS)
TBGW BLEEBNE BEDTSSNBHE Sleiod
2 _55HI6| 6UNEUSNHES 6URBUNeT &L  6u6daeDTTlLLD
Sifle|nISSu|eTens.

26. &P GLpbevmevoremLD

6uRle  (GLDeDMeTOTEMD  SHHSHIGULD  LIBIGSNTHle0T
PlenL SiFafles seTons  (WPpuhd  eFWLSIETenS.
GaIld SiHeT 6euetTlls HLHMSUND 2 _6T6M  QLDEHS
BEDL(APEDDEET  SIHEOT  (LPLPEWLDWIMEDT  SATLILIGTOfLIL]
SOOI 1960T60TLILIL (B6TENSI. 2 _RIGET 6UMRIS 6TMRIGEE0EDMLD
WG SImIeseeND Fnbs BnieueT Shebensuier

HEDL(PpeOMEmeT  NeotuDm  6lUudp  puwhFluied
FOULRGBHSSH. &  euettis  [HLEURSEDHHET,
SHEeULEmeT  GleuafulBsed,  QIHEMWLLLTG — Feps

eummiy  sULeN@semen  HeOLLIRHSHH ShBweunriled
GleuEILILIEDLILITET G1&MeTenSHSHemen LNeTUDMIBME. 6URIH
Bmieuetr  Spepensuied SleueuliGung  EULPMHISLILIEBLD
flerel eumduienr QBMBIpPewMEST  LDHMILD
QULPIBML (BSev&erfe0TLIR QFUIOLIBSBDSI.

Ged BmieuesT ShEmensuied BmieueT &LLLD
1956 OMID BnieueTssLLD 20136@ &eroTéaHLDIi
uedBeum| ETHHHSMIGEMET OFIIFIETONSI. 6UMRIS (PSS
QFWIOLN.( LGSH6fed aumd BLalgbenasafed Frilwimer

HEUGTLD  CFUISTHOUSDSLD  LOMID  SLGLLITLEDL
sewLIRlugDE LD L9l 607 6 (B LD & (P & & 6 6T
SlemLDSFI6T6NMEI.
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The Bank has taken various steps as may be necessary
to attain higher levels of corporate governance
standards by implementing the various mandatory and
non-mandatory requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 in this regard, including constitution and
reconstitution of various Committees, formulation of
various policies and codes. The Bank, even though an
unlisted entity, shall also strive to meet the requirements
of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, wherever possible.
The Bank shall make all efforts to protect and facilitate
exercise of shareholders' rights and also to facilitate
increased shareholders' participation.

7
QIRBWINEDTE G BLH®S NS PemmEemern
SIDOLGSHFIUSDENE  [BHIeUETEsLLLD 20138 6dTLiR

Weotupm  Gewevorigws LOGEUM|  [BLEUREEDSHEHEDET
QFWOLBSS eUBEDNS. Ssnens LeGeun| &LpeSHemeI
SlemDHH  OHBTETemHEHMETL|D  elFsemariyLd
gOLGSHSW|6TeNGI. CURBIBWITEITH LIMBIE SHens LILIuiedled
8Libeupeisbened  etetipnead SEBI  eupmigwpemn
FULLD (BLemD  uLlpuied oMb  CHemeusemern
QeuefilILGES6D) 2015860 &HevoTB6Ten 6B (LPEmDEHEM6IT
HetTUphMIeUSDE (WPWDE QFILS eUBHEDS. EURISWITETS
LUmRIGSNIT&efleor 2 flemLb&emen LMSISMILSDELD LDDHMILD
umiGsnrreefieor uUmRGaspenU  SFsfLIUSDELD
6T606DMENIGLDMEDT (LPILIDFHEMETLLD TBSHSI SUBSBDSI.

27.1ssue of Equity shares

The Board of directors in their meeting held on
26.05.2016 allotted the Bonus share at the ratio of 500:1
to the equity shareholders, whose name appear in the
list of member as on 25.05.2016 except to those
shareholders which are (i) Disputed (ii) Deceased (iii)
Classified under Section 126 of the Companies Act.

S.No| Gupeieor G
1| Breunss Semenes G
S.No., Name of the Committee 2 | sseued QSMAEELL 6FLeD SLEGWD

1 Management Committee 3 | sewlsmas W
2 | Information Technology Strategy Committee 4 | QeweunLhD SLETEEET GEUEMEISED GLp
3 | Audit Committee 5 | Gumslp GeusmedasT HEPLALDT GUETIENILD GEUGMEIISED ELp
4 | NPA Monitoring Committee 6 | ampsmawnenias Csames G
5 | Fraud Monitoring Committee 7 | welgeust Goemsimemos G
6 Customer Service Committee 8 | QumE pLasms Gy (@dsmsgrsarar CawanLiE)
7 | HRM Committee 9 | 8L Gueneamed G
8 | Disciplinary Committee (Appellate Authority for Officers) 10 | Buiemd HmIb 2B isEp
9 | Risk Management Committee 11 | &eps OUMMIILETTEY G
10 | Nomination and Remuneration Committee 12 | URGSEET 2 DEjPD L
11 | Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 13 | um@ wmpnb G (29.04.2016 1pgeb)
12 | Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 14 | peeismsunear BLSEHTEN GL
13 | Share Transfer Committee ( w.e.f 29.04.2016) 15 | epwsen SrLESW
14 | Independent Directors Committee 16 | Bonewh Bapaid Swbué Gegssns sLameiasfer Bamiey SLbew
15 | Capital Planning Committee
16 | Review of Willful Defaulters Committee

27. briemLD (FLOLIMIE) LIRS 6ULDIRIGHSHED

G 26 2016 SiM HWLOUDD SWESHITSH6T

Sl LeBd 500 : 1 ete0in eNBHHH0 2erbHLILIMRIGS6T
LURIGSMITEEhHE® @&HIGSULLLE OHMID G 26 2016
Sl 2 minfeort  ULluiedled 2 6fTem  QLILIT&ET
201380  GOLULGaTeT
8mihs CGumer WOHMIWD
UemsLILGSHSLILLBETEN LRIGSHTITSET ST Sleneorsg

&LD6\LI60f & 6IT FLLLD

Fnem&s G,

UMRIGSTIMTHEHSHGSLD 6ULDMBISLILILL &I.
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28. Statutory Auditors

The Board of Directors has decided to recommend the
appointment of M/s. Maharaj N R Suresh and Co.,
Chartered Accountants, Chennai as the Statutory
Central Auditors of the Bank for the year 2017-18, to
Reserve Bank of India. Their appointment is subject to
the approval of members at the Annual General
Meeting.

They have confirmed their eligibility to be so appointed
in terms of Section 141 of Companies Act, 2013.

29. Comments on Auditors' Report

The Notes on Accounts and the Significant Accounting
Policies referred to in the Auditor's Report and forming
part of the annual accounts and the references made by
the Auditors in their Report are self-explanatory. The
Auditors have not made any observations or adverse
comments warranting any explanation on the part of the
Board as referred to in Section 134 (3) (f) of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

30. Directors' Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(5) of the
Companies Act 2013, itis hereby confirmed that

i. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

ii. your directors have selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Bank at the end of the financial year and of
the profit and loss of the Bank for that period;

iii. yourdirectors have taken proper and sufficient care
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provision of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Bank and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. your directors have prepared the annual accounts
ona'going concern'basis;

v. your directors have devised proper systems to
ensure compliance in the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

28. FLLLILLT6ULDIT60T 860018 6m&UIT6TTE6T

BWsGDHTHEeT G 2017-2018 601 eurRiBufedr
sLLLLTeuDNeT eSW Sevofisenswinergns M/s.ospne
N.R.&GBpelp Slevor. Gam  ULLW — HEOUTSHSTETTHET
OF6lTemenT  Sleusemen  Bwbles  ShSw  Merel
euRIBUILLD uflbgleny QFLIW (PIge)] CIFIIH 2 6Tersl.
Seuriseledr [BUIDEOTLD 6URISUNEOT ShevoT® LMF GS(LD
FmlLHPOT  @UUSHS 2 Lruclg.  Uifley 141
BoieueotssLLLD  2013e0TUle  BeuriseT  eurkBufeoT
SHevvllGemsmenTaEenTs  BUBIILSDHG  SHEISEHHSE
HSDIETENS 6TEITLEMS 2 MNP OFILISIGTET6OTIT.

29. seofsemswneniseaiar  Sifléens  Lsmer
eNeT& S IBIH6T

SevollsemaiLTenTaefen Snlsensuled GOl
GOILILS6T  Swelensasd 2 aTememel.  [BMIGUEOTESFLLLD
2013 Uifley 134(3)evTLIe HevollGemEHIITENTEE60T 6THS
QM GDUYSEBLD — UMSSLNOSTs  &eeonssned
BwsGnT  Gueder elenssmssT CHenEULITETSHTES
Sedemen.

30. BWsGmIsefeor MM UnHmiwl Sinlsemns

Bmieveorsg  sLLD 2013 Wfley  134(5)e0r
CoemeusBainL ELpssetorLemne 2 nBwiefsslILGSDEI.

1. GUIBLMEBT &HE0OTSHGSEHET 2 Ml &H600TeHGEULDES
appluu swrlsslur@erengl. Ceunun@sst &maeeELd
LLESHD HG&HS eensamis6n SlerlsaLILIL (B6T6TeoT.

2. RS SWsGDHTEET SBLLHBEme H600THE
ONILD SeleuELESDSMOT  SONUBLL  &H600TSHE,
eumduieor  sflwneor  Bewevedw  HTLGUSDS
Coemeuiner  &H6001HE  (PedmEEmT  CHMHESBSHS
Sleaupernm efleuflwuns HeoLWPeDLULUGSS
6UHS (HEBMIMTEET.

3. eumId BWs@SHTseT LedGeun)| FLULSLLBISHEHEE
SRS HOUHES QUDHES (P DD M6
seoLilpuudab, emBuler QOFTHEHHHm6T

ungIsmiILSeLD, GLonslpsenen (pedTanl Gl &HevoTLmlbS!
seneneuBed CHemeuwmenr  6uLbl (L 6w D & 6m 6T
DBWIMEBBEDMITSHET.

4. URIE SWHGHTHET 6UBLIHST &H600TEEHEM6I
QSMLITHG [FeWLOLDM)| G\&HTE0ITRIHESLD 6(H 6VSTLIEOTLD
6TEOTLIENS SIHSHHED 61&M600T(B SWIMT CIFUIGIETEMTITEET.

5. SWHGHTHET eunld SFOUBSLILLL SleDTHS
SLLMIGET LOMID Siseor  efifsmemen  edrum
o LeTunLig 6&FuwedLL GUISILDTEDT 6lFUIED(LPEDMDEHEMEIT
IDLBSHSL|ETET6OTIT.
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31. Funding sources of renewable energy

As its contribution to the worldwide effort against
global warming, your Bank has identified wind to be the
best renewable, pollution-free energy available
throughout the year and has encouraged lending to this
sector. The bank also encourages setting up of solar
panels by financing Solar energy generation plants and
also provided solar energy panels as part of its
corporate social responsibility.

32. Secretarial Audit

The Bank, as a public company having a turnover of
more than % 250 crore, is required to get secretarial audit
as referred to in Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013
conducted. A copy of the report in form MR-3 of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is required to be
annexed to this report.

Accordingly a copy of the Secretarial Audit Report
dated 4th August, 2017 issued by M/s.Gouri Sankar
Mishra & Associates, Company Secretaries, Chennai is
annexed to this report as Annexure 2.

There are no material remarks or observations in
the report which require any explanation on the part of
the Board, except the following:

(i) Regarding compliance with Section 12 (1) of
Banking Regulation Act, 1949: - With the proposal of
IPO not passed at the previous AGM, the Bank is
looking into various possibilities for capital
enhancement including making a fresh request to
the members for approving IPO to make the paid up
capital, atleast 50% of the authorized capital.

(ii) Regarding non conduct of AGM:- Waiting for
courtorder.

(iii) Regarding delay in appointing woman director
and Company Secretary: - the Board of Directors
has co-opted Smt.S.Ezhil Jothi as a director and
Company Secretary in its meeting dt.27.03.2017.
(iv) Regarding the requirement of appointing CFO :-
The Bankis taking steps to appointa CFO.

Other qualifications given by Secretarial Auditors
are self-explanatory.

33. Corporate Social Responsibility

As stated elsewhere the Bank has constituted a
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and
has also adopted a CSR Policy. The policy document is
available on the Bank's website. The disclosure in
respect of the CSR activities of the Bank as required to
be made as per the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014 is given at Annexure 3.

31. UL GESH6H8mIoUI SLDHMEIGHHTET BHI5HeN

el  QelUWLIDTSRISES  aSITE 2 06
Slemafleonest  WPWDHES &g;GHLD UG 2_RIG6T
QURIE  sMOUlET  cpeOD  QIGLLD  WPppauSID
BOLEEHEnIQL FDHS LSILNGS &nlgul LDOMILD LDM&
8eoooonm Sppasster  BH 2 sealeww

s ELILBSSIBDS. GLOQILD Q&TETLPHD QFILINSNE BH
2 _sei eFeusH6eT cpeold gl eefl H&6G (Solar Panel)
SlemDss 2orHGeNEEng. GEID eunmld &L Scpsd
eummlienU goml Gl F68 LIEen&EH6m6NT QULDHRIGSEDEI.

32. 6FW6EsH HeuollsHemd

b engl Bmieueotd ¢.250 GCompesd GLbed
MDLIEMEDT (LPSHED E\BME0TIRIBBSTED BeueoTFaLL LD 2013
Ufley 204emue eumld QFWDS HeoofeEews LD
Geueoor@®LD. OiMlsemsuienr @@ NpHemws MR - 3
BmieueoTmI&6T (BUILDEOTLD LDMHMILD [BiTe)Ts LIGTofiWImemTa6i
SerBUILD) QFWIEDSH SH6U0NHEMSITENTTED ASTBSHSLILIL L
DO HSH&6T &l leMeHHLONS & (hHoHS0TDEDT.

Brieuns Leoflwimeniaer 2oBuid 2014 efifmemen b
Siflsensuied SenerorssLiLL. Geuevor®BLD.

Q&IOS SenetusheEs SeTmI. SIHeUTETTE6T Gl&erf]
smism Wleogm & SIGsnAGWILen, BMIEUeT 61FWTEHET,
C1FE0TEmE0T SEUTEHEMTED GULDRIGLILILG Sh&en®G 4, 2017
SIN&enSIL|L 60T SemevoreaLILIL (BTEMSI.

86 UL BeTem Heoeunenm SN LIMGESLDT60T
epgedlsoner  GOILUD — Sleurseng  Simléemsuied
Beoeongzned BWESGHT ST 6B efeTsaepLD
GoemeLiLIL6ledemeD.

O eames sLEUUILGS sLLsH6r fley 1949
1200 2 Ler SevUmIGEUS - (PHOSW  SUBLAHST
ourgs&w Ll PO efer  ufbgiemny
IDSBUILLTHSHTED cLpeoseor elifleunsasSnasner LieoGeum)
STHPIS FnM)EHEW6T 6UMIS assnsoﬂ;_'r;gj UBHBDE. P
IPO-s&ner LBw Gemfléens HMID 2 miferraerfer
QUUSEIET SLD OFQSSUI APEOSETLDNEG  GODHSS!
50% SIMSsIf&sLILLL cLPedSE0T eienaﬂg)@ GasmyLILBLD.

2) Qu@ELBET OUNHESLP Sl LD BLESILLTSSI:-
BB 2 _HEre|Gans SNHSBESD.

@) SBwseni BubesT SMDSLD LDOHMID 6LIEvoT
[BMIEUEDT EIFIIEDITEET [BUILDEOT SHMLDGLD :-

27.03.2017 St BLHS SWsGHT G &l LSS0
slbeuesfl  QFwenengnest  HHS. S TPl B
BwsEnIns CabHas®assLILILBeTerT.

@) sewevewip [BH Sl BuILDeoTLD :-
aURIE M SHemeoewld BF SFsmflemw BwBIILSDE
BLEUIRGENS TBHEDS.

33. &ep& GILIMM)LIL6T0TITEY

HD SLmiseMed GSUILNLLE Gureinl eurkis &b
FeLps EILIMMILILIEOOTTEY @ (LPEmEU SleLDbgleTeng). BLogyLD
QM Fps  OLMDILILETONTE]  CBMETEnHEDL  FDHMIE
O&ME0oT(BETENGl.  Cl&MeTensd  SheueTOILD  eurRIBUIe0T
SemeTTLISENHHED 2 _6Tengl.  [BMICUETTRIGET  6flBa6T
2014601 L Sevvtemll 11160  eumIBuUledT  Felps
GILIMMILIL|600TITEY [FL6UISH6m&ES6T &GDILLILLILIL B6T6TSI.
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34. Extract of annual return

An extract of the annual return referred to in Section
92 (3) and Section 134 (3) (a) in Form MGT-9 of
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 is given as Annexure 4 of this report.

35. Declaration by independent directors

As mentioned elsewhere Shri B.S. Keshava Murthy,
Shri P. Yesuthasen and Shri A.
Shidambaranathan, Independent Directors gave the
declarations as referred to in sub-section (7) of Section
149 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the effect that they
meet the criteria of independence as provided in the Act
and the said declarations were taken note of by the
Board onApril 24, 2017.

36. Details of contracts or arrangements with related
parties

No contracts or arrangements in the nature referred
to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 read with Rule 15 of
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014 were entered into by the Bank with related parties
during the vyear under review. The details of
remuneration paid to the Managing Director & CEO
forms part of the 'notes to accounts' pursuant to the
requirement of Accounting Standard 18. However, as
the office of Managing Director is not a place of profit as
defined in Section 188, no disclosure with regard to the
said payment of remuneration is annexed to this report.

37. Bank's policy on directors' appointment and
remuneration

The Bank had implemented the wage revision

during September 2015 based on the bilateral
negotiations conducted by the Bank and the employees'
union / officers' union after finalization of the bipartite
agreement between IBA and the unions at the industry-
level.
As a banking company, the bank is required to have not
less than fifty-one percent of its directors meeting the
specified eligibility criteria referred to in Section 10 A (2)
of Banking Regulation Act, 1949. Further, for
determining the independence of directors the Bank
strictly follows the criteria laid down in sub-section (6) of
Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013.

Only the Managing Director & CEO is paid a fixed
remuneration as approved by Reserve Bank of India

34. Shevor(h NUTSHHMSHHED LILEILD

ugeud MGT - 9 Wfley 92(@)b woHMID ey
134(3)@) Bmieueimiseafieor  (GLbeomevoTemLD  LDHMILD
Breunsld) 2014-er L Bewevorl] V-0 b5
Sinflsenasuier 6T SemevoréaLILILBeTengl.

35. getreniisenguiner Suis@bisefsr Sinflaii

LbHpp SLmseealedo GOUNLGeTETUIR
8m.B.Cosaucpisd. So.P.gssnser  womibd
Bab.A.AeOLpBHeT, ShBW SHELTENSI SWSHSHITEH6T
SHEOTEONFEDFINETT SUISHSBTHENTS  EFUIEOLIBETDEOTIT.
BmieuenrgsLLD 2013 ifley 149 2 119fley (7)eoTLig
8pevor B HeOTETFENFUITEDT SWSHGSHTHET  SFHHBTLDNES
eFweLL FLHPHO GSOILLILBeTorLe 2 miSeDmbleniL
BwsGDTseT GLelLD Slefgsern. Seaws SWsESHT
G gLIed 24, 201760 US| CIFIIF 61HTE00TL Sl

36. URISUILE0T  QSMLMUenLWeTECenm(B  QFIS
QLILIHGRIHET Sl6D60& 2L 60TLIRGemHH6rM60T eXILITRIGET :

s QG QUUBSMIGEHD Siees
2 | 60TLIRSEm&HEHEBLD BmieuenTtssLl LD 2014 e 15 Lifley
188er 2 fley (MDed (Qumd G WLOHMID Sigeor
OFHNIMIGET) eumE  OHNLTYemLWeur&erflLLD
ghUGSsLLLeTNeenen. Biieuns Swis&npT 2oduwl efiugLd
sOTHGWPemD ey  18ed @MUl LeTemLI
& 600T & & & @b & & IT 60T &l 6 & & MRl & 6 & b
Q&MGBHSLILL(BETETS.

37. Bws@nigsefeor BUILDeTD LDHMILD Serduid unmiw

eURIFUIET Q\HMTETemE

8 eumdBseledr FHISLD LONID OSTHID
SRIBMRGEHSEBMLEW  &®m USSW 2 LeTLIpSHens
WpResd eubs  LNetern  eumIBWINeTEH  2erdul
BHHSHMS ~ QFLLLDUT 201560  6urkld  LDOHMILD
sriflun/Oigenfl  FmEISLD BLSESW < SmsUly
Gueseunm s em B & 6l et Sl U emL uf e
SIDOLBSHSLILILL .

ey 10(A)2ed Wflefed GMILLILBetem
NPBEhHE O LEOTLIMEEEONs SWSESHIE6T LSS
Q60N FENSSBNGLD GEDDEUTS S (HE8EH5mLTE\SE0T)
6l Ml & & (P M & (P 6® M FLLLD 19496
SOUALLULGeTerg.  eumd — &wsGbTs e er
&oHEIHems Shonefliude o riifley (6) Wifley 149,
sLbeLesfideT sLULLD 201360 @MU BeTer  efl@semern
WetTLOMISDE!.
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As a banking company, the bank is required to have
not less than fifty-one percent of its directors meeting
the specified eligibility criteria referred to in Section 10 A
(2) of Banking Regulation Act, 1949. Further, for
determining the independence of directors the Bank
strictly follows the criteria laid down in sub-section (6) of
Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013.

Only the Managing Director & CEO is paid a fixed
remuneration as approved by Reserve Bank of India
under Section 35 B of Banking Regulation Act, 1949
subject to periodic increments as the Board may decide
from time to time, the details of which are part of the
'notes to accounts'. The other non-executive directors
are paid only sitting fees for attending the meetings of
the Board and its Committees. None of the directors
including the MD & CEO receives any profit linked
remuneration. The sitting fees payable to the non-
executive directors did not undergo any change during
the year 2016-17.

Pursuant to the recommendation made by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board,
the Board of Directors, in a meeting held on May 26,
2016 decided to recommend a proposal to Reserve
Bank of India and the members for increase in the
remuneration of the MD & CEO, Shri H. S. Upendra
Kamath from the present Rs.42 lakh per annum to Rs.50
lakh per annum with corresponding increase in other
allowances and perquisites, with all other existing terms
and conditions remaining unchanged, w.e.f. April 1,
2016. This was approved by RBI vide their letter
Ref.DBR.Appt.N0.3980/08.55.001/2016-2017 Dated
October 3, 2016. The increase in remuneration is
subjectto approval by the members.

38. Information Security:

To protect Bank's critical customer information and
to maintain a resilience in business continuity,
Information Security is given due importance. A
separate Information Security Department (ISD) is
formed under Risk Management Department, headed
by an Asst. General Manager as Chief Information
Security Officer (CISO) and a Senior Manager as
Information Security Officer.

39. The position regarding Gopalakrishna Committee
Recommendations:

In terms of RBI guidelines, Bank has established a
robust Information Security Governance framework.

Breuns SWHSSHT LDMID HemeDemLDd  [Bieuns
Slfsnl&ers@ LGLD Benellmeor 2aBuid umgg rgmel
euiBufledT eULHdleor Guifled euUPTRIBLILGEDS. LSS
35-B e QRIGPenD FLLLD 201460TLIR SWSSHIT
Gauned &m0  QewLeeuelleBE gnmeunm)  2erfuib
2 wiisd sMEGHELLGBEDS 6Te0TLSH HE0UTHE &b
GOllsefed  OsMB&ELULLBETENE.  6\FWe  &FIUns
Breundsensd & SHSLN0 H0bHS C&TeTUSDELD
GID(pLD HLL6DOTD LOL(BLD Q&MGHELLGEDS. Bieurns
SWsGHT WOHNID SHewevewmd Hrieuns Sismil 2 1L
BWHsGHTH6T SeomusSeTned SenevorshalillL. Serdu i
eumieuBedemed. 2016-2017 ShevorBHafed ClFWIdETIT
BWEGHTHEBHST0T  SIDIHLD  SLLETIISHD  6ThS
LDAMHDPLD gL 6lebemeD.

25.06.201660 FHeWLOUDD SWHSHTHET  G(LPeUTed
Bwibeord  wOMID 2aBwl  Gupeleot  LflbEIeDTHE
BevorRs, Bieuns SWSSHT & HEMEEMLD [BieUTs
Sifsnlesner ofuib glpged 1, 20166dl@pmHe 42
L E5POIBHE I50 OLFNG 2 WSS EULPRIGEUSDS
ungg ffamel eumBuILLD Slgnipd QUMIISHS (LPIE6)
IB&sUILLLE. &5 ungs Mfernel eumibuleor SlsGLIUT
3, 2016 &iHD cpeold SlgIpBwielsslurLg. Snhs
g1 ©_WIMT6Y LIRIGSHTITEEM60T QULSEISHE 2 LLILLF.

38. 556160 LITSHISMLIL]

GURIBUNET (LPHBII CUITEHENEHUITEMTEHEE0T SHEHEUDED
UMGIsN&s LoD ugmofles SH8s  (PeESISSHIEILD
eanBassULULBeTeng. &spans &L GLemesoremLd
slempuiedr B €dp Heofl HHEUD UNHISMLIY HiewD
2 _meunsslILL(B S5NE HemELWINTS (b 2 g6l 6LTg
Geonetemy HeWwOEWLD  HHEUOD  LTHSMTLL
Sifsnflunseyd (CISO) OMILD @b PSS GLoeomereny
SH&H6UD LGS SlFsmflwnsaybd BullblsaLur BeTergl.

39. &up.Camumed Hiraesvorn &b LUMhHlemTser :

Mlemel  eurRmBuleor  euplem(Bsedleor
SligliLiemLufed 6URIE 6(H EUEIEUTET HEHEUED LITGISHMLIL
Breuns sLLenUemU  ghUBGSE 2 etengl.  Merel
eurBlBufledT eulsmBsHedleotule (Bp.Gamumed HmeigevorT
&w ufibgienr) SenLeeuell HISTE BLESILLEG 614
BLOURGEEMSHEHET  GURBHES  OUNBHS  FmRUISTS
seoorGUlgssILLL S OMID 2 Letun@®ser 100
s5608sD BeomGeunpULLBeTeTerr. Oibg ShevoTiEED
CGeaum s CHeweusEbD SlemLWMeTLD
SMLLLILIL 6)16D6060.
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Gap Assessment with respect to RBI guidelines (Shri
Gopalakrishna Committee Recommendations) was
carried out. 614 actionable items applicable to the Bank
were identified and compliance has been achieved
100%. No further requirements identified during the
year.

The status was reviewed by RBI Auditors during AF|
in 2015 & 2016. Regular review of the implementation is
being done keeping in view the changing technology
developments / needs of the Bank and Board appraised
on the same.

40. Others

a. As the Bank has no activity relating to
conservation of energy and technology absorption,
such particulars are not required to be furnished under
sub-section (3)(m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act
2013 read with Rule (8)(3) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

b.There is an 'internal complaints committee' in the
Bank set up in pursuance of the requirements laid down
in Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 to take
care of the complaints received. In terms of Section 22
of the Act it is reported that one complaint of sexual
harassment was reported in the bank, which was
investigated into by the Committee and based on the
findings necessary disciplinary action has been initiated
against the person involved.

c.The strategy for Ind AS implementation and
progress made

Reserve Bank of India has issued circular
No.DBR.BP.BC.N0.106/21.07.001/2015-16 dated June
23,2016 regarding Implementation of Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) in commercial banks. Reserve Bank
of India has advised to refer the earlier circular
No.DBR.BP.BC.No.76 / 21.07.001 / 2015-16 dated
11/02/2016 wherein banks have been advised to submit
proforma Ind AS Financial statements to Reserve Bank
of India from the half year ended September 30, 2016,
onwards.

The bank had engaged the Audit firm M/s.KPMG,
Chennai during May 2016, for assistance in the
preparation of IndAS financial statements as on
30.09.2016. The Proforma IndAS financial statements
as on 30.09.2016 along with its annexure and notes had
been prepared and submitted to Reserve Bank of India
on22.12.2016.

2015-2016 b Shevorigedr GuMgl eurBISUN6DT
S&HUlement Iflemel eURIBUNEDT  &600fE&EMEBWITEITTSEITTED
ufevement  QFLIWINLLL G, Q&TLT  uflfeeneoremiu
BEOLWPeODLILGSHSHID CGumg  QsMbledmILL  euemissl
eumIBufeor Gsemeu LDOHMILD Slem G 6URISUNGOT LDEOTDLD
WSINL  SeOEULIEDOTHSHID HevoTETerolILINd cMeUHS
2_5eSnsl.

40) LbhHmeme :

a) oeflesd Gesully WLOHMID — SiHDeMET
QSMPIDEILL  HLelSHnSEH6Ted 6umld FBLLISHSHTE
Wfley B)M) ugd 134. sb6etlseT &LULD 2013,
eldser (8) (3) &EOUENHET (BeTTTHEGEET) NHH6MT,
2014 81 swmifssiuL CHemeuuieoensD,

b) ueoluiLsHed 6etoraer  Lsmeor  LMEdlwed
OTNIHEHD  (H5GHDD.  ENDEGDHD. G BlTEHHED)
FLLLD 2013-60 Q&NBaHaLILLG6Ten efldsener LieoTLmHM)LD
euenaUled, BHGSMHMMIGET LOBNET LBMTHED6 H6U6DlHSIH
Q&MeTer @M 2 LUBMT G 2 (BeUnGSLILLLSI.
8ssrL5Peor  0fley  erevor.22-edrule  LMEdlwIed
SHIOTYNIHEISSTET Qh LsMiledr L5g S&@Lpeuned Spiiiey
eFLwuE®.  Fbubsiur  pufler 5 QUG
BL6UIRSHEMS 6T(BEHSLILIBLD.

c)Mermen 6 m &
erevor. DBR.BP.BC.N0.106/21.07.001 2015-2016, Gsd
23, 2016. euettfles eumiBseafled Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind As) 6&FWEOLGBHSHHED FLOLBHSLDMTES
oifleNsaslULBaTengl.  M&mel  eurmd  (PHedSIL
sFOOYlGens  erevor.76/21.07.001/2015-2016  dt.
1.02.2016 &nedipns SpGeNFemeT GULPRIBWIF. SiFed
Slewy 8mnP Shevor® QFLLLDUT 30, 2016-6bldBHaI
UGpnGumprm Ind As B8 Sinfléenssmwt flamel eumiBuiLb
gomLse Geuetor®BLD ereot GMILLILLILIL(B6T6mg).

&Moo & ew &

eumIBWInergd 30.09.2016 Sledtemmwt Ind As B8
Sflsensemwl  sWMiusne 2 gefwns M/s. KPMG,
C1FE0TEmENT ET60TD SHevvfliems [BieUetTHens G 2016-60
FEUGSSWSH. 30.09.2016 Slettemmuwl Proforma Ind As
B8 Onsensser OlgeenLil LeTuss &emevoriiy
NI GUilyseT swnflsslur@ 22.12.2016 Sieorm)
f&rel eurRIBuled FLDMINSSLILLL S
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As per RBI circular dated 11.02.2016, Banks shall
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
for financial statements for the accounting periods
beginning from April 1, 2018 onwards, with
comparatives for the periods ending March 31, 2018 or
thereafter. We have engaged the consultant to assist
the bank in the preparation of Ind AS financial
statements with respect to financial year 2017-18,
including preparation of transition Balance Sheet as on
01.04.2017.

41. Acknowledgment

The Board places on record its appreciation of the
valuable patronage, co-operation and goodwill received
by your Bank from customers, fellow bankers, financial
institutions and Non-Resident Indians. The continued
support and co-operation of the employees and
customers have been a constant source of strength to
the Bankin all its endeavors.

The Board places on record its gratitude to Reserve
Bank of India and other regulatory authorities, the
Government of India and State Governments for their
continued guidance and support.

The staff members of the Bank have been working
with dedication and deep commitment. Teamwork at
every level, well supported by appropriate technology
architecture, has been the hallmark of the Bank's
performance. The Board places on record its
appreciation of the excellent contribution made by each
and every member of the staff, who have made our
achievements all along possible and is confident that
such contribution will continue in the coming year.

For and on behalf of the Board

V.V.D.N.Vikraman
Director

K.V.Rama Moorthy
Managing Director & CEO

Place: Thoothukudi
Date : 19.09.2017

flgmel eurms s&DOOl&ems Cod 11.02.201660TLLR,
URIBs6T glped 1, 2016 QFHML&HSHOlmHE. SHSw
se001&@ QBMWwennsensd (INd AS)SetorésLons, e
31, 201660 (PIPQIEDLU|LD BMOSEDGLD SHDGSLINE0TEn)ILD
BfBened  SinlsemaseneT  QUIGHEHLET  FLOMINGES
Geuevor(BLD. BF  Spevoi(e  2017-2018  BHBemed
OnlsemaseT OlHGem® GsregH 01.04.2017 Sledremmul
8puybfemeoserly swniliusn® o sefluns edb
SpGeongseny F-BLBSSIL|ETEeILD.

41. reoTMWem :

uRIBUTET [BrTeuT&Es GLD QUNREEDSWINTENTHET, 586
eumBser, B8 BmeuetHHd LDOHMILD  CeuefBILIed
afleeb SnBwnser eumdBuicr W meusSmeELd
[BEOTLDALIL| LDHMILD EURIBEHE HEOBII QSHSIEMLPLIL, 2 Hex
SpBweunmin®  uMgmLener  asfleflsdmg.  eurmsd
o fluiTdeT SlwWpnmg 2 ewilplly  OHMILD
CUMPEBEMSBILITETTHEMET 6&HSIEMLPLIL| 6URIBUNEIT  6TedEDT
PUDFSETQILD 2_MIFHIEweToTLNTG SleDLDSBDE.

URIBUeDT SWHSHT GLp. UMps Mamel eurkis,
&npHu OpFMRISLD LOMID LDMBed SII&&6eT LHMILD
Q(PMRIGPEODLILGSSILD  6TEDEON  ShemEUITIIRISEHSHEGLD
SlaUTsH6T GUDMIBL SpHINDGLD, M| enTHEHSHELD
meoTmlufement &LDMLILNSE60TDS).

euRBUIeT e pluITseT LGHS FEUTLBL6oT
QFWEOLLB  6UHBETDEDTT. 6rebedm  [Bemeoulenid 2 _eimerm
o Sluirgefedl QIBHRIBemeT0HS fml B WPWDHd mGEUT®.
Coemeuneor QSMIIHILLLD SpBemel SeleurhiSemiL
ENHEMEUT LIEDL&ES 2_SHeligl. 6urhid 2amluiraeT SphmiD
umBenerr SWsGBT G ~[Bewetrey  Sallbgl
QUBRIBTEOSSQILD S& ASHMLIHLD 6T6dTN) BLOLEDS.

SWHGHIT &L &emevoTLiLIR
B K.V.ombelprissd B@.V.V.D.N.esgLoeor
Brieuns Sws&mT LbHmILD SWHsGHT
SHeWEemLD [Breuns SlHamril.

SL : FnHEIHE
Gsd : 19-09-2017
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited
57,V.E.Road,

Thoothukudi,

Tamilnadu - 600002

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit including the Court Orders and, without expressing any opinion
on subject matter of pending litigation or matter covered in Order of the Hon'ble Court, | hereby report thatin my opinion,
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2017 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2017 according to the provisions of:

(i) The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under - Not applicable to
the Company as itis an Unlisted Company;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under To the extent applicable
as the Company is unlisted Company but shares are also held in demat form;
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings - Not
applicable since the Company has not done any transaction which attracts FDI/ODI or ECB during the
financial under review;
(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 ('SEBIAct'):
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 - Not applicable to the Company as itis an Unlisted Company;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011- Not applicable to the Company as itis an Unlisted Company;
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(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 and
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 Not
applicable to the Company as itis an Unlisted Company;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 Not applicable to the Company as itis an Unlisted Company;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 Not applicable to the Company as itis an Unlisted Company;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008
Not applicable to the Company as itis an Unlisted Company;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client Not applicable to the Company
asitis an Unlisted Company;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 Not
applicable to the Company as itis an Unlisted Company; and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 Not applicable
tothe Company asitis an Unlisted Company;

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015 Not applicable to the Company as itis an Unlisted Company;

(vi) The list of major heads/ group of Acts, Law and Regulations as applicable to the Company as per
management declaration and representation, is mentioned below. In relation to these laws we have relied
on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for system and mechanism formed by the
Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations as applicable to the
Company.

Banking Regulation Act, 1949
Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934
Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002
The Bankers' Book Evidence Act, 1891
Recovery of Debts due to Banks & Financial Institution Act, 1993
Credit Information Companies (Regulation)Act, 2005
Prevention of Money laundering Act, 2002
The Deposit Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation Act, 1961
Industrial Dispute (Banking and Insurance Companies)Act, 1949
. Information Technology Act, 2000
. Labour Laws:
i. The Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provision's Act, 1952.
ii. PaymentofBonusAct, 1965.
iii. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1979.
12. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

220NN~

- O

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

(31)
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1. The subscribed capital and paid-up capital of the Company is not in compliance to provisions of Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 which requires the subscribed capital of the company should not be less than one-half of
the authorised capital, and the paid-up capital should not be less than one-half of the subscribed capital.

2. The Company has keptin abeyance the payment of dividend and bonus in respect of 1,18,666 equity shares on
account of various reasons including dispute which is pending before the Hon'ble Courts.

3. The Company has obtained extension of time for holding of Annual General Meeting (AGM) for the financial
year ended 31st March 2016 (and Registrar of Companies has also granted the extension of time for holding of
AGM) up to 31st December 2016. Further, the Company has approached (as per details provided) Hon'ble
High Court for appointment of Chairman of the AGM (as multiple cases involving shareholders dispute is
pending before Hon'ble High Court of Madras) to smoothly conduct the AGM (last few AGM being held enbloc
and Hon'ble High Court has appointed Chairman for these meetings including last AGM ), however, the matter
has not been taken for hearing till date. Company has represented that based on multiplicity of the litigation
covering shareholding and percentage of shares held by different group which is pending before the Hon'ble
High Court and due to pendency of its application as indicated above, the Company has not held AGM for the
Financial Year ended 31st March 2016.

4. The Company has appointed women director on Board beyond the prescribed period, post vacancy created by
resignation of earlier women director.

5. The provisions of Articles of Association mandates retirement of minimum one-third of directors at each AGM.

However, as stated in clause 3 of the report, the AGM for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2016 has not

been held and hence re-appointment of directors those who retire by rotation at the AGM has not taken place.

The Company is required to appoint Chief Financial Officer (CFO) which has not been appointed till date.

The Company has appointed Company Secretary beyond the prescribed period, post vacancy created by

resignation of earlier company secretary.

8. The Board has approved revision in remuneration of Mr. H.S. Upendra Kamath, MD and CEO by increasing
salary effective from 1st April 2016 and same was also approved by Reserve Bank of India. However, the
increase in remuneration requires the approval of shareholders.

No

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under review were carried outin compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views, if any are captured and recorded as part of
the minutes.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

[ further report that during the audit period:

a. The Company has issued bonus shares during the year by capitalizing an amount of 142.23 Crores and has
accordingly allotted five hundred (500) fully paid bonus shares for every one (1) equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid.

Gouri Shanker Mishra
FCS No. 6906

CPNo.: 13581
Place: Chennai
Date: 4th August 2017

Note: This reportis to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as an Annexure and forms an integral
part of this report.

(22]
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Annexure

To,

The Members,

Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited
57,V.E.Road,

Thoothukudi,

Tamilnadu - 600002

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events, etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Gouri Shanker Mishra
FCS No. 6906
CPNo.: 13581

Place: Chennai
Date: 4th August 2017
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Annexure -1l
Annual Reporton CSR Activities
1. Abriefoutline of the bank's CSR policy:

The CSR Policy of the bank outlines the type and scope of activities to be undertaken as part of the Bank's commitment
to contributing to the overall progress of the society, people and the environment while aligning the same with the
general policy prescriptions of the Government of India in the matter of growth and development. It also aims at
complying with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014 and allied notifications issued by the Government of India.

The specific activities to be undertaken by the Bank within the parameters as specified in Schedule VII of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 are as follows:

i. Financialinclusion to coverunder clause (ii) of Schedule VI,

ii. Provision of solar powered streetlights to coverunder clauses (iv) and (x)

iii. Provision of food to orphanages/old age homes - clause (i)

iv. Planting of trees/saplings clause (iv)

v. Donations to schools, vocational institutions etc. clauses (ii) and (iii)

vi. Organising blood donation camps, eye testing camps etc. clause (i)

vii. Donating bicycles, sewing machines etc. clause (ii)

viii. Setting up a library for the public clause (v)

ix. Providing RO plants to schools, old age homes etc. clause (i)

x. Construction of toilets etc. clause (i)

xi. Training centre for promotion of nationally recognised sports clause (vii)

xii. A vocational training/empowerment/skill building institute in the line of RSETI (Rural Self Employment
Training Institute) or so could be started by the Bank for imparting training to various sections of people in
the society especially rural youth and women. Providing financial assistance to ITIs also could be
considered clause (ii)

xiii. Setting up of bore-wells, water treatment plants, fresh water disposal plants including RO plants etc. in
villages, schools etc. clause (i).

xiv. Developing rural market places clause (iii), (x) and (xi)

xv. Provision of infrastructure and aiding machinery for differently abled people, like wheel chairs, cycles,
ramps etc. clause (ii) and (iii)

xvi. Electrification of villages, especially through solar energy clause (x)

xvii.  Healthcare and sanitation facilities for villagers especially womenfolk clause (i)

xviii.  Provision of free medical camps, medical consultancy, clinics etc. clause (i)

xix. Setting up of creches and day care centres clause (iii)

xX. Providing ambulances clause (i)

Providing financial assistance for fees, maintenance expenses and provision of various amenities to the
schools and charitable trusts meant for the specially abled/differently abled/mentally unsound children
clause (ii).
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The Composition of the CSR Committee of Board:

ThiruH. S. Upendra Kamath, MD & CEO
Thiru S.Annamalai

Thiru S. R. Aravind Kumar

ThiruA. Shidambaranathan
ThiruV.V.D.N.Vikraman

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:
Rs. 36072.00 lakh

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amountas initem 3 above):
Rs. 721.441akh

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year.

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sl. |CSR project or | Sector in | Projects or | Amount Amount spent | Cumulative | Amount
No | activity which the| programs outlay(budget | on the projects| expenditure | spent:
identified Projectis| (1) Local project or or programs upto the Direct or
covered area or | programs Sub-Heads: reporting through
others | wise (1) Direct period impleme-
(2) Specify expenditure nting
the on projects or agency
State programs
and
district (2) Overheads
where
projects
or
programs
were
under-
taken
1 |Provision of Clause | Tamilnadu 75,000 75,000 75,000 Direct

solar powered | (iv) & (x)
street lights

2 |Donations to Clauses | Tamilnadu 75,97,000 75,97,000 76,72,000 Direct
schools (i) & (iii)

3 |Providing RO |Clauses | Tamilnadu 3,96,500 3,96,500 80,68,500 Direct
plants to (i)
schools, old
age home etc

4 | Construction of | Clauses | Tamilnadu 27,92,000 27,92,000 | 1,08,60,500 Direct
toilets etc.. (i)

5 |Training centre|Clauses | Tamilnadu 2,00,000 2,00,000| 1,10,60,500 Direct

for promotion | (vii)
of nationality
recognized
sports
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6 |Providing Clause | Tamilnadu 2,25,000 2,25,000 | 1,12,85,500 Direct
financial (ii)
assistance
to ITls
7 |Provision of Clause | Tamilnadu 1,50,000 1,50,000 | 1,14,35,500 Direct
infrastructure | (i) & (iii)
and aiding
machinery for
differently
abled people,
like wheel
chairs, cycles,
ramps etc.
8 |Provision of Clause | Punjab 30,000 30,000 | 1,14,65,500 Direct
free clinics etc | (i)
9 |[Settingup of |Clause | Tamilnadu 50,000 50,000 | 1,15,15,500 Direct
créches and (i)
day care centre
10 |Provision of Clause | Tamilnadu 19,00,000 19,00,000 | 1,34,15,500 Direct
various (ii) & Kerala
amenities to
the schools
and charitable
trusts meant
for the specially
abled children
1,34,15,500 1,34,15,500 - -
6. Incase the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or
any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report.
The Bank's CSR initiatives usually involve setting the foundation of various programs at a small scale to learn from
on-ground realities, getting feedback from society and then putting an enhanced sustainable model to ensure
maximum benefit to the society. For this reason, during the year, the Company's spend on the CSR activities has
been less than the limits prescribed under Companies Act, 2013. The CSR activities are scalable which coupled
with new initiatives that may be considered in future, moving forward the Company will endeavor to spend on CSR
activities in accordance with the prescribed limits
7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in

compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company.

Itis hereby certified by the CSR Committee of Board as well as the Board of Directors that the sum incurred towards
various activities under the CSR initiatives of the bank during the year 2016-17 are in conformity with the CSR
policy guidelines of the bank and itis monitored as envisaged in the said policy.
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FormNo.MGT-9

Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on 31/03/2017

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 (1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

l. Registration and other details:

CIN

U65110TN1921PLC001908

Registration Date

May 11, 1921

Name of the Company

Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited

W WIN|-

Address of the Registered office and

contact details

57, V. E. Road, Thoothukudi,
Tamil Nadu 628 002

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Public Company / Limited by Shares

Whether listed company - (Yes/ No) No

Name, Address and Contact details of None

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be

stated:
SI. Name and Description NIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover of the
No of main products/ service company
’ services
1 BANKING NA 100
lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
SI. NAMEAND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ %OF APPLICABLE
No ADDRESS OF SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES SECTION
"| THE COMPANY ASSOCIATE HELD
1 NONE
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATT ERN

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Shareholding Cumulative holding
during the year
No. of
shares at
the
beginning/ | % of total Increase/
Sl. end of the | shares of Decrease in No. of Percent
No. Name year the Bank Date shareholding | Reason shares age
ROBERT AND 14080 4.94983 None
ARDIS JAMES Bonus
COMPANY 7054080 4.94983 Shares 7054080 4.94983
1 | LIMITED issued
13209 4.64363 None
SUBCONTINENTA Bonus
L EQUITIES 6617709 4.64363 Shares 6617709 4.64363
2 | LIMITED issued
0 0
5305089 | 3.72257 | 04/01/2017 +10589 | Purchase 5305089 | 3.72257
09/01/2017 + 5294500 | Bonus
EAST RIVER Shares
HOLDINGS
3 | LIMITED
SWISS RE 10124 3.55910 None
INVESTORS Bonus
(MAURITIUS) 5072124 3.55910 Shares 5072124 3.55910
4 | LIMITED issued
5399 1.89802 None
FI INVESTMENTS Bonus
(MAURITIUS) 2704899 1.89802 Shares 2704899 1.89802
5 | LIMITED issued
4138 1.45472
2076344 1.45697 | 24/10/2016 + 3006 | Purchase 2076344 1.45697
6 | C.S.RAJENDRAN NSDL + 200
3792 1.33308 None
Bonus
1899792 1.33308 Shares 1899792 1.33308
7 | MEENAKSHI.R. issued
3792 1.33308 None
Bonus
1899792 1.33308 Shares 1899792 1.33308
8 | SENTHIL.M. issued
HIBISCUS 3466 1.21847
ENTERPRISES 1742979 1.22304 1742979 1.22304
LLP 08/09/2016 + 10 | Purchase
07/02/2017 +3
07/02/2017 +6500 | Bonus
Shares
9 issued
2517 0.88485 None
PARA Bonus
ENTERPRISES 1261017 0.88485 Shares 1261017 0.88485
10 | PVT LTD issued
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(ii) Share holding of Promoters:

There were ten persons who promoted the Bank in the year 1921 by subscribing to its Memorandum of Association,
collectively holding 11505 equity shares of Rs.10 each. Since all these persons are deceased now, we have not made
any attempt to identify the promoter group at present. Some of the descendants of these persons might be holding some
shares in the bank still. Since we are an unlisted company we have not formally categorized the bank's shareholders
into promoter group and non-promoter group.

(iii) Change in Promoters' Share holding (please specify, if there is no change) - Not Applicable
(iv)Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Cumulative holding during
Shareholding the year
No. of
shares at | % of
the total
beginnin | shares Increase/
Sl g/end of of the Decrease in No. of
No. Name the year Bank Date shareholding | Reason shares Percentage
Shri H.S.Upendra
1 | Kamath (MD&CEOQO) - - - - - - -
684 0.240 None
Shri S.Annamalai gﬁ:;ss
2 342684 0.240 issued 342684 0.240
Shri S. R.Aravind 885 0.311 None
Bonus
Kumar Shares
3 443385 0.311 issued 443385 0.311
3034 1.066
08/09/2016 + 110 | Purchase
07/02/2017 +5
Shri P. C. G. Asok 07/02/2017 + 57500 Bonus
Kumar Shares
4 1577649 1.107 issued 1577649 1.107
Shri B. S. Keshava
5 | Murthy -- - - - - - --
14 0.004 None
Shri K. Nagarajan gr?an;z
6. 7014 0.004 issued 7014 0.004
7 0.003 None
Bonus
Shares
6 | Shri K.N. Rajan 3507 0.003 issued 3507 0.003
7 | Shri K.V. Rajan - - - - - - -
ShriA. 18 0.006
8 | Shidambaranathan 9018 0.006 Bonus 9018 0.006
Shares
issued
1805 0.635 None
Bonus
Shri V. V. D. N. Shares
9 | Vikraman 904305 0.635 issued 904305 0.635
3 0.001
Shri B. Vijayadurai SBP?:I’L:ESS
10 1503 0.001 issued 1503 0.001
11 | Shri P. Yesuthasen 5 0.002 None
Bonus
Shares
2505 0.002 issued 2505 0.002
12 | TmtS.EzhilJothi - - |- - -
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V.INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

(Rs.in crore)

Secured Loans | Unsecured | Deposits | Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year
i)Principal Amount Nil 333.00 | 30368.86 | 30701.86
ii)Interest due but not paid 0.26 200.84 201.10
iii)Interest accrued but not due
Nil 333.26 30569.70 30902.96
Total(i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year Nil
- Addition - 1842.70 1842.70
- Reduction 333.26 - 333.26
Net Change Nil 333.26 1842.70 1509.44
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year
i)Principal Amount Nil Nil 32190.15 32190.15
ii) Interest due but not paid 222.25 222.25
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total(i+ii+iii) Nil Nil 32412.40 32412.40
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V1. Remuneration of Directors and key Managerial personnel

A.Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and /or Manager during 2016-17:

(In Rs.,)

S.No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD& CEO / WTD

Shri H. S. Upendra Kamath,
MD & CEO*

Gross salary

(a)Salary as per provisions
contained in section17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b)Value of perquisites under
section 17(2) Income-tax Act,1961

(c)Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax Act,1961

50,00,000.00

5,26,150.00

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
as % of profit
Others, specify...

Others, please specify (PF,
Gratuity, PL encashment etc.)
PF

Gratuity

PL encashment
Hospitalization Expenses

1,22,532.40

Total (A)

56,48,682.40

Ceiling as per the Act
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B. Remuneration to other directors: NIL

However the following payments were made to the directors:

(In Rs.,)

SI.No. | Name of Directors Sitting Fees | Commission | Total
1. Shri.S.Annamalai 780000 Nil 780000
2. Shri.P.C.G.Asok Kumar 975000 Nil 975000
3. Shri S.R.Aravind Kumar 1260000 Nil 1260000
4, Shri.B.S.Keshava Murthy 1050000 Nil 1050000
5. Shri.K.Nagarajan 1080000 Nil 1080000
6. Shri K.N.Rajan 990000 Nil 990000
7. Shri K.V.Rajan 1005000 Nil 1005000
8. Shri A.Shidambaranathan 1455000 Nil 1455000
9. Shri.B.Vijayadurai 1230000 Nil 1230000
10. Shri V.V.D.N.Vikraman 1035000 Nil 1035000
11. Shri P.Yesuthasen 1095000 Nil 1095000
12. Smt S.EzhilJothi 45000 Nil 45000

Total 12000000 12000000

C. REMUNERATION TO KEYMANAGERIALPERSONNEL OTHER

THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD

(In Rs.,)

Sl.
No.

Particularsof
Remuneration

KeyManagerial Personnel

CEO

Company
Secretary

CFO

Total

1. | Gross salary

Act, 1961

(b)Value of perquisites

17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

(a)Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17 (1)of the Income-tax

under
section17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section

-- 701888 --

- 49441 -

701888

49441

2. | Stock Option

Sweat Equity

W

Commission
- as%of profit
-others, specify...

5. | Others, please specify

Total

- 751329 --

751329
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VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the | Brief Details of Authority Appeal
Companies Description Penalty / [RD/ NCLT made,
Act Punishment/ | / COURT] if any
Compounding (give
fees imposed Details)
A.COMPANY
Penalty NONE
Punishment

Compounding

B.DIRECTORS

Penalty NONE

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty NONE

Punishment

Compounding
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Basel lll - Pillar 3 Disclosures as on March 31, 2017

1. Scope of Application and Capital Adequacy

Table DF-1- Scope of application

Name of the head of the banking group

to which the framework applies:-

Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Ltd.,

Qualitative Disclosures

Applicability to our Bank

a. List of Group entities considered for consolidation.

The Bank does not belong to any
group and does not have any
associate, subsidiaries, joint venture,

etc.

b. List of Group entities not considered for consolidation both | Not Applicable
under the accounting and regulatory scope of consolidation.

Quantitative Disclosures

c. List of group entities considered for consolidation

etc.

The Bank does not belong to any
group and does not have any
associate, subsidiaries, joint venture,

subsidiaries.

d. The aggregate amount of capital deficiencies in all | Not Applicable
subsidiaries which are not included in the regulatory scope of
consolidation i.e. that are deducted and the name(s) of such

-weighted.

e. The aggregate amounts (e.g. Current book value) of the | Not Applicable
bank's total interests in insurance entities, which are risk

f. Any restriction or impediments on transfer of funds or | Not Applicable
regulatory capital within the banking group.
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Table DF-2-Capital Adequacy

Qualitative Disclosures

A. Asummary discussion of the Bank's approach to assessing the adequacy of its capital to support
current and future activities.

The Bank is following standardized approach, Standardized Duration approach and Basic Indicator
approach for measurement of capital charge in respect of credit risk, market risk and operational risk
respectively.

The computation of Capital for credit risk under Standardized Approach is done granularly borrower &
account wise based on the data captured through Core Banking Solution. Bank is also taking efforts on an
ongoing basis for the accuracy of the data. The various aspects of NCAF norms are imparted to field level
staff regularly through circulars and letters for continuous purification of data and to ensure accurate
computation of Risk Weight and Capital Charge. The Bank has used the credit risk mitigation in computation
of capital for credit risk, as prescribed in the RBI guidelines under Standardized Approach.

The capital for credit risk on Loans and Advances, market risk and operational risk as per the
prescribed approaches are being computed at the bank's Head Office and aggregated to arrive at the
position of bank's CRAR. The bank has followed the RBI guidelines in force, to arrive at the eligible capital
funds, for computing CRAR.

Besides computing CRAR under the Pillar | requirement, the Bank also periodically undertakes stress
testing in various risk areas to assess the impact of stressed scenario or plausible events on asset quality,
liquidity, profitability and capital adequacy.

The bank conducts Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) on annual basis to
assess the sufficiency of its capital funds to cover the risks specified under Pillar- || of Basel guidelines. The
adequacy of Bank's capital funds to meet the future business growth is also assessed in the ICAAP
document, which is approved by the Board. While the surplus CRAR available at present acts as a buffer to
support the future activities, the headroom available for the bank for mobilizing Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital
(subject to approval by the competent authorities) is also assessed to meet the required CRAR against future
activities.

The Bank has high quality Common Equity Tier 1 capital, as the entire components of CET1 capital
comprises of Paid up Capital, Reserves & Surplus and retained earnings.
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Minimum capital requirements under Basel-lll:

Under the Basel Il Capital Regulations, Banks are required to maintain a minimum Pillar 1
Capital (Tier-I + Tier-Il) to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) of 9% on an on-going basis. Besides
this minimum capital requirement, Basel Il also provides for creation of capital conservation buffer
(CCB). The transitional period of fullimplementation of Basel Il capital regulation in India is extended
up to March 31,2019. Accordingly the CCB requirements are to be implemented from March 31, 2016
in phases and are to be fully implemented by March 31, 2019 to the extent of 2.5% of Risk weighted
Assets. The banks are required to maintain minimum CRAR of 10.25 %(including CCB of 1.25 %) as
on 31.03.2017.

The total regulatory capital funds under Basel- 1l norms will consist of the sum of the following
categories and banks are required to maintain 11.50% of Risk Weighted Assets (9% + 2.5%) by
March 2019 with the phase in requirements under CCB from 2016.

e Tier 1 Capital comprises of:-
o Common Equity Tier 1 capital (with a minimum of 5.5%)
o Additional Tier 1 capital (1.50%)
o Total Tier 1 capital of minimum 7%

e Tier2 Capital (2%)
o Total Tier 1 + Tier 2 should be more than 9%

e Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB). (with a minimum of 2.5%)
o Total capital including CCB should be 11.5%

In line with the RBI guidelines for implementing the New Capital Adequacy Frame Work under Basel
I, the bank has successfully migrated from April 01, 2013.

Component of Capital: (  in millions)

Particulars Amount
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) Capital 32045.69
Tier 1 Capital 32045.69
Tier 2 Capital 1827.89
Total Capital 33873.58
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Quantitative Disclosure

(¥ in millions)
Particulars Amount
a) | Capital requirement for Credit Risk:
(@9% on risk Weighted Assets)
e Portfolios subject to Standardised Approach 17268.46
e Securitisation exposures Nil

b) | Capital requirements for Market Risk:

e Standardised Duration Approach 1998.13
o Interest Rate Risk 1816.66
o Equity Risk 127.47
o Foreign Exchange Risk 54.00
c) | Capital requirements for Operational Risk:
e Basic Indicator Approach 1975.12
d) | Capital required under CCB (1.25%) 3019.22
Total Capital required 24260.93
d) | Tatal Capital funds available 33873.58
Tatal Risk Weighted Assets 241537.52
Common Equity Tier | CRAR 13.27%
Tier | CRAR 13.27%
Tier Il CRAR 0.75%
Total CRAR 14.02%

2. Risk exposure and Assessment

Risk is an integral part of banking business in an ever dynamic environment, which is undergoing radical
changes both on the technology front and product offerings. The main risks faced by the bank are credit risk, market
risk and operational risk. The bank aims to achieve an optimum balance between risk and return to maximize
shareholder value. The relevant information on the various categories of risks faced by the bank is given in the
ensuing sections. This information is intended to give market participants a better idea on the risk profile and risk
management practices of the bank.

The Bank has a comprehensive risk management system in order to address various risks and has set up an
Integrated Risk Management Department (RMD), which is independent of operational departments. Bank has a
Risk Management Committee of Board functioning at apex level for formulating, implementing and reviewing bank's
risk management measures pertaining to credit, market and operational risks. Apart from the Risk Management
Committee of the Board at apex level, the Bank has a strong Bank-wide risk management structure comprising of
Risk Management Committee of Executives (RMCE) and Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) at senior
managementlevel.

The Bank has formulated the required policies such as Loan Policy, Credit Risk Management Policy, Credit Risk
Mitigation Techniques & Collateral Management Policy, ALM Policy, Operational Risk Management Policy,
Investment Policy, Foreign Exchange Risk Management Policy, Policy guidelines for Hedging Foreign Currency
Exposure, Concurrent Audit Policy, Inspection Policy, IS Audit Policy, KYC policy, Post Credit Supervision Policy,
Stock Audit Policy, Out Sourcing Policy, IT Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plan (IT BC-DRP),Risk
Based Internal Audit Policy, Stress Testing Policy, Disclosure Policy, ICAAP Policy, etc for mitigating the risks in
various areas and monitoring the same. The bank continues to focus on refining and improving its risk measurement

and management systems.
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Table DF-3- CREDIT RISK: GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Qualitative Disclosures:

a. CreditRisk

Credit risk is the possibility of losses associated with diminution in the credit quality of borrowers or counter-
parties. In a Bank's portfolio, Credit Risk arises mostly from lending activities of the Bank, as a borrower is
unable to meet his financial obligations to the lender. It emanates from potential changes in the credit quality
/worthiness of the borrowers or counter-parties.

Credit Rating & Appraisal Process

The Bank has well structured internal credit rating framework and well-established standardized credit
appraisal / approval processes. Credit Rating is a decision-enabling tool that helps the bank to take a view on
acceptability or otherwise of any credit proposal. In order to widen the scope and coverage further and
strengthen the credit risk management practices, the bank has developed risk sensitive in-house rating
models during the year 2008-09 and 2009-10.

The parameters in internal rating take into consideration, the quantitative and qualitative issues relating to
management risk, business risk, industry risk, financial risk, credit discipline, and also risk mitigation, based
on the collaterals available.

Credit rating, as a concept, has been well internalized within the Bank. The rating for eligible borrower is
reviewed at least once in a year. The Bank uses the credit ratings for deciding the interest rates on borrowal
accounts. The advantage of credit rating is that it enables to rank different proposals and to do meaningful
comparison.

With the view to migrate to advanced approaches in creditrisk, the Bank has implemented the system driven
rating using web based rating model solutions (RAM & CRESS) acquired from M/s. Crisil Risk &
Infrastructure solutions Ltd.

The bank follows a well-defined multi layered discretionary power structure for sanction of loans. Credit
Approval Grid (and New Business Group (NBG) at HO) has been constituted at HO/RO for considering in-
principle approval for taking up fresh credit proposals above a specified cut-off.

Credit Risk Management Policies

The Bank has put in place a well-structured Credit Risk Management Policy duly approved by the Bank's
Board. The Policy document defines organization structure, role & responsibilities and, the processes
whereby the Credit Risks carried out by the Bank can be identified, quantified & managed within the
framework that the Bank considers consistent with its mandate and risk tolerance.

Credit Risk is monitored on a bank-wide basis and compliance with the risk limits approved by Board/Risk
Management Committee of Board is ensured.

The Bank has taken earnest steps to put in place best credit risk management practices in the bank. In
addition to Credit Risk Policy, the bank has also framed Board approved Loan Policy, Investment Policy etc.
which forms integral part in monitoring Credit risk in the bank. Besides, the bank has framed a policy on
Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques & Collateral Management with the approval of the Board which lays down
the details of securities (both Primary and Collateral) normally accepted by the Bank and administration of
such securities to protect the interest of the Bank. These securities act as mitigation against the credit risk to
which the bank is exposed.
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Classification of Non Performing Assets

The Bank follows the prudential guidelines issued by the RBI on classification of non-performing assets as

under,

Vi)

interest and/or installment of principal remain overdue for a period of more than 90 days in
respect of atermloan.

the account remains 'out of order' if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of
sanctioned limits / DP for more than 90 days in respect of Overdraft/Cash Credit (OD/CC).

the bill remains overdue for a period of more than 90 days in the case of bills purchased and
discounted

the installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for two crop seasons for short
duration crop.

the installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for one crop season for long
duration crops.

in respect of derivative transactions, the overdue receivables representing positive mark-to-
market value of a derivative contract, if these remain unpaid for a period of 90 days from the
specified due date for payment

Where the interest charged during any quarter is not serviced fully within 90 days from the end of the quarter,
the accountis classified as non-performing. Anon-performing asset ceases to generate income for the bank.

b. Gross Credit Risk exposures as on 31st March 2017.

(% in millions)

Category Gross Credit Exposure
Fund Based' 284971.80
Non Fund Based’ 45896.86
Total 330868.66
1. Fund based exposure includes advances, un-availed portion (including credit card un-availed) of

fund based advances.

2. Non-Fund Based exposure includes outstanding Letter of Credit, Acceptances, Bank Guarantee
Exposures and credit equivalent of Forward Contracts.
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c.Geographical Distribution of Gross Credit Exposures as on 31st March 2017

(% in millions )

Exposure Treasury Corporate / . Retail Banking Total credit
Distributio Wholesale banking Exposure
n FB NFB FB NFB FB NFB
Domestic 116067.27 | 121208.90 | 40200.70 | 163762.90 | 5696.16 | 284971.80 | 45896.86
Overseas 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 116067.27 | 121208.90 | 40200.70 | 163762.90 | 5696.16 | 284971.80 | 45896.86
d.Industry type distribution of credit exposures as on 31.03.2017
(% in millions )
Exposures
Industry Name FB NFB | Investment | Total
A. Mining and Quarrying 1039.46 398.36 1.86 1439.68
B. Food Processing 1495.16 | 5233.81 0.00 6728.97
C. Beverages (excluding Tea &
Coffee) and Taobacco 497.34 7.03 0.00 504.37
D. Textiles 39273.86 | 1977.29 7.34 41258.49
E. Leather and Leather products 244,22 4.00 0.00 248.22
F. Wood and Wood Products 1797.18 710.77 0.00 2507.95
G. Paper and Paper Products 2605.54 110.41 0.00 2715.95
H. Petroleum (non-infra), Coal
Products (non-mining) and
Nuclear Fuels 256.12 0.53 89.93 346.58
I. Chemicals and Chemical
Products (Dyes, Paints, etc.) 2950.22 73.28 1.90 3025.40
J. Rubber, Plastic and their
Products 1422.24 258.27 0.00 1680.51
K. Glass & Glassware 52.02 0.00 0.00 52.02
L. Cement and Cement Products 98.20 0.00 0.00 98.20
M. Basic Metal and Metal
Products 5756.37 278.69 104.87 6139.93
N. All Engineering 2066.17 77.78 12.14 2156.09
O. Venhicles, Vehicle Parts and
Transport Equipments 66.80 15.22 0.00 82.02
P.Gems and Jewellery 307.54 14.83 0.00 322.37
Q. Construction 648.43 0.68 0.00 649.11
R. Infrastructure 21696.84 | 1155.36 2449.80 25302.00
S. Other Industries, pl. specify 13192.88 | 1809.86 0.00 15002.74
All Industries (A to S) 95466.59 | 12126.17 2667.84 | 110260.60
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The details of the industries wherein the bank's exposure in the related industry has exceeded the
5% of total gross credit exposure as on 31.03.2017 is furnished below:

(% in millions )

Industry Fund Non Fund | % to Gross Credit
Based Based Exposures
Textile 39273.86 1977.29 12.47%
Infrastructure 21696.84 1155.36 6.91%

e.Residual Contractual Maturity Breakdown of assets as on 31.03.2017

(% in millions )

Balance
with
Cash
Maturity and Banks and Fixed Other Grand
Money at | Investments | Advances
Buckets Balance call Assets Assets Total
with RBI All e
Short
Notice
Next day 1765.12 343.55 33774.97 7532.83 0.00 1398.95 44815.42
2-7 days 201.49 3852.00 3395.20 3496.46 0.00 136.90 11082.05
8-14 days 258.30 0.00 1206.06 3831.83 0.00 96.96 5393.15
15-30 days 346.55 335.00 1628.01 9259.78 0.00 178.71 11748.05
31 days &
Upto 2
months 293.43 335.00 4542.76 4541.72 0.00 77.79 9790.70
2 months &
Upto 3
months 534.30 0.00 4243.22 4921.43 0.00 48 17 9747.12
3to6
months 1087.90 0.00 7075.26 13084.67 0.00 121.24 21369.07
6 months
to 1 year 3722.13 0.00 18478.46 22610.10 0.00 116.54 44927 .23
1yearto 3
years 5053.71 0.00 25971.66 100988.19 0.00 474.86 | 132488.42
3to5
years 731.28 10.00 5483.42 17806.79 0.00 7017.60 31049.09
Above 5
years 587.83 0.00 9245.75 31649.39 | 1543.87 4406.52 47433.36
Total 14582.04 | 4875.55 115044.77* | 219723.19% 1543.87 | 14074.24 | 369843.66

(Covers Net Assets for Domestic Operations)
*Net of Provisions/ depreciation
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f.Amount of Gross Non-Performing Advances (NPAs):

(% in millions )

Amount of Gross NPAs

Amount of NPAs (Gross) 6486.37
. Substandard 4241.15
° Doubitful 2183.04
° Of which DF1 1683.63
° DF2 225.64
° DF3 273.77
° Loss 62.18
dg. Net NPAs 3819.19
h. NPA Ratios

° Gross NPAs to gross advances 2.91%
° Net NPAs to net advances 1.74%

. Movement of NPAs(Gross):

(% in millions )

Movement of NPAs
. Opening Balance as on 01.04.2016 4189.41
o Additions 7279.30
. Reductions 4982.34
° Closing Balance as on 31.03.2017 6486.37

j- Movement of provisions

a.Movement of provisions for NPAs *:

(% in millions )

Particulars
° Opening Balance as on 01.04.2016 2181.96*
o Provisions made during the period 2934.46
o Write off 0.00
o Reductions 0.00
° Write back of excess provisions / Transfers 2449.24
° Closing Balance as on 31.03.2017 2667.18**

*includes floating provision
** includes floating provision and claims receivable (CGTMSE, ECGC & UIIC)

(52)
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b. Movement of Provisions of Standard Assets:-

(% in millions )

Particulars
o Opening Balance as on 01.04.2016 1210.99
o Provisions made during the period 1747.77
o Write back of excess provisions 1300.76
o Any other adjustments, including transfer between provisions 56.70
o Closing Balance as on 31.03.2017 1601.30

c. Stock of Technical/Prudential Write-offs and recoveries made thereon;

(% in millions )

Particulars Amount
Opening balance for recoveries of Technical/Prudential written - off 2706.85
accounts as on 01.04.2016
Add: Technical/Prudential write -offs accounts during the period 2437.52
Less: Recoveries from previously technical/ prudential written- off 227.20
accounts taken to income account during the period.
Closing balance as on 31.03.2017 4917.17

Non-Performing Investments (NPIs):

(% in millions )

k. Non-Performing Investments

0.00

I. Provisions held for non-performing investments

0.00

m. Movement of provisions for depreciation on investments:

(% in millions )

) Opening Balance as on 01.04.2016 342.75
o Provisions made during the period 687.91
o Write-off -

o Write-back of excess provisions 8.15
o Closing Balance as on 31.03.2017 1022.51
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n. Industry wise distribution of NPAs:

(% in millions )

Industry Name

As on March 2017

For the quarter ended Mar

31,2017
Standard Write — | Provision Standard
Gross | Provision Asset off for NPA Asset

NPA for NPA | Provision Provision
A. Mining and Quarrying 0.26 0.26 2.99 0.00 0.00 0.39
B. Food Processing 18.12 8.07 4.80 0.00 (257.68) 0.19
C. Beverages (excluding
Tea & Coffee) and Tabacco 0.00 0.00 1.25 0.00 0.00 0.12
D. Textiles 567.76 151.61 90.01 0.00 (0.11) (0.58)
E. Leather and Leather
products 0.25 0.13 0.49 0.00 0.00 0.12
F. Wood and Wood
Products 59.71 15.09 3.61 0.00 (272.61) 0.35
G. Paper and Paper
Products 11.67 4.58 7.81 0.00 0.65 (1.32)
H. Petroleum (non-infra),
Coal Products (non-mining)
and Nuclear Fuels 0.30 0.30 0.52 0.00 (145.72) 0.00
|. Chemicals and Chemical
Products (Dyes, Paints,
etc.) 213 1.19 4.27 0.00 (0.02) (2.34)
J. Rubber, Plastic and their
Products 10.43 2.87 3.53 0.00 1.05 0.24
K. Glass & Glassware 0.00 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.00 0.03
L. Cement and Cement
Products 0.17 0.17 0.23 0.00 0.00 0.08
M. Basic Metal and Metal
Products 3.83 1.93 234.19 0.00 (417.04) 11.06
N. All Engineering 13.61 3.40 4.89 2.14 (0.65) 0.28
O. Vehicles, Vehicle Parts
and Transport Equipments 0.24 0.24 0.14 0.00 0.00 (0.06)
P.Gems and Jewellery 1.33 0.33 0.79 0.00 (22.67) 0.08
Q. Construction 40.55 10.14 1.41 0.00 1.74 0.41
R. Infrastructure 1541.86 385.46 551.26 0.00 141.62 (871.81)
S. Other Industries, pl.
specify 1133.87 424.05 26.19 0.00 264.56 (53.46)
All Industries (A to S) 3406.09 1009.82 938.47 2.14 (706.88) (916.22)
All others 3080.28 1334.57 662.83 0.00 (129.74) 0.91
Total 6486.37 2344.39 1601.30 2.14 (836.62) (915.31)
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0. Geographic distribution of NPAs:
(X in millions )

Particulars Domestic Overseas Total
Gross NPA 6486.37 0.00 6486.37
Provisions for NPA* 2636.39 0.00 2636.39
Provision for Standard assets 1601.30 0.00 1601.30

*includes floating provision
Table DF 4

CREDIT RISK: DISCLOSURES FOR PORTFOLIOS SUBJECT TO THE
STANDARDISED APPROACH

Qualitative disclosures:

a) General Principle:

In accordance with RBI guidelines, the Bank has adopted Standardized Approach of the New Capital
Adequacy Framework (NCAF) for computation of capital for Credit Risk with effect from 31.03.2009. In
computation of capital, the bank has assigned risk weights to different assets classified as prescribed by the
RBI.

External Credit Ratings:

Ratings of borrowers by External Credit Rating Agencies (ECRA) assume importance in the light of guideline
for implementation of the New Capital Adequacy Framework (Basel-Il). Exposures on Corporate / PSEs /
Primary Dealers are assigned with risk weights based on the external ratings. For this purpose, the Reserve
Bank of India has permitted Banks to use the rating of the six domestic ECRAs namely (a) Credit Analysis and
Research Ltd., (CARE), (b) CRISIL Ltd., (c) Fitch India, (d) ICRA Ltd., (e) Brickwork Ratings India P. Ltd
(Brickwork) and (f) SMERA Rating Limited (SMERA). In consideration of the above guidelines, the bank has
decided to accept the ratings assigned by all these ECRAs.

The bank has well-structured internal credit rating mechanism to evaluate the credit risk associated with a
borrower and accordingly the systems are in place for taking credit decisions with regard to acceptability of
proposals, and level of exposures and pricing.

In case of bank's investmentin particular issues of Corporate / PSEs, the issue specific rating of the approved
ECRAs are reckoned and accordingly the risk weights have been applied after a corresponding mapping to
rating scale provided.

As regards the coverage of exposures by external ratings as relevant for capital computation under
Standardized Approach, the process is being popularized among the borrowers so as to take the benefit of
capital relief available for better rating of customers. Bank is also tuned towards changes in application of
risk weights which affects bank's exposures to corporate, AFCs, NBFC-IFCs which needs to be segregated
into parts (i) rating expired exposures of above Rs.100.00 crores from the banking system which attracts
150% RW with effect from September 2016 (ii)Unrated exposures of above Rs.200.00 crores from the
Banking system which will attract 150% RW with effect from June 2017 as per the RBI circular
Ref.No.DBR.No.BP.BC.6/20.06.001/2016-17 dated 15th August 2016. The Bank follows below mentioned
procedures as laid down in the Basel lll guidelines for usage of external ratings :

e Rating assigned by one rating agency is used for all the types of claims on the borrowing entity.
e Longtermratings are used for facilities with contractual maturity of one year & above.
e Shorttermratings are generally applied for facilities with contractual maturity of less than one year.

(55)
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Quantitative Disclosures

For exposure amounts after risk mitigation subject to the standardized approach, amount of a bank's
outstanding (rated and unrated) in the following three major risk buckets as well as those that are deducted
as per risk mitigation are given below;

(% in millions )

Risk Weight Rated Unrated Total *
Below 100% 27028.66 135306.30 162334.96
100% 20417 .14 41606.56 62023.70
More than 100% 58649.57 40788.24 99437.81
Total Exposure before mitigation 106095.37 217701.10 323796.47
Deducted (as per Risk Mitigation) 20065.04 40473.75 60538.79
Tatal outstanding after mitigation 86030.33 177227.35 263257.68

* This includes total gross credit exposure i.e. (FB+ NFB (including 2% of Forward Contract) + undrawn or
partially undrawn fund based facility)

Table DF 5

CREDIT RISK MITIGATION: DISCLOSURE FOR STANDARDISED APPROACHES
Qualitative disclosures:

Policy on Credit Risk Mitigation under Standardiz ed\pproach:

As advised by RBI, the Bank has adopted the comprehensive approach relating to credit risk mitigation under
Standardized Approach, which allows fuller offset of securities (primary and collateral) against exposures, by
effectively reducing the exposure amount by the value ascribed to the securities. Thus the eligible financial
collaterals are fully made use of to reduce the credit exposure in computation of credit risk capital. In doing
so, the bank has recognized specific securities namely (a) bank's own deposits (b) Gold/Ornaments (c) Life
Insurance Policies (d) Government Securities (e) NSC/KVP etc and (f) Units of Mutual Funds, in line with the
RBI guidelines on the subject.

Besides, other approved forms of credit risk mitigation are “On Balance Sheet netting” and availability of
“Eligible Guarantees”. On balance sheet nettings has been reckoned to the extent of the deposits available
against the loans /advances of the borrower (to the extent of exposure) as per the RBI guidelines. Further, in
computation of credit risk capital, the types of guarantees recognized for taking mitigation, in line with RBI
guidelines are (a) Central Government Guarantee (0%) (b) State Government (20%) (¢) CGTMSE (0%)
(d) ECGC (20%) (e) Bank Guarantee in the form of bills purchased / discounted under Letter of credit (20%)
and (f) Credit Risk Guarantee Fund Trust for Low Income Housing (CRGFTLIH) (0%). The Bank has ensured
compliance of legal certainty as prescribed by the RBI in the matter of credit risk mitigation.

Concentration Risk in Credit Risk Mitigation:

All types of securities eligible for mitigation are easily realizable financial securities. As such, presently no
limit/ceiling has been prescribed to address the concentration risk in credit risk mitigants recognized by the
Bank.
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Quantitative Disclosures:

(¥ in millions )

a. For each separately disclosed credit risk portfolio, the total exposure (after,
where applicable, on-or off balance sheet netting) that is covered by eligible
financial collateral (FCs) after the application of haircuts is given below:

Portfolio category

Financial collateral

Quantum of exposure
covered

1. Funded - Credit

Bank"s own deposits

9883.89

2. Funded — Credit

Gold jewels

29242.41

3. Funded - Credit

Life Insurance policies

172.93

4. Funded - Credit

NSC/KVP

9.47

5. Non Funded

21230.10

Bank"s own deposits

b. For each separately disclosed portfolio, the total exposure (after, on balance

sheet netting) thatis covered by Guarantees:

1. Funded - Credit ECGC 800.00

2. Funded - Credit CGTMSE 460.39
Table DF -6

Securitization: Disclosure for standardized approach
Qualitative Disclosures
The bank has not undertaken any securitization activity.

Quantitative Disclosures: NIL

Table DE-7
MARKET RISK IN TRADING BOOK
Qualitative Disclosures:
a) MarketRisk:

Market Risk is defined as the possibility of loss to a bank in on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions
caused by the changes / movements in the market variables such as interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, equity prices and commodity prices. Bank's exposure to market risk arises from domestic
investments (interest related instruments and equities) in trading book (both AFS and HFT categories), the
Foreign exchange positions (including open position in precious metals) and trading related derivatives. The
objective of the market risk management is to minimize the impact of losses on earnings and equity capital
arising from market risk.

Policies for management of Market Risk:

The bank has put in place Board approved Asset Liability Management (ALM) policy and Investment Policy
for effective management of market risk in the bank.  The policy sets various risk limits for effective
management of market risk and ensuring that the operations are in line with Bank's expectation of return to
market risk through proper Asset Liability Management. The policy also deals with the reporting framework
for effective monitoring of market risk.

[57)
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The ALM policy specifically deals with liquidity risk management and interest rate risk management
framework. As envisaged in the policy, Liquidity risk is managed through the mismatch analysis, based on
residual maturity / behavioral pattern of assets and liabilities, on a daily basis based on best available data
coverage, as prescribed by the RBI. The bank has put in place mechanism of short-term dynamic liquidity
management and contingent funding plan. Prudential (tolerance) limits are prescribed for different residual
maturity time buckets for efficient asset liability management. Liquidity profile of the bank is evaluated
through various liquidity ratios. The bank has also drawn various contingent measures to deal with any kind
of stress on liquidity position. Bank ensures adequate liquidity managed on a real time basis by Domestic
Treasury through systematic and stable funds planning.

Interest Rate Risk is managed through use of GAP analysis of rate sensitive assets and liabilities and
monitored through prudential (tolerance) limits prescribed. The bank has also put in place Duration Gap
Analysis framework for management of interest rate risk. The bank estimates Earnings at Risk (EaR) and
Modified Duration Gap (DGAP) periodically against adverse movement in interest rate (as prescribed in the
Policy) for assessing the impact on Net Interest Income (NI1) and Economic Value of Equity (EVE) with a view
to optimize shareholder value.

The Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO) /Risk Management Committee of Board (RMCB)
monitors adherence of prudential limits fixed by the bank and determines the strategy in the light of the
market condition (current and expected) as articulated in the ALM policy.

Quantitative Disclosures:

b) In line with the RBI's guidelines, the bank has computed capital for market risk as per Standardized
Duration Approach (SDA) framework for maintaining capital.
The Capital requirements for market risk in trading Book as on 31.03.2017

(¥ in millions )
Interest Rate Risk 1816.66
Equity Position Risk 127.47
Foreign Exchange Risk 54.00
Total 1998.13

Table DF 8
OPERATIONAL RISK

Qualitative Disclosures:

a) Operational Risk:

Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems
orfrom external events. Operational risk includes legal risk but excludes strategic and reputation risks.

Policies on management of Operational Risk:

The Bank has framed Operational Risk Management Policy duly approved by the Bank's Board. Other
policies adopted by the Board which deal with management of Operational risk are (a) Information Systems
Security Policy, (b) Foreign Currency Risk Management Policy (c) Policy document on Know Your
Customers (KYC) and Anti Money Laundering (AML) Procedures (d) IT Business Continuity and Disaster
Recovery Plan (IT BC-DRP).

The Operational Risk Management Policy adopted by the Bank outlines organization structure and detail
processes for management of operational risk. The basic objective of the policy is to closely integrate
operational risk management system into the day-to-day risk management processes of the bank by clearly
assigning roles for effectively identifying, assessing, monitoring and controlling / mitigating operational risk
and by timely reporting of operational risk exposures, including material operational losses. Operational
risks in the Bank are managed through comprehensive and well-articulated internal control frameworks.

(58]
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Quantitative Disclosures:

b) In line with the final guidelines issued by RBI, our Bank has adopted the Basic Indicator Approach for
computing capital for Operational Risk. As perthe guidelines, the capital charge for Operational Risk is equal
to the average over the previous three years (2014-15, 2015-16 & 2016-17) of 15% of positive annual Gross
Income as defined by RBI. As per such estimate, the capital requirement for operational risk as on
31.03.2017is%¥1975.12mn

Table DF 9

INTEREST RATE RISKIN THE BANKING BOOK (IRRBB)

Qualitative Disclosures:

a) Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book:

Interest Rate Risk is the risk where changes in the market interest rates might affect a bank's financial
condition. Changes in interest rates affect both the current earnings (earnings perspective) as also the net
worth of the Bank (economic value perspective). The risk from earnings perspective can be measured as
impact in the Net Interest Income (NII) or Net Interest Margin (NIM). Similarly, the risk from economic value
perspective can be measured as drop in the Economic value of Equity (EVE).

The Bank identifies the risks associated with the changing interest rates on its on-balance sheet and off-
balance sheet exposures in the banking book from a short term (Earning perspective) and long term
(Economic value perspective).

The impact on income (Earning perspective) is measured through use of Earnings at Risk (EaR) by
assuming the re-pricing dates of assets and liabilities are evenly spread across the respective time buckets
and the change in interest rate is uniform across the maturity spectrum. The prudential limit on EaR will be
10% of the previous year Net Interest Income (NII). For the calculation ofimpact on earnings, the Traditional
Gap is taken from the Rate Sensitivity Statement and based on the remaining period from the mid point of a
particular bucket the impact for change in interest rates upto 100 bps is arrived at. The same is reported to
ALCO/Risk Management Committee of Board (RMCB) periodically along with the Rate Sensitivity statement
on monthly basis.

The Bank has adopted Traditional Gap Analysis combined with Duration Gap Analysis for assessing the
impact (as a percentage) on the Economic value of Equity (Economic Value Perspective) by applying a
notional interest rate shock of 200 bps. As per the Guidelines on Banks” Asset Liability Management
Framework-Interest Rate Risk issued by the RBI (DBOD.No.BP.BC.59/21.04.098/2010-11 dated
04.11.2010), the Bank calculates Modified Duration Gap (DGAP) & the impact on the Economic Value of
equity (EVE). Assets and Liabilities are grouped as per Interest Rate Sensitivity Statement & bucket wise
Modified Duration is computed for these groups of Assets and Liabilities using account level coupon and
yield as per yield curves suggested by RBI, actual Re-price date of the individual account is considered for
bucketing, Weighted average Modified duration is calculated at account level by using “Market value”, the
yield is taken as per the internal rating and external rating mapping at account level, Modified duration is
calculated individually for each forward and swap contracts. For investment portfolio, the Modified Duration
of individual items are computed and taken. The DGAP is calculated by the Bank once in a month and is
reported to ALCO/ Risk Management Committee of Board (RMCB).




' Tamilngd
95th Annual Report 2016 - 2017 I / B MLt

Be a step ahead of life

The Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO) / Risk Management Committee of Board (RMCB)
monitors adherence of prudential limits fixed by the bank and determines the strategy in the light of market
conditions (current and expected).

Quantitative Disclosures:

The increase or decrease in earnings and economic value for upward and downward rate shocks based on
the assets and liabilities outstanding as on 31.03.2017 are as follows.

1. The impact of change in Interest Rate i.e Earnings at Risk for increasing 100 Basis points interest rate
shockis ¥363.31 mn (3.48 % of previous year Net Interest Income).

2. Change in Market Value of Equity for 200 basis points interest rate shock is ¥5613.05 mn (17.41 % of Net
worth)

TABLE DF 10
General disclosures for exposures related to counterparty credit risk

Counterparty Credit Risk (CCR) is the risk that a counter party to a transaction could default before the final
settlement of the transaction cash flows. Unlike a firm's exposure to credit risk through a loan, where the
exposure to credit risk is unilateral and only the lending bank faces the risk of loss, CCR creates a bilateral
risk of loss to either party.

Counterparty credit risk in case of derivative contracts arises from the forward contracts. The subsequent
credit risk exposures depend on the value of underlying market factors (e.g., interest rates and foreign
exchange rates), which can be volatile and uncertain in nature. The Bank does not enter into derivative
transactions other than forward contracts.

Credit exposures on forward contracts

The Bank enters into the forward contracts in the normal course of business for proprietary trading and
arbitrage purposes, as well as for our own risk management needs, including mitigation of interest rate and
foreign currency risk. Derivative exposures are calculated according to the current exposures method.
Counterparty Credit exposure as on March 31,2017

Current Credit . Total Credit
. Potential Exposure
Notional Exposure .
Nature . Future Credit | under Current
Amount (positive mark to E E
market value) xposure xposure
Method (CEM)
Forward
contracts 72563.58 1069.61 1494 .45 2564.05
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Composition of Capital Disclosure Templates

TABLE DF 11: Composition of Capital

Part 1l: Template to be used before March 31, 2017 (ie., During the transition period of

Basel Ill Regulatory adjustments)

(% in millions )

transition of regulato%

arch 31,2 017)

Basel Il common disclosure template to be used during the
adjustments (i.e. from April 1, 2013 to

Amounts
Subject to
Pre-Basel ﬁef
I °-
Treatment

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and reserves

Directly issued qualifying common share capital plus
related stock surplus (share premium)

1425.11

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income (and other
reserves)

30620.58

Directly issued capital subject to phase out from
CET1 (only applicable to non-joint stock
companies)

Public sector capital injections grandfathered until
January 1, 2018

Common share capital issued by subsidiaries and
held by third parties (amount allowed in group CETI)

Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory
adjustments

32045.69

Common Equity Tier 1 capital : Regulatory adjustments

Prudential valuation adjustments

oo

Goodwill (net of related tax liability)

Intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights (net of

10

related tax liability)
Deferred tax a%%etsz

11

Cash-flow hedge reserve

12

Shortfall of provisions to expected losses

13

Securitization gain on sale

14

Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on
fair valued liabilities

15

Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

16

Investments in own shares (if not already netted off paid-
up capital on reported balance sheet)

17

Reciprocal cross-holdings in common equity

18

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and
insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions,
where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)
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19

Significant investments in the common stock of banking,
financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope
of regulatory consolidation, net§>f eligible short positions
(amount above 10% threshold)

20

Mortgage servicing rights(amount above 10% threshold)

21

Deferred taé assets arising from temporary
differences™(amount above 10% threshold, net of
related tax liability)

22

Amount exceeding the 15% threshold

23

of which : significant investments in the common stock
of financial entities

24

of which : mortgage servicing rights

25

of which : deferred tax assets arising from temporary
differences

26

National specific regulatory adjustments7

(26a+26b+26¢c+26d)

26a

of which : Investments in the equity capital of
unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries

26b

of which : Investments in the equity capital of
unconsolidated non- financial subsidiaries

26¢

of which : Shortfall in the equity capital of majority
owned financial entities which have not been
consolidated with the bank

26d

of which : Unamortised pension funds expenditures

Regulatory Adjustments Applied to Common Equity Tier
1 in respect of Amounts Subject to Pre-Basel Il
Treatment

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT] For
example: filtering out of unrealised losses on AFS debt
securities (not relevant in Indian context)

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT]

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT]

27

Regulatory adjustments applied to Common Equity
Tier 1 due to insufficient Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2
to cover deductions

28

Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity
Tier 1

29

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1)

32045.69

Additional Tier 1 capital : instruments

30

Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1 instruments
plus related stock surplus (share premium) (31+32)

31

of which : classified as equity under applicable accounting
standards (Perpectual Non-cumulative Preference shares

32

of which : classified as liabilities under applicable
accounting standards (Perpetual debt Instruments)
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33

Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out
from Additional Tier 1

34

Additional Tier 1 instruments (and CET1 instruments not
included in row 5) issued by subsidiaries and held by
third parties (amount allowed in group AT1)

35

of which : instruments issued by subsidiaries subjectto phase out

36

Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory
adjustments

Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatoryadjustme

nts

37

Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instruments

38

Reciprocal cross-holdings in Additional Tier 1 instruments

39

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and
insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions,
where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
issued common share capital of the entity (amount
above 10% threshold)

40

Significant investments in the capital of banking,
financial and insurance entities that are outside the
scope of regulatory consolidation (net of eligible
short positions)

41

National specific requlatory adjustments (41a+41b)

41a

Investments in the Additional Tier 1 capital of
unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries

41b

Shortfall in the Additional Tier 1 capital of majority
owned financial

Regulatory Adjustments Applied to Additional Tier 1 in
respect of Amounts Subject to Pre-Basel 11l Treatment

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT e.g. DTAs]

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT €.g. existing

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT]

42

Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to
insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions

43

Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1
capital

44

Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1)

45

Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + Admissible AT1) (29 +

44a)

32045.69
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Tier 2 capital : instruments and provisions

46

Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus
related stock surplus

47

Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out
from Tier 2

48

Tier 2 instruments (and CET1 and AT1 instruments not
included in rows 5 or 34) issued by subsidiaries and held
by third parties (amount allowed in group Tier 2)

49

of which : instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to
phase out

50

Provisions include the following
a) Investment Reserve 3194.69mn
b) Provision for Standard Asset including
restructured standard assets ¥1601.30 mn
c¢) Provision for unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure
331.90mn

51

Tier 2 capital before requlatory adjustments

1827.89

Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments

52

Investments in own Tier 2 instruments

53

Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 instruments

54

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and
insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions,
where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
issued common share capital of the entity (amount
above the 10% threshold)

55

Significant investments—in the capital banking,
financial and insurance entities that are outside
the scope of regulatory consolidation (net of
eligible short positions)

56

National specific regulatory adjustments (56a+56b)

56a

of which : Investments in the Tier 2 capital of
unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries

56b)

of which : Shortfall in the Tier 2 capital of majority
owned financial entities which have not been
consolidated with the bank

Regulatory Adjustments Applied To Tier 2 in respect of
Amounts Subject to Pre-Basel Ill Treatment

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT
e.g. existing adjustments which are deducted
from Tier 2 at 50%]

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT
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57

Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital

58

Tier 2 capital (T2)

1827.89

59

Total capital (TC =T1 + T2) (45 + 58c)

33873.58

Risk Weighted Assets in respect of Amounts Subject to
Pre-Basel Ill Treatment

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT]

of which: ...

60

Total risk weighted assets (60a + 60b + 60c)

241537.52

60a

of which : total credit risk weighted assets

191871.83

60b

of which : total market risk weighted assets

24976.66

60c

of which : total operational risk weighted assets

24689.03

Capital ratios

61

Common Equity Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted
assets)

13.27%

62

Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets)

13.27%

63

Total capital (as a percentage of risk weighted assets)

14.02%

64

Institution specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1
requirement plus capital conservation and
countercyclical buffer requirements, expressed as a
percentage of risk weighted assets)

65

of which : capital conservation buffer requirement

66

of which : bank specific countercyclical buffer requirement

67

of which : G-SIB buffer requirement

68

Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffers (as a
percentage of risk weighted assets)

NA

National minima (if different from Basel lll)

69

National Common Equity Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different
from Basel Il minimum)

5.50%

70

National Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from Basel Il|
minimum)

7.00%

6.00%

71

National total capital minimum ratio (if different from Basel
[1l minimum)

9.00%

10.25%

Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk

weighting)

72

Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial
entities

73

Significant investments in the common stock of financial
entities

74

Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability)

75

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences

(net of related tax liability)
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Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in

Tier 2

76

Provisions eli%ible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of
exposures subject to standardized approach (prior to
application of cap)

77

Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under
standardized approach

78

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of
exposures subject to internal ratings-based approach
(prior to application of cap)

79

Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal
ratings-based approach

Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements (only

applicable between March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2022)
80 |Current cap on CET1 instruments subject to phase out NA
arrangements

81 |[Amount excluded from CET1 due to cap (excess
over cap after redemptions and maturities)

82 [Current cap on AT1 instruments subject to phase out
arrangements

83 |Amount excluded from AT1 due to cap (excess
over cap after redemptions and maturities)

84 [Current cap on T2 instruments subject to phase out
arrangements

85 [Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess
over cap after redemptions and maturities)

Notes to the template

Row No.
of the

template

Particulars

(X in millions )

10

Deferred tax assets associated with accumulated losses

Deferred tax assets (excluding those associated with accumulated
losses) net of Deferred tax liability

0.00

Total as indicated in row 10

0.00

19

If investments in insurance subsidiaries are not deducted fully from
capital and instead considered under 10% threshold for deduction,
the resultant increase in the capital of bank

of which : Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital

of which : Increase in Additional Tier 1 capital

of which : Increase in Tier 2 capital

26b

If investments in the equity capital of unconsolidated non-financial
subsidiaries are not deducted and hence, risk weighted then :

(i) Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital

(i) Increase in risk weighted assets

50

Eligible Provisions included in Tier 2 capital

1827.89

Eligible Revaluation Reserves included in Tier 2 capital

Total of row 50

1827.89
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TABLE DF 12:

Composition of Capital Reconciliation Requirements

Step 1:
(Annmiilion))
Balance sheet
Balance sheet under
as in financial regulatory
statements scope of
consolidation
As on As on reporting
reporting date | date
A | Capital & Liabilities
" | Paid-up Capital 1425.11 N.A
Reserves & Surplus 30815.27 N.A
Minority Interest 0
Total Capital 32240.38 N.A
ii. | Deposits 321901.50
of which : Deposits from banks 220.48
of which : Customer deposits 321681.02
of which : Other deposits (pl. specify)
iii. | Borrowings 0.00
of which : From RBI 0
of which : From banks 0
of which : From other institutions & 0
agencies
of which : Others (pl. specify) Outside 0
India
of which : Capital instruments 0
iv. | Other liabilities & provisions 15701.78
Total 369843.66 N.A
B | Assets
I. I(:]?j?: and balances with Reserve Bank of 14582.04
Balance with .banks and money at call 4875.54
and short notice
ii. | Investments : 115044.77
of which : Government securities 94105.07

Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd
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of which : Other approved securities 0.00

of which : Shares 301.88

of which : Debentures & Bonds 11602.67

of which : Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures /

) 0.00

Associates

of which : Others (Commercial Papers,

Mutual Funds etc.) 9035.15
iii. | Loans and advances 219723.20

of which : Loans and advances to banks 0.00

of which : Loans and advances to

219723.20
customers
iv. | Fixed assets 1543.87
v. | Other assets 14074.24
of which : Goodwill and intangible assets 0
of which : Deferred tax assets 339.02
vi. | Goodwill on consolidation
vii. | Debit balance in Profit & Loss account 0
Total Assets 369843.66 N.A
Step 2:

1) As the Bank

is not having any subsidiary, no disclosure
relating any legal entity for regulatory consolidation is made.

2) The entire paid up capital of the Bank amounting to ¥1425.11
million is included in CET |I. (refer Item | of DF-11)

3) The break up for Reserves & Surplus 330815.27 mn as shown
in the Bank's financial stdements is given hereunder for the
purpose of reconciliation for calculation of Regulatory Capital in

DF-11.

(X in millions )

As per Balance Sheet Amount As shown in DF-11 Capital

a) Statutory Reserves 10947.79 | Included in Regulatory CET | capital DF-11
(item-3)

b) Capital Reserves 192.11| Included in Regulatory CET | capital DF-11
(item-3)

c)Revenue and Other 17883.41| Included in Regulatory CET | capital DF-11

Reserves (item-3)

d) Investment reserve 194.69 | Included in Regulatory Tier Il capital DF-
11(item-50)

e) Special Reserve u/s 1359.00 | Included in Regulatory CET | Capital (DF11-

36(1) (Viii) of IT Act 1961 item 3)

f) Balance in P&L 238.27 | Included in CET | (item 3- DF11)

30815.27
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4) a)Other Liabilities:-a) Provision for Standard assets including
restructured standard assets 1601.30 mn (item-50 - DF-11)

b) Provision for unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure 31.90 mn(item-50 -DF-11)

However they are shown under Tier Il capital for computation of Regulatory Capital
(DF-11) as noted in brackets as per extant RBI guidelines.

Step 3

Extract of Basel Ill common disclosure template (

(Part | / Part Il whichever, applicable)

with added column) - Table DF-11

Common Equity Tier 1 capital:

instruments and reserves

Source based on
Component |reference numbers /
of regulatory |letters of the balance
capital sheet under the
reported by |regulatory scope of
bank consolidation from step
2
1 D|rectIY issued qualifying common share (and
equivalent for non-joint stock companies)
capltal plus related stock surplus 1425.11
2 |Retained earnings
3 |Accumulated other comprehensive 30620.58
income (and other reserves)
4 |Directly issued capital subject to phase out
from CET1 (only applicable to non-joint stock Companies)
5 [Common share capital issued by
subsidiaries and held by third parties
(amount allowed in group CETI)
6 [Common Equity Tier 1 capital before 32045.69
regulatory adjustments
7 |Prudential valuation adjustments 0.00
8 |Goodwill (net of related tax liability)
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Table DF-13:

Main Features of Regulatory Capital

S.No Description Equity Shares
Tamilnad Mercantile Bank
1 lissuer
Ltd
2 | Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN or Bloomberg Not listed
identifier for private placement)
3 Governing law(s) of the instrument Indian Laws
Regulatory treatment
4 |Transitional Basel Ill rules Common equity Tier 1
5 | Post-transitional Basel Ill rules Common equity Tier 1
6 |Eligible at solo / group / group & solo Solo
7 |Instrument type Common Shares
Amount recognized in regulatory capital (Rs. in ar
8 |million, as of Moust recen report}lng gate)( ¥1425.11 million
9 |Par value of instrument 10 per share
] o Shareholder’s
10 | Accounting classification Equity
11 | Original date of issuance Various
12 |Perpetual or dated Perpetual
13 | Original maturity date No Maturity
14 |Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval No
15 |Optional call date, contingent call dates and NA
redemption amount
16 |Subsequent call dates, if applicable NA
Coupons / dividends
17 | Fixed or floating dividend / coupon NA
18 |Coupon rate and any related index NA
19 |Existence of a dividend stopper No
20 | Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory Fully Discretionary
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21 |Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem No

22 | Noncumulative or cumulative Non-Cumulative

23 | Convertible or non-convertible NA

24 |If convertible, conversion trigger(s) NA

25 | If convertible, fully or partially NA

26 |If convertible, conversion rate NA

27 |If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion NA

28 |If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into NA

29 |If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into NA

30 |Write-down feature No

31 | If write-down, write-down trigger(s) NA

32 |If write-down, full or partial NA

33 | If write-down, permanent or temporary NA

34 | If temporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism NA

35 Position in subordination hierarchy in Subordinated to all other
liquidation (specify instrument type -
immediately senior to instrument) claims

36 |Non-compliant transitioned features No

37 |If yes, specify non-compliant features NA

Table DF-14

Full Terms and Conditions of Regulator Capital Instruments

The details of the Tier Il capital [Bonds]raised by the Bank

Table DF-14 : Full Terms and Conditions of Regulatory Capital Instruments

Instruments

Full Terms and Conditions

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
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Table DF-15:

Disclosure Requirements for Remuneration

‘Qualitative
disclosures

Information  relating to the
composition and mandate of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee
has been formed with 4
Directors and the MD & CEO.
The mandate of the committee
is to fix remuneration in line with
the risk taken by employees.

Information relating to the
design and structure of
remuneration processes and
the key  features and
objectives of remuneration
policy.

Bank's Remuneration Policy,
containing the guidelines on
compensation of Whole time
directors/  Chief  executive
officers/ risk takers, control
function etc was approved by
Remuneration committee of
Board in its meeting dated
27.12.2012. The key principle of
the policy would be that the
compensation shall be aligned
with the type and nature of risk
taken by employees. The
degree of difficulty, specialised
nature of job and risk
associated would be measured
and compensation would be
fixed accordingly.

()

Description of the ways in which
current and future risks are
taken into account in the
remuneration  processes. It
should include the nature and
type of the key measures used
to take account of these risks.

Regional Heads, Branch
Heads, IT department officials
and Dealers in Treasury & IBD
are paid special pay based on
risk taken by them

Description of the ways in which

the bank seeks to link
performance during a
performance measurement
period with levels of

remuneration.

A performance based incentive
is to be developed
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(e)

A discussion of the bank's policy
on deferral and vesting of
variable remuneration and a
discussion of the bank's policy
and criteria  for  adjusting
deferred remuneration before
vesting and after vesting.

There is
remuneration
employees

no deferred
payment to

Description of the different
forms of variable remuneration
(i.e. cash, shares, ESOPs and
other forms) that the bank
utilizes and the rationale for
using these different forms.

The remuneration is in the form
of cash only. There is no

remuneration

in the form of

Shares, ESOP and other forms.

Quantitative
disclosures
(The quantitative
disclosures
should only
cover Whole
Time Directors /
Chief Executive
Officer / Other
Risk Takers)

—~

)

Number of meetings held by
the Remuneration
Committee during the
financial year and
remuneration paid to its
members.

Number of meetings held by the

Remuneration
NIL.

Committee is

—~

h)

Number of employees
having received a variable
remuneration award during
the financial year.

Nil

Number and total amount of
sign-on awards made
during the financial year.

Nil

Details of guaranteed bonus,
if any, paid as joining / sign
on bonus.

Nil

Details of severance pay, in
addition to accrued benefits,
if any.

Nil

Total amount of outstanding
deferred remuneration, split
into cash, shares and share-
linked instruments and other
forms.

Nil

Total amount of deferred
remuneration paid out in
the financial year.

Nil
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()

Breakdown of amount of
remuneration awards for the
financial year to show fixed
and variable, deferred and
non-deferred.

Nil

Total amount of outstanding
deferred remuneration and
retained remuneration
exposed to ex post explicit
and / or implicit
adjustments.

Nil

Total amount of reductions
during the financial year due
to ex- post explicit
adjustments.

Nil

Total amount of reductions
during the financial year due
to ex- post implicit
adjustments.

Nil

Table DF 16

Equities-Disclosure for Banking Book Positions

The bank has no exposures in equities under Banking Book.

Table DF 17

Leverage Ratio Disclosure

The Leverage ratio act as a credible supplementary measure to the bank based capital requirement. The
Bank is required to maintain a minimum leverage ratio of 4.5%. The Bank's leverage ratio, calculated in
accordance with the RBI guidelines is as follows;
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COMPARISON OF ACCOUNTING ASSETS AND LEVERAGE RATIO EXPOSURE

(X in millions )

S.No.

Particulars

Amount as
of June 16

Amount
as of
Sep’16

Amount
as of
Dec’16

Amount
as of
Mar’17

Total consolidated
assets as per published
financial statements
include SFTs

350599.84

359884.62

379897.10

369843.66

Adjustment for
investments in banking,
financial, insurance or
commercial entities that
are consolidated for
accounting purposes but
outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Adjustment for fiduciary
assets recognized on
the balance  sheet
pursuant to the
operative accounting
framework but excluded
from the leverage ratio
exposure measure

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

for
financial

Adjustments
derivative
instruments

1460.79

1523.99

1 500.48

1494.4 5

Adjustment for
securities financing
transactions (i.e. repos
and similar secured
lending)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Adjustment  for  off-
balance sheet items (i.e.
conversion to credit
equivalent amounts of
off-  balance  sheet
exposures)

40017.86

40830.13

43369.55

44727.01

Other adjustments

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Leverage ratio

exposure

392078.49

402238.74

424767.13

416065.12
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Table DF 18

Leverage ratio common disclosure

(% in millions )

S.No

Leverage Ratio
Framework

Amount
as of
June 16

Amount
as of
Sep’16

Amount
as of
Dec’16

Amount
as of
Mar’17

On-balance sheet exposures

On-balance sheet items
(excluding derivatives and
SFTs, but including
collateral)

350599.84

359884.62

379897.10

369843.66

(Asset amounts deducted
in determining Basel Il
Tier 1 capital)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Total on-balance sheet
exposures (excluding
derivatives and SFTs)
(sum of lines 1 and 2)

350599.84

359884.62

379897.10

369843.66

Derivative exposures

Replacement cost
associated with all
derivatives  transactions
(i.,e. net of eligible cash

variation margin)

0

Add-on amounts for PFE
associated with all
derivatives transactions

1460.79

1523.99

1500.48

1494.45

Gross-up for derivatives
collateral provided where
deducted from the
balance sheet assets
pursuant to the operative
accounting framework

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(Deductions of receivables
assets for cash variation
margin provided in
derivatives transactions)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(Exempted CCP leg of
client-cleared trade
exposures)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Adjusted effective notional
amount of written credit
derivatives

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
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(Adjusted effective 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
10 notional offsets and add-

on deductions for written

credit derivatives)

Total derivative 1460.79 1523.99 1500.48 1494 .45
11 | exposures (sum of lines

4 to 10)

Securities financing transaction exposures

Gross SFT assets (with no 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
12 recognition of netting),

after adjusting for sale

accounting transactions

(Netted amounts of cash 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13 payables and cash

receivables of gross SFT

assets)
14 CCR exposure for SFT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

assets
15 Agent transaction 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

exposures

Total securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
16 financing transaction

exposures (sum of lines

12 to 15)

Other off-balance sheet exposures

Off-balance sheet | 94569.11 | 101630.82 | 108686.41 99677.11
17 | exposure at gross notional

amount

(Adjustments for | (54551.25) | (60800.69) | (65316.86) | (54950.10)
18 | conversion to credit

equivalent amounts)
19 Off-balance sheet items | 40017.86 | 40830.13 | 43369.55 | 44727.01

(sum of lines 17 and 18)

Capital and total exposures

o0 | Tier 1 capital 29222.37 | 29222.37 | 29222.37 | 32045.69
21 Total exposures (sum of | 392078.49 | 402238.74 | 424767.13 | 416065.12

lines 3, 11, 16 and 19)

Leverage ratio

22 | Basel lll leverage ratio 7.45% 7.26% 6.88% 7.70%

(77)
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH 2017

8wmuy Bewed @OILIY &sevosE 31-03-2017

(Rs. in thousands)

Schedule | \q on 31.03.2017 | As on 31.03.2016
S L6U6m600T

CAPITAL & LIABILITIES :
CLPEOSHEOTIPLD & QLIMMLIL|SHETHLD
Capital 1 1425115 2845
UMRI@ eLPe0SHE0TLD
Reserves & Surplus 2 30815270 29413940
@516E0Gs6T ONILD 6TEbAUNBLILIEDE
Deposits 3 321901495 303688650
emeuLlL| BHaeT
Borrowings 4 Nil 3331991
QUDM SHL6OTEET
Other Liabilities and Provisions 5 15701781 16225698
851 uMMILILGEeT ONID QFISSBES6T

TOTAL 369843661 352663124
ASSETS :
Q&S S| SHEH6T
Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 14582046 13978201
agnés Smuyd fsriel eumiBuled 2 eTemr &BLiLLD
Balances with Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice 7 4875549 2010672
857 eumBuIed 2 6Tem SBLILYLD
Investments 8 115044766 88647069
WaSBa6T
Advances 9 219723197 225777127
Q&BNBSHS &L 6EOTHET
Fixed Assets 10 1543865 1563924
BeMEOWITENT EIETEHSISHEH6T
Other Assets 11 14074238 20686131
857 ENSFHIGBE6T

TOTAL 369843661 352663124
Contingent Liabilities 12 117682391 116390436
SHSTLILMIGENET SlgnIFfleHs aummILILEeT
Bills for Collection 14868838 9733638
QUSHAIGS CILDMIGESNE0TL. Leda6i
Significant Accounting Policies 17
PHEW HEDUTEHS QBD(LPEDDSHET
Notes form part of Accounts 18
HEUUTHGSE6ET FLOLIHSLDTET elenssesmr
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet
GG GBI (BeTen Sl LeuemevurseT, eurhld SbLLBene &cur&CsndE Semerohs UGSSULNGLD.

Sd\- S.R.Aravind Kumar
Sd\- K.Nagarajan

Sd\- B.Vijayadurai
Directors

Sd\- K.N.Rajan

Directors

Thoothukudi
14.06.2017

Sd\- P.C.G.Asok Kumar

Sd\- V.V.D.N.Vikraman

Sd\- S.Ezhil Jothi
Sd\- K.V.Rajan

Sd\- P.Yesuthase|
Directors

Sd\- S.Annamalai
Chairman

Sd\- B.S.Keshava Murthy
Sd\- A.Shidambaranathan

n

Directors
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2017

@GDHU EG):QL& &GO-OT$© 31-03-2017 (Rs_ in thousands)
Schedule 1 \q on 31.03.2017 | As on 31.03.2016
S L6U6m600T
INCOME
6 (HLDITE0TLD
Interest earned (auipuiisor cpeod OLHDE) 13 33809605 32521703
Other Income (@sy eugbLoneDILD) 14 4305081 3185045
EXPENDITURE TOTAL 38114686 35706748
615606Y &6
Interest Expended 15 22301536 22081555
QBMB&HSLILLL 6L LR
Operating Expenses 16 7055700 6369634
[BEDL(LPEDD 61FE06Y &6
Provisions & Contingencies 5590803 3233994
@516EGS6T ONILD TSTLINTT 615606 86T
PROFIT / LOSS TOTAL 34948039 31685183
Se0rLILD/BeigL LD
Net Profit for the year 3166647 4021565
8ny eumLEsSeT Ber SeomuLd
Add : Profit brought forward 27063 13866
QFTD QUBLSSW Seonusded LB sTens
APPROPRIATIONS TOTAL 3193710 4035431
REIHEBBET OFILIGHEDEN
Transfer to statutory reserve 950000 1210000
SLLLYTOUDNENT @SISSLIDE DIHDOUILILL S
Transfer to other reserves 1200000 1900000
JEMSUTL QFSSLIDE LDMHDLUILILL S
Transfer to capital reserve 192110 NIL
LPEOSENT QRBIGEL NS LOMHDLILIL LS|
Transfer to Investment reserve 285 451
WEOB RESELINES LMHDILL LS
Transfer to Special Reserve 36(1)(viii) 270000 350000
Aol QFISSLILDE LLIHOILLLS
Dividend
Interim Dividend & Dividend tax paid 343047 479307
BemLsaMe0 ooy URSE® eufl 2 UL
Proposed Dividend(e_sGsélsaiurL. Somu LEIER) 57005
Tax on Dividend @eonmu umiLighaner eurfl) 11605
Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 238268 27063
SIBSHS ObeUUTIADSTET C1&M6T0T(B QFEELILBLD ESHMems
Face value of the equity share is Rs.10/-
TOTAL 3193710 4035431
Earning per share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs) 17 22 28
Significant Accounting Policies 18
Notes form part of Accounts
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account.
Sd\- M.Gunasekaran Sd\- S.Kandavelu Sd\- M.A.Nayagam Sd\- R.Ravindran
General Manager General Manager General Manager General Manager
Sd\- PC.Panda Vide our report of even date attached
Company Secretary For Maharaj N R Suresh And Co.

FRN No. 019318
Sd\- N.R Jayadevan
Thoothukudi Chartered Accountants
14.06.2017 Partner (M.No.23838)
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet (Rs. in thousands)
SCHEDULE | - CAPITAL As on 31.03.2017 As on 31.03.2016
SILLEUNETIT 1 LPEDSHEDTLD
50,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
eB.10/~ efigld so.go,o%,ooo LIMBI&&6T 5000000 5000000
Issued, Subscribed, Called-up and Paid-up Capital 2845 2845
14,25,11,454 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
QUPEISLILLLGID QUDMIS 6\&smeTemlILLLSID eb.10/-
sliglb 14,251,454
14,22,27,000 Bonus shares of Rs.10/- each allotted
(Previous year : Nil) 1422270 NIL

TOTAL 1425115 2845
SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS As on 31.03.2017 As on 31.03.2016
SILLEUMETTT 2 QFISSBH6T HNID erebdUiBLILIEDEY
I.  Statutory Reserves
FLLLLTOULDTEN QI6SBEH6T
Opening Balance 9997786 8787786
Spibu Ly
Additions during the year 950000 1210000
iy Shemgsd. Eoifsog TOTAL 10947786 9997786
Il. Capital Reserve
PEOSENT QBIBEBES6T
Opening Balance 109273 109273
Spyibu By
Additions during the year 192110 Nil
BLOY Sbevoriged GEibHEI
Less: Transfer to Share Capital (Bonus issues) 109273 Nil
TOTAL 192110 109273
lll. Revenue and Other Reserves
CLPEOSET QBHIBEBS6T
Opening Balance 18190818 16290367
SpIibu bl
Additions during the year 1200285 1900451
BLOY Shevoriged GaifbHEI
Less: Transfer to Share Capital (Bonus issues) 1312997 Nil
TOTAL 18078106 18190818
IV. Special Reserve U/s.36(1)(viii) of LT.Act
Aply @s6E6 - eudmwneref s lidfey 360 (Viii)
Opening Balance 1089000 739000
Spribu By
Additions during the year 270000 350000
LY Sbevoriged GEribHE!
Deductions during the year Nil Nil
iy g S5m0 TOTAL 1359000 1089000
V. Balance in Profit and Loss Account 238268 27063
SeorL BERQLE SHevoradeiTule LElGSWIneor &edmuLb
TOTAL : (I, II, I, IV & V) 30815270 29413940
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet (Rs. in thousands)
SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS As on 31.03.2017 As on 31.03.2016
Sl Leueneror 3 emaLILBS 6T
A. I. Demand Deposits

GoL L emeuliL|BBeaeT
I) From Banks 475 350
URIBS 6L LS BB
ii) From Others 25044727 19895686
hmleurseriL bbb

Il. Savings Bank Deposits 49740216 39020838
GoLAlL &H6eT0TEGE6IT

lll. Term Deposits
&Piss &ne eeulLBH
I) From Banks 220000 11790000
eI serL LBl BHSI
ii) From Others 246896077 232981776
hfeisaiLACHE TOTAL 321901495 303688650

B. I. Deposits of Branches in India 321901495 303688650

SpPuneled SmesGD Hewensefed 2 aen eneULILBBHsET

II. Deposits of Branches outside India Nil NIl
QeuefliBM@G Hemerserfisd 2 6o emeuLiLjBHaeT

Schedules to Balance Sheet (Rs. in thousands)
SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS As on 31.03.2017 As on 31.03.2016
SlLLENEMETTT 4 GUDD &L GITEH6IT
l. Borrowings in India

SnpBwneded euNRIBWI HLeOTH6T
i. Reserve Bank of India Nil 3130000
flamel eurmSuILLOBHSI
ii. Other Banks Nil Nil
857 euRIBUILLSGBHSI
iii. Other Institutions and Agencies Nil 201991
8z B8 BoieuamIseiLLLIGbS!
Il. Borrowings outside India Nil Nil
QevefBEnGaefisd QDD HLEOTEHET
TOTAL Nil 3331991
Secured borrowings included in | and Il above Nil Nil
GwGe @Bl wohoid | & |l ungisresiLLL BLeTH6T
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(Rs. in thousands)

Schedules to Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE 5-OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

As on 31.03.2017

As on 31.03.2016

Sl LeuenertT 5 57 OUTDILILEST LOHNID @&5ISESEGE6T

I.  Bills Payable 1733885 1251770
QanGasIUL. Geuevorigwl Lled&eT

II. Inter Office Adjustments (Net) Nil Nil
BewensEbHHemLGW 2 66 [Heaieneusei

lll. Interest Accrued 2222548 2008370
QanGasUUL Geuetoriowl euLlp

IV. Deferred Tax liability 980312 995820
Hetefl emeusSILLL eurflssmeoT aUTmILILS6T

V. Others ( Including Provisions ) 10765036 11969738
HDenel (R&I6SBS6T)

TOTAL 15701781 16225698

SCHEDULE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WITH
RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

As on 31.03.2017

As on 31.03.2016

Sl Leuemevor 6 apnes LUy Mamel euriduied 2 eer
8L

Cash in hand 1668705 1850986
apnes Sy
Balance with Reserve Bank of India in Current Account 12913341 12127215
el eurmiBuied BLLUL Sevore@®eted 2 atem @bl

TOTAL 14582046 13978201

SCHEDULE 7-BALANCES WITH BANKS & MONEY
AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE

As on 31.03.2017

As on 31.03.2016

Sl Leuemeror 7 &gy eurriBuied 2 _eten LD GSmiBwl
SM0SHHD CUMMRIGHSHFIPUl OSHTEDHIL|LD
I.  InIndia

Spduwineiied

[) Balances with Banks
857 eurIBuiled 2 _etemr SpLiy

a) In current accounts 192636 210811
BLLUL &600T6ES6red
b) In other Deposits 25 500000
DD  &H600TE G SH6rT6d
ii) Money at call and short notice
GNIBW BTOHBD AUMRIGHEIQUI OSHTENS
a)With Banks 3450000 Nil
eunIB&erfled
b)With other institutions Nil Nil
8571 BnieueTmRiseMLLBHS!
TOTAL 3642661 710811
II.  Outside India
QeuefimrGaeried
a) In current accounts 160888 1299861
BLLL| &600T6:@&ered
b) In other Deposits 1072000 Nil
DD  &H600TE G SH6rT6d
TOTAL 1232888 1299861
GRAND TOTAL 4875549 2010672
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Schedules to Balance Sheet (Rs. in thousands)
SCHEDULE 8 - INVESTMENTS As on 31.03.2017 As on 31.03.2016
SILEUEDHETTT 8 (LPHEOBEHET

. Investments in India
SirBuinefett WPpeeOGE6
i Government securities 94105070 77858135
Olps USSITRIGET
ii. Other approved securities Nil Nil
wHy SRdsfesiurL LSSImIsET
iii. Shares 301878 348870
LIMBI&&6IT
iv. Debentures & Bonds 11602669 7818995
HLEOT LSSTHRISET
V. Others - Mutual Fund, Commercial Paper 9035149 2621069
LHmemeN - LFevLTBS, eUTssHs LSSIMmIEET
TOTAL 115044766 88647069
Gross Investments 116067273 88989818
QNS CLPSEOBEET
Less: Depreciation 1022507 342749
568 : GabTsShene @aledE®
TOTAL 115044766 88647069
1. Investments outside India Nil Nil
eeuelBnGaefied LpHeOBEE6
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Schedules to Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE 9 - ADVANCES

Al

Sl LeNMETTT O CBNBSHS HLEOTHET

Bills purchased and discounted
1p610&6)600TL. QIFILISSHHILD EUMMBIBUISHILDTET LN6dS6T
Cash credits, overdrafts and loans
repayable on demand

UmasLILUDN, SFS UDM| 6lens LDHMILD
GaL@D umpgl 6&6MBHs CeleroTioul HLE0TSH6T
Term Loans

&HM60&E\EHBEYETEN &L 60THET

TOTAL

Secured by tangible assets

QNG QFTHENS LNemeuoTLDTS GLIHDE

Covered by Bank / Government Guarantee
6uRId LbOMILD SIFsNRIsS 2_HETEUTSHSILET nloWig

Unsecured
NemevonLILBl6bEOTSH S

TOTAL

Advances in India
8iduineiled HLeTEHET
Priority Sector
weoteyflemiol irfley
Public Sector
eungisgienmLl fley
Banks

6UMRIB&6T

Others

LDDHMEmE

TOTAL

(Rs. in thousands)
As on 31.03.2017 As on 31.03.2016

5428318 6225602
138301797 131036829
75993082 88514696
219723197 225777127
217070698 224994993
1359328 39741
1293171 742393
219723197 225777127
128136637 118401108
3897996 7602749
Nil Nil
87688564 99773270
219723197 225777127




95th Annual Report 2016 - 2017

' Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

Be a step ahead of life

TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet

(Rs. in thousands)

SCHEDULE 10 - FIXED ASSETS

As on 31.03.2017

As on 31.03.2016

Sl Leuemetor 10 [BemeDILITETT QFTSHSI8SH6T

Premises

SLIQL TBIS6IT

At cost as on March 31, preceding year
WPHemSW Shevor® LDMTE 316D euNmRISW eflemedLiLip
Additions during the year

BLLIL| SheToTiEed eUMRISWIS

TOTAL*
Deductions during the year
[BLLIL| Sphevoriged SLGHSI
Depreciation to date
mreng euemguied GILILDTeTLD
TOTAL

Other Fixed Assets ( including furniture

and fixtures)

LImBemeoWInesT QFTSHSHIHSH6T

(Slguieuens GILMIHLEEHLD GorhgHemed)

At cost as on March 31, preceding year
WPHeDSI Shevor(® LDMTE 3160 euMMRISII eXlemeDLiLip
Additions during the year

BLLIL Sh600TIged QUMTRISWIS]

TOTAL
Deductions during the year
TBLLIL| Sbevoriged SLSHSI
Depreciation to date
mrengl euemguilsd GsILDmeoTLd
TOTAL

* - Includes building under construction at cost
(Rs.in thousands)13596 (Previous year 23778)

GRAND TOTAL (I & 1)

608205 562511

72333 45694
680538 608205
680538 608205
205533 199481
475005 408724
3247700 2667972
313073 582093
3560773 3250065

2700 2365
3558073 3247700
2489213 2092500
1068860 1155200
1543865 1563924
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Schedules to Balance Sheet

(Rs. in thousands)

SCHEDULE 11 - OTHER ASSETS

VI

VII.

Sl Leuemeror 11 - 57 QOFTHSHIGEHET

Inter-Office adjustments (Net)
BenensEnsBenL Gl 2 _6iTerm [BeniemelaeT

Interest accrued

eugGeuevoTioul UL LR

Tax paid in advance / tax deducted at source
pevTeoTesns aFSSW / Hiessd eFiurL eurfl
Stationery and stamps

USSBMIGET, LINITRIGET LDMMILD Slehaed SHEmeDEHET
Non-Banking Assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
BLET QUMESEHGEHTE ALND RSl asmled &mns asnsgssem
Deferred Tax Asset

seiterl emeusSLLILL euflssner 615nSSISHsH6T

Other Assets

857 65NSHFIBE6ET

TOTAL

As on 31.03.2017 As on 31.03.2016
Nil Nil
2687527 2380350
5718423 8116645
10942 11810
Nil Nil
339020 292259
5318326 9885067
14074238 20686131

Schedules to Balance Sheet

(Rs. in thousands)

SCHEDULE 12 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Sl Leuemerr 12 ShHTULMIGmeT Slgnisilss aUTMILILGET

Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts
amIBs® erdnner meel G Canlsensaer

Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange contracts
erBTuMTLY SibBul eFeeuetoll QUILIHSHISET60TTE0
Q&nGes Geuevonoul GILITMILIL|S6T

Guarantee given on behalf of constituents in India
QUMRBEDSILITENTHEhSSMET (BhSwneisd) 2 _sHBraunsd
Q&MBS MY

Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations
SIBSHSHEUTHEBEHTET ShBHTEUTET [HL6UIREENEHSHEIED
FDULSEnIQUI OILITMILIL|S6T

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account not provided for and Liab.under DEAF
PssiuL Gaueuonowl QUUBSHIBEHSEHTEN cLPeISET
OFOEBERHEHTET QEBEILLL ASTEDE

TOTAL

As on 31.03.2017 As on 31.03.2016
144934 100290
72563580 76737575
34140491 29510563
10295690 9551431
537696 490577
117682391 116390436
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Schedules to Profit and Loss account

(Rs. in thousands)

SCHEDULE 13 - INTEREST EARNED

For the year ended 31.03.2017

For the year ended 31.03.2016

SILL6UemET0T 13 6ULIR 6UEMEUNED 6)IHLDITEOTLD

l. Interest / discount on advances / bills 25160156 24781476
BLETGEGES ULy LOMILD edsemen ipevse el 65ILIS ULl

Il. Income on investments 7987360 7327895
Wwaed@seafieor Guifled euHLDTEOTLD

M. Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of 316587 134596
India and other inter-bank funds
flemel eurmid OMILD Ssr eumidsefied 2 _erer
SmUysErs&il auLlp

IV. Others 345502 277736
LDMHMeme

TOTAL 33809605 32521703

SCHEDULE 14 - OTHER INCOME 31.03.2017 31.03.2016

Sl L6UemET0T 13 6ULIR 6UEMBUNED 6)IHLDITEOTLD

l. Commission, exchange and brokerage 1187632 1060690
BLSl6weT LOOHMILD BTG 6UemELTED

Il. Profit on sale of investments 1457199 443389
WeeSGasmen elHm euenauled SeomuLb
Loss on sale of investments (40133) (33023)
WPseBsemen eNHm euemaEUIed [HEIRLLD

M. Profit on revaluation of investments --- ---
WedBaemen LNIWSLINE OFLGmSLID SeomLLD

V. Profit on sale of land, building and other assets 2266 1401
[Beold, &LIPLLD DD AEEEIEEmeT AN eumsLisd Semd
Loss on sale of land, building and other assets (1163) (690)
[BeoLd, &LIQLLD OM EENEEGIGEHmET DD eueMELTD HEgLLD

V. Profit on exchange transactions 169796 216346
SibBW 61FeeTe0tfl LMDDLD eLPedLD GLHD &6dTLILD

VI. Miscellaneous income 1529484 1496932
Um euemsaefied 6)HLDTEOTLD

TOTAL 4305081 3185045
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Schedules to Profit and Loss account (Rs. in thousands)
SCHEDULE 15 - INTEREST EXPENDED For the year ended 31.03.2017 | For the year ended 31.03.2016
SlLLeUmetT 15 AUl 61Fe0eNE0TRIS6T
[.  Interest on deposits 22122720 21614253
swallil] BHGEBHSNET QLR
II. Interest on Reserve Bank of India / 62513 256004
Inter-Bank borrowings
el eumd WHNID 57 eumBseiLImHS UM
sLaOIGGMW QuLlp
lll. Others 116303 211298
LDHMEmEN
TOTAL 22301536 22081555
SCHEDULE16 - OPERATING EXPENSES 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
SlLL6UEmeTTT 16 - BB 61F6E06)E6T
. Payment to and provisions for employees 3778413 3499546
oo SLITEEBEETE FITLDMEID LOHMID @BHIEEG OFLILILILILL D6
II.  Rent, taxes and lightings 710363 620112
eunLems, eurfl OMILD LTSN QFe06YS6T
Ill.  Printing and stationery 110722 110139
OI5&HE60 LDOMILD 6TLPSIOIMIHET CUEMDESET
IV.  Advertisement and publicity 76365 95151
eflenLburLD
V.  Depreciation on Bank's Property 402765 334542
amBwler asnsgaaats CaibmeD
VI.  Directors Fees Allowances & Exp. 17626 15384
Bué@piaeiar Sev HNID Sleeusiav LHMID EFEEEBET
VII.  Auditors' fees and expenses (including branch auditors) 11229 9774
semlldevswnenisetsr Yev ONID OFeeBET
(Bewenaelieht HeuolbenaWNeTIGEEHSTET 60 Germgeme)
VIIl. Law charges 4250 4211
ELL 616606 &6T
IX. Postages, telegrams, telephones, etc. 148368 137127
sUed, BHP, QBMemeGLE QFeeyseT
X.  Repairs and maintenance 191842 178139
UWPEILNTSEe O LFMLDILL 65606 saT
Xl.  Insurance 290664 252162
sMINLG QBTews
XII.  Other expenditure 1313093 1113347
LDNM Q\FEIEYE6T
TOTAL 7055700 6369634
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED
57 VE ROAD THOOTHUKUDI-628002

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THEACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2017.

SCHEDULE 17: SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

GENERAL.:
A. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on ongoing concern concept, historical cost convention
unless otherwise stated and conform to the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, (GAAP) in which
encompasses applicable statutory provisions, regulatory norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) from time to time, Accounting Standards (AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent applicable and current
practices prevailing in the Banking Industry in India and conform to statutory provisions and practices
prevailing within the banking industry.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements prescribed under the
Third schedule (Form A and Form B) of the Banking Regulations Act 1949. The items of income and
expenditure are taken on accrual basis except where specifically stated and it conforms to the guidelines
issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for banks.

B. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptionsin
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as of the date of the
financial statement and the reported income and expenses during the reporting period. Management
believes that the estimates and assumptions used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent
and reasonable. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Future results could differ from these
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future
periods.

C. Significant changes in Accounting policies

Proposed dividend:

In terms of Revised Accounting Standard [AS4] Contingencies and events occurring after Balance sheet
date as notified by the Ministry of Corporate affairs through amendments to companies (Accounting
Standards) amendment rules 2016, dated 30 March 2016, the company has not accounted for proposed
dividend as a liability as at 31st march 2017. The proposed dividend was however accounted for as a
liability as at 31st march 2016 in line with the existing accounting standard applicable at that time.
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2. FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS:

i. Foreign currency balances both, under assets and liabilities, outstanding forward exchange contracts
and swaps are evaluated at the year-end rates published by FEDAI. The resultant profit / loss is shown
asincome/loss.

ii. Deposit accounts denominated in foreign currency such as FCNR (B) EEFC, RFC and placement of
such deposits in foreign currency are recorded at year-end Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of
India (FEDAI) rates. Foreign currency loan accounts are also disclosed at the year-end FEDAI rates.

iii. Foreign currency income and expenditure items of domestic operations are translated at the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

iv. Contingent liabilities on account of acceptances, endorsements and other obligations including
guarantees and Letters of Credit denominated in foreign currencies are translated at year-end FEDAI
rates.

2. INVESTMENTS:
A) Classification of investments has been made as per the guidelines of Reserve Bank of India.

i) The entire investment portfolio of the Bank is classified under three categories viz. "Held to Maturity",
"Available for sale" and "Held for Trading".

Securities that are held principally for resale within 90 days from the date of purchase are classified under
the HFT Category. Investments that the company intends to hold till maturity are classified under the
HTM category or as per RBI guidelines. Securities which are not classified in the above categories are
classified under the AFS category.

» Transfer between the categories Reclassification of investments from one category to other, if done,
is in accordance with RBI guidelines. Transfer of script from AFS/HFT Category to HTM category is made
atthe lower of book value or market value.

> Incase of transfer of securities from HTM to AFS/HFT category, the investments held under HTM ata
discount are transferred to AFS/HF T category at the acquisition price and investments placed in the HTM
category at a premium are transferred to AFS/HFT at amortized cost.

» Transfer ofinvestments from AFS to HF T or vice versais done at the book value. Depreciation carried
if any on such investments is also transferred from one category to another.

The investments are classified for the purpose of Balance Sheet under five groups viz. (i) Government
securities, (ii) Other approved securities, (iii) Shares, (iv) Debentures and Bonds and (v) Others.

Brokerage/commission received on subscriptions is reduced from the cost.

Brokerage, commission, securities transaction tax etc. paid in connection with acquisition of investments are
expensed upfrontand excluded from cost.

Broken period interest paid / received on debt instruments is treated as interest expense / income and is
excluded from cost/ sale consideration.
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B) Valuation of investments is done as follows:

i) Investments held under “Held to Maturity” are valued at cost price. Wherever the cost price is
more than the face value, the premium paid is amortized over the remaining period of maturity. Profit on
sale of securities under “Held to Maturity” category is initially taken to Profit & Loss account and then
appropriated to Capital Reserve Account. If there is aloss itis charged to Profit & Loss account.

i) Investments classified under “Available for Sale” category are marked to market on quarterly basis.
Shares held under “Available for sale” are marked to market on weekly basis. Scrip wise appreciation /
Depreciation is segregated group-wise. The Net Depreciation category wise is charged to Profit & Loss
account. The NetAppreciation in any category is ignored.

iii) Investments classified under “Held for Trading” category except shares are marked to market scrip-
wise on daily basis. Shares held under “Held for Trading” are marked to market on weekly basis. The net

depreciation group wise is charged to Profit and Loss account and the net appreciation is ignored.

iv) Investments received in lieu of restructured advances/under SDR scheme are valued in accordance
with RBI guidelines.

V) Investments are valued at year-end as per RBI guidelines as follows:

a) Central Government Securities are valued as per price list published by Fixed Income Money Market
and derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA).

b) State Government Securities and Other Approved Securities are valued after appropriate mark up
over Yield to Maturity (YTM) rates for Central Government securities declared by FIMMDA.

c) Debenture and Bonds have been valued with appropriate mark up over the YTM rates for Central
Government Securities declared by FIMMDA.

d) Quoted shares are valued at market rates quoted on NSE.

e) Unquoted shares are valued at book value ascertained from the latest available Balance Sheet and
in case the latest Balance Sheetis not available, the same is valued at Re.1 per company.

f) Preference shares are valued at YTM, if dividend is received regularly. Where dividend is in arrears,
appropriate depreciation is provided based on the number of years for which dividend is in arrears as per
RBI guidelines.

g) Mutual Fund units are valued at market rates/NAV/ Repurchase price as applicable.

h) Treasury bills, certificate of deposits and commercial papers are valued at carrying cost.

i) Provisions forinvestments are made as per RBI prudential norms.
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C. Prudential norms: Securities guaranteed by the State Government where the principal / interest is due but
not paid for a period of more than 90 days are treated as non performing investments and appropriate
provision is made and interestin respect of such investments is recognized as income only on cash basis.

A. (i) In terms of the instructions of RBI, the excess of acquisition cost over face value of securities kept
under “Held to Maturity” category is amortized up to the date of maturity and the amount amortized is
reflected as a deduction in Profit & Loss account Schedule 13 Interest Earned, underitem Il Income on
Investments.

(i) Brokerage / Commission / Stamp Duty paid in connection with acquisition of securities are treated as
revenue expenses.

E. Accounting for REPO Transactions

Repo and reverse Repo transactions are accounted in accordance with the extant RBI guidelines. Securities
purchased/sold under Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF) with RBI are debited/credited to Investment
account and reversed on maturity of the transaction. Interest expended /earned thereon is accounted for as
expenditure/revenue.

4. ADVANCESAND PROVISIONS:

a) Advances are classified into Standard, Sub-standard, Doubtful and Loss Assets and provisions for
possible losses on such advances are made as per prudential norms/directions of the Board of
Directors/directions issued by Reserve Bank of India from time to time. With regard to the Standard
Advances, Provisions are made as per extant RBI guidelines. In addition to the specific provision made
towards identified NPAs, the bank also holds floating provision.

b) In addition, the bank adopts an approach to provisioning that is based on past experience evaluation of
security and other related factors.

c) Provisioning on categorized assets is done as per RBI guidelines except, based on a Board approved
policy, additional specific provisions for NPAs under SS (secured) made with 25%, DF2A (NPA for 2 years)
and DF2B (NPAfor 3 years) @ 100% as against the RBI stipulated minimum of 15% and 40% respectively.
Similarly, Education loans were provided at 100% irrespective of asset classification. On the same basis, for
some selected high value NPA accounts, considering the possible potential losses, the Bank has made
provision during the year up to 100% as per Board directions and the provisions so made is found to be
adequate.

d) Sufficient incremental provisioning for Unhedged Foreign currency exposure is made as per RBI
guidelines.

Reserve Bank of India has given methodology to arrive at UFCE and for introduction of incremental provision
and capital requirements.

d) Advances disclosed are net of provisioning made for non performing assets and floating provisions,
provisioning on diminution in fair value of assets on restructured accounts.

e) In case of loan accounts classified as NPA, an account may be reclassified as per performing asset if it
confirms to the guidelines prescribed by RBI.
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f) Accounts are written off in accordance with bank's policies. Recoveries from bad debts written off are
recognized in profit and loss account and included under otherincome.

5.FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

a) Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes freight,
applicable duties, taxes and incidental expense related to the acquisition and installation of the asset. Except
foritems on which input credit is availed.

b) Depreciation on fixed assets is provided in accordance with estimated useful lives as specified in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, and reckoning the residual value at 5% of the original cost of the
asset except for the following.

Class of Asset Rates of depreciation per annum
Computer Hardware & Software 33.33%

Prescribed rate

Class of Asset Rates of depreciation per annum
Building 1.67%

Office equipment 20%

Computer Hardware & Software 33.33%

Vehicles 12.50%

Furniture and Electrical Fittings 10%

c) Depreciation on additions is pro rata basis, from the date of capitalization.
d) Expenditure during construction/capital works pending completion is shown at cost.
6.EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The bank is following Accounting Standard 15 (Revised 2005) “Employee Benefits” as under:

(1) Inrespectof contributory plans viz Provident Fund and Contributory Pension

Scheme, the bank pays fixed contribution at pre-determined rates to a separate entity, which invests in
permitted securities. The obligation of the bank is limited to such fixed contribution.

(2) In respect of Defined Benefit Plans, viz. Gratuity and pension as well as for leave encashment,
provision has been made based on actuarial valuation as per the guidelines.

(3) The summarized position of Post-employment benefits and long term employee benefits recognized
in the profit and loss account and balance sheet as required in accordance with the Accounting Standard-
15.

(4) The actuarial gain/loss is recognized in the profit and loss account.

7. TAXES ONINCOME

1. Income tax expense is the aggregate amount of current tax and deferred tax. Current taxes are
determined in accordance with the provisions of tax laws prevailing in India. Deferred tax adjustments
comprise changes in the deferred tax assets or liabilities during the period and Deferred Tax is determined in
terms of Accounting Standard-22 issued by ICAI.
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2. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted prior to the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized on a
prudent basis for future tax consequences of timing differences by adoption of Profit and Loss approach with
their respective tax bases. The impact of changes in the deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in
the profitand loss account.

3. Deferred tax assets are recognized at each reporting date, based upon management's judgment as to
whether realization is considered reasonably certain. Deferred tax assets are recognized on carry forward of
unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses only if there is virtual certainty that such deferred tax assets can be
realized against future profits.

4. No withdrawal is made from the Special Reserve created and maintained under the provisions of Section
36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

8.REVENUE RECOGNITION:
Income and expenditure is generally accounted on accrual basis except in the following cases.

i) Inthe case of NPAs, S4A, and SDR schemes Income is recognized on realization basis, in terms of
guidelines of Reserve Bank of India. Where recovery is not adequate to upgrade the NPA accounts by
way of regularization, such recovery is being appropriated towards interest in the first instance and
towards the principal/book values thereafter, except in the case of suit filed accounts. In case of Non-
performing investments (NPIs), the same accounting treatment as above is followed except otherwise
agreed.

i) Dividend on investments in shares, units of mutual fund, income from sale of mutual fund products,
locker rent, Insurance claims, commission on LCs, income on auxiliary services and other sevices,
overdue charges on bills, commission on Government business and insurance business are accounted
on cash/realization basis.

iii) Income related to credit card is accounted on the basis of the bills raised.

iv) Inthe case of suit filed accounts, legal expenses are charged to the profit and loss account. Similarly,
at the time of recovery of legal expenses, in respect of such suit filed accounts, the amount recovered is
accounted asincome.

v) Funded Interest on Standard Restructured Advances and Interest on FITL are accounted as per the
guidelines of Reserve Bank of India.

vi) Expenditure is charged on accrual basis except Electricity, Water, Rent, Property Taxes, Telephone,
Insurance, Annual Maintenance Contracts, Law Charges, Advertisement & Publicity and Traveling &
Conveyance.

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The bank reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with applicable Accounting Standard-
20. For the year under reference, both Basic and diluted earning per share being the same, is computed by
dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the period.

10. CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The Bank has adopted the respective Accounting Standard prescribed under Companies (Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2006 and follows indirect method.

11. SEGMENT REPORTING

As per RBI guidelines on enhancement of disclosure relating to segment reporting under AS-17, the
reportable segments have been divided into treasury, corporate / wholesale, retail banking operations.

(a) The Bank recognizes the Business Segment as the Primary Reporting Segment and Geographical
Segment as the Secondary Reporting Segment, in accordance with the RBI guidelines and in compliance
with the Accounting Standard 17.

(b) Business Segment is classified into (a) Treasury (b) Corporate and Wholesale Banking (c) Retail
Banking and (d) Other Banking Operations.

(c) Geographical Segment consists only of the Domestic Segment since the Bank does not have any foreign

branches.
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12. LEASES

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all risks and benefits of ownership are classified as
Operating Leases. Operating Lease payments are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account
on a straightline basis over the lease termin accordance withAS19 Leases.

13. CONTINGENCIES
Loss, if any from contingencies arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties etc are recorded
when itis probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

14. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
Impairment losses, if any, on fixed assets are recognized in accordance with the Accounting Standard 28
'impairment of assets' and charged to profit and loss account.

15.NET PROFIT
The net profitis arrived at after provisions for:
i) directtaxes
ii) possiblelosses on standard assets, restructured advances, NPAs and other contingencies
i) depreciation/diminution oninvestments
iv) employee retirement benefits and
v) Otherusual and necessary provisions.

16. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, Balance with RBI, Balance with other Banks and money
at Call at Short Notice including cash in ATM, Coin Vending Machine and Cash Deposit Machine.

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS
In respect of Intangible Assets, the Bank has adopted the respective Accounting Standard (AS26)

18. ACCOUNTING FORPROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

a)As per the Accounting Standard 29 the bank recognizes provisions only when it has a present obligation as
aresultof pastevent, itis probable that an outflow of resources is required to settle the obligation and when a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. The required disclosure for contingent liability is made on
possible obligation that arises from past events, the existence of which depends on occurrence or non
occurrence of future event not under control.

b) Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statement since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realized.on a straight line basis over the lease term in accordance with AS19

Leases. Sd\- S.Annamalai

Chairman
Sd\- S.R.Aravind Kumar Sd\- P.C.G.Asok Kumar Sd\- S.Ezhil Jothi Sd\- B.S.Keshava Murthy
Sd\- K.Nagarajan Sd\- K.N.Rajan Sd\- K.V.Rajan Sd\- A.Shidambaranathan
Directors
Sd\- B.Vijayadurai Sd\- V.V.D.N.Vikraman Sd\- P.Yesuthasen
Directors Directors Directors
Sd\- M.Gunasekaran Sd\- S.Kandavelu Sd\- M.A.Nayagam Sd\- R.Ravindran
General Manager General Manager General Manager General Manager

Sd\- PC.Panda Vide our report of even date attached

Company Secretary For Maharaj N R Suresh And Co.
FRN No. 01931S

) Sd\- N.R Jayadevan
Thoothukudi Chartered Accountants
14.06.2017 Partner (M.No.23838)
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED
57 VE ROAD THOOTHUKUDI-628002

SCHEDULE 18:

NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2017

1. The Financial Statements have been prepared in conformity with Forms A & B of the Schedule Ill to the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 to the extent applicable and practices generally
prevalentin the banking industry in India.

2. Duringthe year, all the 505 branches have been subjected to statutory audit.

3. Reconciliation of inter branch / office adjustment accounts has been completed up to 31.03.2017

4. (i) In accordance with RBI guidelines, the investments portfolio of the Bank has been classified into three
categories as given below:

Category Book value (Gross) (Rs in crore) % to total investments
Held to Maturity 6115.24 53.16%
Available for Sale 5029.70 43.72%
Held for Trading 359.54 3.12%

Total 11504.48 100.00%

SLR securities under 'Held to Maturity' category accounted for 18.51% of Bank's Demand and Time
Liabilities as on 31.03.2017 as against the ceiling of 20.50% stipulated by Reserve Bank of India.

(i) During the year, the excess of acquisition cost over face value of securities kept under 'Held to Maturity'
category was amortized up to the date of maturity and the amortized amount for the year aggregates to Rs.
23.55 crore (previous year Rs. 14.95 crore). As per Reserve Bank of India guidelines, the said amount has
beenreflected as a deductionin Schedule 13 Interest Earned, underitem Il 'Income on Investments'

(iii) Interest received on sale of securities for Rs.1072.47 crore (previous year Rs.730.20 crore) and interest
paid on purchase of securities Rs. 1111.05 crore (previous year Rs.750.30 crore) have been netted and
shown under the head 'Income on Investments'.

(iv) There was shifting of securities to the tune of Rs. 559.03 crore (face value Rs.550.33 crore) from/to HTM
category. Previous year there was also shifting of securities to the tune of Rs.264.70 crore (face value
Rs.270.65 crore) from / to HTM category and also there was shifting of securities to the tune of Rs. 111.94 Cr
(Face value Rs. 110.00 Cr) from HF T to AFS category

(v) ) During the year ended March 31,2017, the bank has sold government securities from Held to Maturity
category exceeding 5% of the book value of investments held in HTM category at the beginning of the year.
The profit booked out of sale of HTM securities has been transferred to Capital Reserve. As the market value
of investment under HTM category as on 31.03.2017 was higher than the book value, the provision thereof is
notrequired to be made
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5. Additional disclosures

A. Capital

ltems

Current Year

Previous Year

Basel I

Basel Il

Basel Il Basel Il

Common Equity Tier | capital ratio (%)
Tier | capital (%)

Tier Il Capital (%)

Total Capital Ratio (CRAR %)

Percentage of the shareholding of the
Government of India in public sector
banks

Amount of equity capital raised

Amount of Additional Tier 1 capital
raised of which

PNCPS:

PDI:

Amount of Tier 2 capital raised;
Of which

Debt capital instrument:

Preference Share Capital Instruments:
[Perpetual Cumulative Preference
Shares/ Redeemable Non-Cumulative
Preference Shares/ Redeemable
Cumulative Preference Shares]

13.30

13.30

0.75

14.05

13.27

13.27

0.75

14.02

12.18 12.16

12.18 12.16

0.60 0.59

12.78 12.76

NA

Nil

Nil

Nil

NA

Nil

Nil

Nil
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B. i. Investments

(Rs in crore)

Items Current Previous
Year Year
2016-17 2015-16
(1) Value of Investments
(i) Gross Value of Investments
(a) InIndia 11606.73 8898.98
(b) Outside India, Nil Nil
(i)  Provisions for Depreciation
(a) InIndia 102.25 34.27
(b) Outside India, Nil Nil
(i)  Net Value of Investments
(a) InIndia 11504.48 8864.71
(b) Outside India. Nil Nil
(2) Movement of provisions held towards
depreciation on investments.
(i) Opening balance 3497 16.54
(i) Add: Provisions made during the year 68.79 2918
(i) Lesg: erte-off/ write-back of excess 0.81 4 45
provisions during the year
(iv) Closing balance
102.25 34.27
ii. Repo Transactions (In face value terms):
Minimum | Maximum Daily Outstanding
outstandin | outstanding average as on
g during during the | outstanding | 31.03.2017
the year year during the
year
Securities sold under repos
a) Govt Securities 30.00 1103.00 63.55 -
b) Corporate debt Securities -- -- --
Securities sold under MSF
a) Govt Securities 5.00 350.00 3.89 -—-
b) Corporate debt Securities -- -- --
Securities purchased under
reverse repos
a) Govt Securities 10.00 2087.00 351.44 345.00
b) Corporate debt Securities -- -- --
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iii. Non-SLR Investment Portfolio

a) Issuer composition of Non SLR investments

(Rs in crore)

No. Issuer Amount Extent of Extent of Extent of Extent of
Private ‘Below ‘Unrated’ ‘Unlisted’
placement | Investment | Securities Securities

Grade’ (6)
securities

(1) (2) 3) (4) () (7)

1. | PSUs 160.82 65.00 -- -- 2.00

2. |Fls 786.01 151.00 -- -- 0.51

3. | Banks 1106.66 96.00 10.00 -- --

4, Private 108.02 10.00 -- - 37.98

Corporate
5. | Subsidiaries/ -- -- -- -- --
Joint Venture
6. | Others 1.78 -- -- -- --
7. Provision held 69.32 - - - 28.27
towards
depreciation
TOTAL* 2093.97 322.00 10.00 -- 12.22
Note:

(1) *Total under column 3 should tally with the total of investments included
under the following categories in Schedule 8 to the balance sheet:

a)

b)
c)
d)

(2) Amount reported under columns 4,5,6 and 7 above may not be mutually

Shares

Debentures & Bonds
Subsidiaries / joint ventures

Others

exclusive

Break up particulars for Non SLR Investments:

(Rs.in crore)

31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Shares 30.19 34.89
Debentures and Bonds 1160.27 781.90
Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures 0.00 0.00
Others (CD,CP, MF) 903.51 262.11
Total 2093.97 1078.90
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b) Non performing Non-SLR investments

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars Amount
Opening Balance 0
Additions during the year since 1% April 2016 Nil
Reductions during the above period 0
Closing balance 0
Total provisions held 0

C. Derivatives

The Bank has not entered into any forward rate agreement/interest rate swap or

exchange traded interest rate derivative during the year.

D. Asset Quality
i.a. Non-Performing Asset

(Rs. in Crore)

Items Current | Previous
Year Year
i) Ne s to Net Advances (% : :
(i) Net NPAs to Net Ad (%) 1.74 0.89
(i) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) Opening balance ‘;;?gj g;gg?
(b) Additions during the year 498.24 420.65
(c) Reductions during the year 648'64 418'94
(d) Closing balance : '
(iif) Movement of Net NPAs
(a) Opening balance iggzg ;,:;ggg*
(b) Additions during the year 253'31 304.82
(c) Reductions during the year 381 ‘92 200'74*
(d) Closing balance ' '
(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs
(excluding provisions on standard assets)
(a) Opening balance
(b) Provisions made during the year g;gig 128;2
(c) Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions o4 4'93 11 5.83
(d) Closing balance ' '
266.72 218.20

*Amount received includes claim received from ECGC/CGTMSE/UIIC of

Rs.0.84 Crore.
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i.b. Non- performing Loan Provisioning coverage Ratio is 66.51%.

ii. Movement of NPAs

(Rs in Crore)

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Gross NPAs as on 1% April (Opening Balance) 418.94 318.68
Additions (Fresh NPAs) during the year 727.94 520.91
Sub-total (A) 1146.88 839.59
Less:-
(i) Upgradations 189.03 225.95
(i) Recoveries 65.46 95.43
(iii) Technical/Prudential write-offs 243.75 99.01
(iii) Write-offs -—- 0.26
Sub-total (B) 498.24 420.65
Gross NPAs as on 31 March (closing balance) (A-B) 648.64 418.94

Stock of Technical write-offs and the recoveries made thereon:

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Opening balance of Technical/Prudential written- 270.68 212.89
off accounts as at 1% April.

Add: Technical/Prudential write-offs during the 243.75 99.01
year

Sub-total (A) 514.43 311.90
Less: Recoveries made from previously 22.71 41.22
technical/ prudential written-off accounts during

the year

Closing balance as at 31st March 491.72 270.68
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(iii)

Sector-wise NPAs

(Rs. in Crore)

Sl Sector* Current year (Fy 2016-17) Previous year (Fy 2015-16)
No. Outstanding Gross | Percentage | Outstanding Gross Percentage
Total NPAs of Gross Total NPAs of Gross
Advances NPAs to Advances NPAs to
Total Total
Advances Advances
in that in that
sector sector
A Priority
Sector
1 | Agriculture and 4182.92 |  63.01 1.50 3764.61 17.23 0.45
allied activities
2| Industry 297113 | 71.49 2.40 2898.97 82.85 2.85
2a | Of which; 124327 | 3476 279 1200.62 13.62 113
Textile
3 | Services 4605.61 132.33 2.87 4167.22 60.41 1.44
4 | Personal loans 1201.09 46.39 3.86 1146.15 35.88 3.13
Sub-total (A) 12960.75 313.22 2.41 11976.95 196.37 1.63
B Non Priority
Sector
1| Agriculture and 0.05 0 0 0 0 0
allied activities
2 | Industry 4389.21 | 269.12 6.13 5060.28 181.40 3.58
2a | Of which; 1500.87 |  22.02 145 1462.69 0 0
Textile
3 | Services 2558.43 54.03 217 3472.30 28.72 0.82
4 Personal loans 2217.94 12.27 0.55 2016.89 12.45 0.61
5 | Food Credit 136.11 0 0 294.90 0 0
Sub-total (B) 9301.74 335.42 3.65 10844.37 222 .57 2.05
Total (A+B) 22262.49 648.64 2.93 22821.32 418.94 1.83

(iv) Concentration of NPAs

(Rs. in Crore)

As on 31.03.2017

As on 31.03.2016

Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts

194.13

182.96

Disclosure on Divergence in the Asset Classification and Provisioning

The

Reserve bank of India (RBI) VIDE DBR.BP.BC.NO.63/21.04.018/2016-17 dated

18" April 2017 has prescribed certain additional disclosure to be made under “Notes to
Accounts” for the reference period i.e. FY 2015-16. Neither additional provisioning
requirement assessed by RBI nor the additional Gross NPAs identified by RBI exceeds 15%
of the published net profit after tax and incremental Gross NPAs of the Bank. Hence, no
disclosure is required to be made under DBR.BP.BC.NO.63/21.04.018/2016-17 dated
18" April 2017
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Disclosures on Flexible Structuring of Existing Loans:

(Amount in INR Crore)

Period No. of Amount of loans taken up Exposure weighted
borrowers for flexible structuring average duration of loans
taken up for taken up for flexible
flexible structuring
structuring | Classified Classified Before After
as Standard | as NPA applying applying
flexible flexible
structuring | structuring
Previous
Financial 1 98.52 - 19 years 19 years
Year
Current
Financial
Year From 1 57.89 - 6.98 years 17 years
April 16 to
March 17 )

1. Disclosures on Strategic Debt Restructuring Scheme (accounts which are
currently under the stand-still period)

(Amount in INR Crore)

No. of | Amount  outstanding | Amount  outstanding | Amount  outstanding

accounts | as on the reporting|as on the reporting|as on the reporting

where date date with respect to | date with respect to

SDR has accounts where | accounts where

been conversion of debt to | conversion of debt to

invoked equity is pending equity has taken place
Classified | Classified | Classified | Classified | Classified | Classified
as as NPA as as NPA as as NPA
Standard Standard Standard

3 451.78 62.50 - 62.50 451.78 -
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Vi. Details of financial
Company for Asset Reconstruction

(Rs. in crore)

assets sold to Securitization / Reconstruction

Item 2016-17 | 2015-16
(i) No. of accounts Nil Nil
(i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of Nil Nil
accounts sold to SC/RC : :
Nil Nil
(iii) Aggregate consideration
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect : .
: : Nil Nil
of accounts transferred in earlier years
(v) Aggregate gain/loss over net book value.
Nil Nil

vii. Details of non performing financial assets purchased/sold

a. Details of non performing financial assets purchased:

(Rs in crore)

Particulars 2016-17| 2015-16
1.a) No of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
2.a) Of these number of accounts restructured Nil Nil
during the year
b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil

b. Details of non performing financial assets sold:

(Rs in crore)

Particulars 2016-17| 2015-16
1. No of accounts sold Nil Nil
2. Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
3. Aggregate consideration received Nil Nil
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viii

Provisions on Standard Asset

(Rs in crore)

Item Current | Previous
year as at Year as at
31.03.17| 31.03.16
Provisions towards Standard Assets 160.13 121.10

ix. Floating Provisions

(Rs. in crore)

Current | Previous
year as at Year as at
31.03.17| 31.03.16
Opening balance of floating provisions 29.20 25.92
The quantum of floating provisions made during the -—- 3.28
year
Amount of draw down made during the year - 0.00
Closing balance 29.20 29.20

E. Draw Down from Reserves
The bank has not made any draw down from the reserves during the year: Nil
(previous year Nil)

F. Business Ratios

Items Current | Previous
year year
(i) Interest Income as a percentage to Working 9.18% 9.96%
Funds $
(i)  Non-interest income as a percentage to
Working Funds $ 1.17% 0.98%
(iii) Operating Profit as a percentage to Working 2.38% 2.22%
Funds $
(iv) Return on Assets@ 0.86% 1.23%
(v) Business (Deposi_ts plus advances) per 123495 | 1219.78
employee # (Rs. in lakhs)
(vi) Profit per employee (Rs. in lakhs) 1.22 9.48
(vii) Earnings per share * 29 292 2832

As per AS 20 of ICAI, if the number of shares outstanding had been changed,
EPS of earlier year needs to be restated with the new number of shares
outstanding. Since the number of shares outstanding had been increased from
284454 shares to 142511454 shares on 25/05/2016 the EPS of 2015-16 is
restated to be Rs. 28.32/share.
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$ Working funds is reckoned as average of total assets (excluding accumulated

losses, if any).

@ 'Return on Assets is with reference to average working funds (i.e. total of
assets excluding accumulated losses, if any).

# For the purpose of computation of business per employee (deposits plus
advances) interbank deposits is excluded.

G. Asset Liability Management (As certified by management)

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities:

(Rs. in crore)

Deposits | Advances | Investments Borrowingg Foreign Foreign

Currency Currency
assets liabilities

1 day 86.57 753.28| 3377.48 0 37.31 42.30

2 to 7 days 443.51| 349.65 339.52 0 44 .17 0.09

8 to 14 days 651.52 383.18 180. 0 12.15 26.

15 to 30 days 352.63| 92598/ 162.80 0 78.46 0.69

31 days to 2 months 1023.91 454 .17 454.27 0 64.10 0B

Over 2 months and up| 1522.36| 492.14| 424.32 0 13.51 3.14

to 3 months

Over 3 months and up| 2429.47 | 1308.47 707.53 0 20.41 5.24

to 6 months

Over 6 months and up| 10065.34| 2261.01| 1847.85 0 0 36.11

to 1 year

Over 1 year and up t0|12437.78 |10098.82| 2597.17 0 10.21 95.25

3 years

Over 3 years and up 1696.34 | 1780.68 548.35 0 7.21 64.34

to 5 years

Over 5 years 1480.72 | 3164.94 924.58 0 13.19 0

TOTAL 32190.15(21972.32| 11504.47 0 300.72 248.31




' Tamilngd
95th Annual Report 2016 - 2017 I / B MLt

Be a step ahead of life
o

H. Lending to Sensitive Sector

i. Exposure to Real Estate Sector
Rs in crore

Category Current Year| Previous Yeal
Exposure Exposure

[) Direct exposure
(a) Residential Mortgages —

Lending fully secured by Mortgages on 1783.82 1657.53
residential properties that are or will be
occupied by the borrower or that is rented

of which

Individual housing loans eligible for

inclusion in priority sector advances 1069.75 1018.04

(b) Commercial Real Estate —

Lending fully secured by mortgages on
commercial real estates (office buildings,
retail space, multi-purpose commercial
premises, multi-family residential buildings,
multi-tenanted commercial premises,
industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land
acquisition, development and construction,
etc.). Exposure included non-fund based
(NFB) limits also;

(c) Investments in Mortgage Backed
Securities (MBS) and other securitized
exposures —

a. Residential, Nil Nil
b. Commercial Real Estate. Nil Nil

253.71 234.46

II) Indirect Exposure

Fund based anq non-funq based 12.00 19.14
exposures on National Housing Bank
(NHB) and Housing Finance Companies
(HFCs).
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ii. Exposure to Capital Market

(Rs in Crore)

Particulars Current Year Previous Yea
2016-17 2015-16

i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds,
convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented
mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively
invested in corporate debt;

99.51 72.70

(i) advances against shares/bonds/ debentures or
other securities or on clean basis to individuals for 3.65 4.88
investment in shares (including
IPOs/ESOPs),convertible bonds, convertible
debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of 0.00 0.00
equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary
security;

(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent
secured by the collateral security of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of
equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary
security other than shares/convertible
bonds/convertible debentures/units of equity oriented
mutual funds "does not fully cover the advances;

(v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers
and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and
market makers;

(vi) loans sanctioned to corporate against the security . .
of shares / bonds/debentures or other securities or on Nil Nil
clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the
equity of new companies in anticipation of raising

11.69 32.00

30.78 31.23

resources;
(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity Nil Nil
flows/issues;

(viii) underwriting commitments taken up by the banks

in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible Nil Nil

bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity

oriented mutual funds;
(ix) financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; Nil Nil
(x) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both , .
. . Nil Nil
registered and unregistered)
Total Exposure to Capital Market 145.63 140.81

&
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iii. Risk Category wise Country Exposure Rs in crore

As the country-wise net funded exposure does not exceed 1% of the Bank’s total

Risk Category wise Country Exposure
Risk Exposure(Gross) | Provision Exposure(Gross) | Provision
Category as at March held as at as at March held as at
31,2017 March 31,2016 March

31,2017 31,2016
Insignificant 171.76 NIL 354.16 NIL
Risk
Low Risk 194.87 NIL 118.45 NIL
Moderately 24.54 NIL 12.87 NIL
Low Risk
Moderate 0.99 NIL 0.34 NIL
Risk
Moderately 0.64 NIL 0.00 NIL
High Risk
High Risk 0.00 NIL 0.00 NIL
Very High 0.00 NIL 0.00 NIL
Risk
Total 392.80 NIL 485.82 NIL

assets for any country, no provision is required for the risk involved.

iv. Details of single borrower limit (SBL)/group borrower limit (GBL) exceeded by
the Bank.

a) Details of single borrower limit in excess of the prudential exposure limits of RBI:
- Nil -
b) Details of Group borrower limit exceeded by the bank: Nil

I. Miscellaneous

i. Amount of Provisions made for Income-tax during the year;
Rs. in crore
Current year | Previous year

Provision for Income Tax 181.90 139.00

ii. Penalties imposed on the Bank by RBI : RBI has imposed penalty towards
mutilated and FICN notes amounting to Rs.4900/- during the year 2016-17

iii. Special reserve: As per section 36(1) (viii) of I.T.Act 1961, the bank has created a
special reserve of Rs.27.00 Crore during the year 2016-17.

(13
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iv. Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head
Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

(Rs. in crore)

Current Year Previous Year

Depreciation on Investment -- --
Diminution on Investment 46.30 17.74
Provision towards NPA 290.37 130.33
Provision towards Standard Asset 39.03 24.96
Floating provision for Advances -- 3.28
Provision made for Taxation 181.90 139.00
Deferred Tax -6.23 7.90
Provision for un hedged Foreign currency 0.96 0.19
exposure
Others :Diminution in fair value - Restructured 6.75 0.00
Advances

Total 559.08 323.40

v. Details of complaints / unimplemented awards of Banking Ombudsman

A. customer complaints *
Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year --

Number of complaints received during the year 193
Number of complaints redressed during the year 193

Number of complaints pending at the end of the year --
* - including ATM complaints

B. Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman
Number of Unimplemented awards at the beginning of the year --

Number of awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman during the year --
Number of awards implemented during the year --

Number of unimplemented awards pending at the end of the year --
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vi. Letter of Comfort disclosure

(Rs in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016
Letter of comfort issued in earlier years and outstanding 2132.06 1395.30
as on 01.04.2016
Add: Letter of comfort issued during the year 7427.98 5987.42
Less: Letter of comfort expired during the year 6916.52 5250.66
Letter of comfort outstanding as on 31.03.2017 2643.52 2132.06

vii. The details of fees / remuneration received during the year in respect of Banc

assurance business undertaken.

(Rs in Lakhs)

Commission on Banc assurance 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Non — Life Insurance — Net of Service Tax 601.39 470.69
Mutual Fund Products 13.74 5.55
Life Insurance — Net of Service Tax 167.28 105.16
viii. Concentration of Deposits
(Rs in Crore)
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 4971.56 5665.17
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest 15.44% 18.65%
depositors to Total Deposits of the bank
ix. Concentration of Advances
(Rs. in Crore)
31-03-2017 | 31-03-2016
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 2365.06 2698.25
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers 10.55% 11.82%
to Total Advances of the bank
x. Concentration of Exposures
(Rs. in Crore)
31-03-2017 | 31-03-2016
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 3165.54 3546.44
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ 10.68% 10.82%
customers to Total Exposure of the bank on
borrowers/customers

6. Disclosure Requirements as per Accounting Standards where RBI has issued
guidelines in respect of disclosure items for Notes on Accounts:

6.1. There were no material prior period Income /Expenditure requiring disclosure as

per AS 5.

6.2. The heads of income recognized on cash basis are neither material enough nor
do they require disclosure under AS 9 on Revenue Recognition.

&




95th Annual Report 2016 - 2017

TN

Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

Be a step ahead of life

6.3 Accounting Standard -15: Employee Benefits

(Rs.in crore)

2016-17 2015-16
Gratuity Pension | Gratuity | Pension

(i) Principal actuarial assumption

used

Discount Rate 7.20% 7.20% 7.93% 7.93%

Rate of return on Plan Assets 8.40% 6.50% 8.50% 7.00%

Salary Escalation 6.50% 6.50% 6.50% 6.50%

(if) Change in Benefit Obligation:

Liability at the beginning of the year 115.89 433.98 113.44 357.91
Interest Cost 7.92 29.48 8.53 26.15

Current Service Cost 9.03 27.92 7.75 46.47

Benefit paid -11.89 -49.17 -11.72 -56.24

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation 15.27 28.63 -2.11 59.69

Liability at the end of the year 136.22 470.84 115.89 433.98

(iii) Fair value of Plan Assets:

Fair value of Plan Assets at the 11490 | 43463 | 97.28| 294.86

beginning of the year

Expected return on Plan Assets 10.44 29.36 9.02 25.53

Contributions 21.47 52.40 16.16 156.74

Benefit paid -11.89 -49.17 -11.72 -56.24

Actuarial Gain / (loss) on Plan Assets -1.36 1.39 4.16 13.74

Fair value of Plan Assets at the 133.56 468.61 114.90 434 63
End of the year

(iv) Actual return on Plan Assets:

Expected Return on Plan Assets 10.44 29.36 9.02 25.53

Actuarial gain / (loss) on Plan Assets -1.36 1.39 4.16 13.74

Actual return on Plan Assets 9.08 30.75 13.18 39.27

(v) Amount recognized in the
Balance Sheet:

Liability at the end of the year 136.22 470.81 115.89 433.98
Fair value of Plan Assets at the 133.56 468.61 114.90 434 63
End of the year

Amount Recognized in the 266 293 0.99 065
Balance Sheet

(vi) Expenses recognized in

The Income Statement:

Current Service Cost 9.03 27.92 7.75 46.47
Interest Cost 7.92 29.48 8.53 26.15
Expected Return on Plan Assets -10.44 -29.36 -9.02 -25.53

Actuarial Gain or Loss 16.63 27.24 -6.27 45.95
Expenses Recognized in P & L 23.14 55.28 0.99 93.04
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Details of Provisions made for Other Long term Employee Benefits:

(Rs in crore)

S.no. | Other Long Term 2016-17 2015-16
Benefits

1 Leave Encashment 10.43 2.91

2 Sick Leave 2.40 2.13

6.4 Accounting Standard-17: Segment Reporting

PART A: Operational Segments:

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2017 For the year ended 31.03.2016
Corporat Corporat
Business Treasury e/Wholes | Retail Total Treasury e/Wholes | Retail Total
Segment ale Banking ale Banking
Banking Banking

Revenue 1006.06 1033.29 177212 3811.47 814.92 1002.81 1752.95 3570.68
Result
(Profit(+)/Loss(- 247 14 90.83 155.78 493.75 185.45 133.78 233.85 553.08
)
Unallocated
income -4.82 11.93
/Expenses
Operating Profit 498.57 541.15
Income Tax 181.90 139.00
Extraordinary
Profit
Net Profit 316.67 402.15
Other

. As at 31.03.2017 As at 31.03.2016
Information
Segment assets | 12413.04 9321.16 | 14644.34 36378.54 | 9963.37 10562.17 | 13899.81 34425.35
Unallocated 81.14 106.71
assets
Total assets 36459.68 34532.06
fl‘z‘%mﬁg; 10525.05 | 9466.95 | 16236.12 | 36228.12 | 8685.63 | 9366.70 | 16373.29 | 3442562
Unallocated 23157 106.44
liabilities
Total liabilities 36459.69 34532.06

Note:

1. Assets and Liabilities wherever directly related to segments have been
accordingly allocated to segments and wherever not directly related have been
allocated on the basis of segment revenue.

2. The Bank operates only in Domestic Segment.

PART B —Geographic Segments

Domestic International Total
Particulars |31.03.2017(31.03.2016 |31.03.2017{31.03.2016| 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016
Revenue 3811.47 |3570.68 -- - |3811.47 3570.68
Assets 36459.69 |34532.06 -- - |36459.69 34532.06

(17
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6.5 Related Party disclosures (AS-18)

The Bank has identified the following person to be the key management person as

per AS-18 on Related Party Disclosures:

Thiru. H.S. Upendra Kamath — Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer —

01.04.2016 to 31.03.2017.

A. Emoluments:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 01.04.2016 to 01.04.2015to
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Salary 50,00,000.00 42,00,000.00
Bank Contribution to Provident Fund 6,00,000.00 5,04,000.00
Other Benefits 1,22,532.40 1,64,623.00
Total 57,22,532.40 48,68,623.00
B. Others: Nil
C. There is no other transaction with the Managing Director & CEO.
6.6. Earnings Per Share (AS — 20)
Items Amount Amount
2016 — 17 2015 -16
Net Profit after Tax available for equity share holders 31666.47 40215.65
(Rs.in Lakhs)
Average number of shares 142511454 2,84,454
Basic and Diluted EPS (in Rs.) 22.22 28.32
Nominal value per share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00

As per AS 20 of ICAI, if the number of shares outstanding had been changed, EPS of
earlier year needs to be restated with the new number of shares outstanding. Since
the number of shares outstanding had been increased from 284454 shares to
142511454 shares on 25/05/2016 the EPS of 2015-16 is restated to be Rs. 28.32 per
share

6.7. Consolidated Financial Statements (AS — 21)

The Bank has no subsidiary and hence the need for consolidation of financial
statements does not arise.

6.8. Accounting for Taxes on Income (AS — 22)

In respect of Income Tax, the assessment has been completed up to the Assessment
Year 2014-15 (Year ended 31.03.2014) Appeals are pending with appellate authorities
for various assessment years. The management does not envisage any liability in
respect of the disputed issues.
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The bank had recorded the cumulative net Deferred Tax Liability of Rs. 70.35 Crore
relating to the period up to 31.03.2016 arising out of timing difference. The amount
credited to the Profit and Loss account during the year is Rs. 6.22 crore and the net
Deferred Tax Liability is Rs.64.13 crore as on March 31, 2017.

The major components of deferred tax assets/liabilities as at 31.03.2017 arising out of
timing difference are as follows;

(Rs. in Crore)

Particul Deferred tax | Deferred tax| Deferred tax| Deferred tax
articulars Asset Liability Asset Liability
2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 1.78 3.66
Interest accrued on Investments 9.62 547
Special Reserve 37.66
47.01
Depreciation on Investments 39.62 52.79
Provisions on retirement benefit etc 21.56 17.63
Provision for DFV on Restructured
Standard Assets 8.22 7.72
Others 412 3.88
Deferred tax asset/liability 33.90 98.03 29.23 99.58
Net Deferred Tax Liability 64.13 70.35

6.9. Intangible assets (AS — 26)

Depreciation on software is calculated on straight line method at 33.33% in

compliance with RBI guidelines.

6.10 Impairment of Assets (AS — 28)
The fixed assets, mainly immovable properties, furniture fittings, the required
indications prescribed in AS 28, not being met with, in the opinion of the

management, there is no impairment of any asset of the Bank.

6.11 Contingent Liabilities (AS — 29)
The details of provisions and contingencies, contingent liabilities, the movement of
provisions on NPA’s and depreciation on investment which are considered material
are disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements.
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(Rs. in crore)

Particulars Provisions | Additions | Amount | Unused Provisions | Remarks
as atthe | During used Amounts | As at the
beginning | the year | during | Reversed | Close of
of the the During the year
year year the year
A. Provision 25.42 6.74 -- 5.63 26.53
for Interest
sacrifice on
restructured
accounts(DFV)
B.Provision for 11.21 3.67 0.017 2.973 11.89
Frauds
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES: (Rs in Lakh)
As on PARTICULARS As on
31.03.2016 31.03.2017
1. Claims not acknowledged as debt
Nil a)Counter suits filed by the borrowers against Nil
the Bank has initiated legal action.
17.67 b)Cases filed in Consumer/Civil Courts for 10.68
deficiency in services
985.23 c)Any other claims against the bank not 1438.66
acknowledged as debts.
6463.07 d)Income tax and service tax disputes 10012.86
295105.63 | 2.Guarantees issued on behalf of constituents 341404.91
95514.31 3.Acceptance, endorsements & other obligations 102956.90
772281.52 | 4. Other items for which the Bank is contingently 731012.76
liable.
1170367.43 TOTAL 1186836.77

6.12 Movement of Provisions for Contingent Liabilities
(Amount in Lakhs)

Balance as on 01.04.2016 1121.00
Provided during the year 367.00
Amount used during the year 1.72
Reversed during the year 297. 28
Balance as on 31.03.2017 1189.00
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Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Under MSMED Act 2006 certain disclosures are required to be made relating to micro
small and medium enterprises. There have been not reported cases of interest
payments due to delays in such payments to micro small and medium enterprises.
Auditors have relied upon the above management assertion.

6.13 Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEAF)

(Rs in lakh)
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Opening balance of amount transferred to DEAF 4590.44 3704.76
Add: Amounts transferred to DEAF during the year 717.11 919.17
Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEAF towards claims 24.88 33.49
Closing Balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 5282.67 4590.44

6.14 Un hedged Foreign Currency Exposure: The bank has a board approved
policy dated 11.05.2016 on Un hedged Foreign Currency Exposure.

Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBN)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has issued a notification dated March 30 2017 regarding
amendment in schedule Ill to companies Act 2013 wherein every company shall
disclose the details of SBN held and transacted during the period from November 8
2016 to December 30 2016 in their financial statements ending March 31 2017. In
terms of Section 129(1) of the companies act 2013 the provisions in Schedule Il are
not applicable to the banks and the same has been clarified by RBI that the disclosure
is not applicable for banks.

Proposed dividend:

In terms of Revised Accounting Standard [AS4] Contingencies and events occurring
after Balance sheet date as notified by the Ministry of Corporate affairs through
amendments to companies (Accounting Standards) amendment rules 2016, dated
30 March 2016, the company has not accounted for proposed dividend as a liability
as at 31st march 2017. The proposed dividend was however accounted for as a
liability as at 31 march 2016 in line with the existing accounting standard applicable
at that time.

6.15 Liquidity Coverage Ratio

Banks are required to disclose information on their LCR in their Annual Financial
statements under Notes to Accounts starting with the financial year ended March 31,
2017. The disclosure should cover LCR of all the four quarters of the relevant
financial year. Data must be presented as simple averages of monthly observations
over the previous quarter (i.e the average is calculated over a period of 90 days).
Banks must publish the number of data points used in calculating the average
figures in the template with effect from the January 01, 2017; the simple average
should be calculated on daily observations over the previous quarter. The LCR
related information based on simple averages of quarterly observations for the year
ended March 2017 is furnished below

(2]
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LCR Disclosure Template — Final Year ended March 31, 2017 Audited
(Consolidation)
( Rs.in Crore)
Total . 9
Particulars Unweighted® ;I'lo:al W: ighted
Value (Average) alue (Average)
High Quality Liquid Assets
Total High Quality Liquid Assets
1| (HQLA) 6025.54 5817.90
Cash Outflows
Retail deposﬂs and deposits from . 20107.21 1801.35
2 | small business customers, of which:
(i) Stable deposits 4187.39 209.37
(ii) Less stable deposits 15919.82 1591.98
Un_sec?,ured wholesale funding, of 1235.08 752.74
3 | which:
. Operatlonal_ deposits (all 15.84 215
(i) counterparties)
i Non-operat!onal deposits (all 1219 24 75059
(ii) counterparties)
(iii) Unsecured debt 0.00 0.00
4 | Secured wholesale funding 194.24 0.00
5 | Additional requirements, of which 1815.35 1815.35
Outflows related to derivative
exposures and other collateral 1815.35 1815.35
(i) requirements
Outflows related to loss of funding
(ii) on debt products 0.00 0.00
(iii) Credit and liquidity facilities 0.00 0.00
6 | Other contractual funding obligations 4213.57 299.17
7 | Other contingent funding obligations 4098.78 210.51
8 | TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS 31664.23 4879.12
Cash Inflows
9 | Secured lending (e.g. reverse repos) 345.83 116.65
Inflows from fully performing 944 38 492 50
10 | exposures
11 | Other cash inflows 1856.86 1856.86
12 | TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 3147.07 2466.01
Total
Adjusted'®Value
21 | TOTAL HQLA 5817.90
22 | TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOWS 2413.11
23 | LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (%) 241.0955%

8Unweighted values must be calculated as outstanding balances maturing or callable within 30 days (for

inflows and outflows) except where otherwise mentioned in the circular and LCR template.

o Weighted values must be calculated after the application of respective haircuts (for HQLA) or inflow

and outflow rates (for inflows and outflows).
Adjusted values must be calculated after the application of both (i) haircuts and inflow and outflow

rates and (ii) any applicable caps (i.e. cap on Level 2B and Level 2 assets for HQLA and cap on inflows).

&
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B Qualitative disclosure about LCR::

The main drivers of LCR Results:

LCR is computed as a % of stock of HQLA to the net cash outflows over the next 30
calendar days. The LCR promotes short-term resilience of banks to potential liquidity
disruptions by ensuring that they have sufficient high quality liquid assets (HQLAs) to
survive an acute stress scenario lasting for 30 days.

For all nine months, i.e., April'16 to December'16, Bank's LCR has been more than the
minimum regulatory requirement of 70% for 2016calendar year and for the residual
months i.e., from January'17 to March'17Bank has maintained LCR well above the
regulatory threshold i.e80% for 2017.LCRof the bank for the annual financial year 2016-
17stood at 241.0955%.

The bank is having an adequate stock of unencumbered high-quality liquid assets
(HQLA) that can be converted easily and immediately in private markets into cash to
meet liquidity needs for a 30 calendar day liquidity stress scenario.

The net cash outflows for the next 30 days have been arrived at after deducting the cash
inflows from the outflows for the period. The inflows and outflows have been arrived at
based on RBI prescribed haircuts and run-off factors.

Composition of HQLA
The Level 1 Assets of our bank comprises of Cash in hand & ATM, Excess CRR and

SLR, MSF (2% on NDTL) and FALLCR (9% on NDTL). Level 1 asset is the main
driver of HQLA, contributing around 97% in the total HQLA of the Bank.

Level 2A and Level 2B assets are well within the cap of 40% and 15% of the stock of
HQLA respectively after the required haircut.

Corporate Bonds not issued by a Bank/Financial/NBFC which have been rated AA-
or above by an Eligible Credit Rating Agency have been classified under Level 2A
assets. Similarly shares not issued by a Bank/FI/NBFC which have been rated not
lower than BBB- have been classified under level 2B Assets.

Outflows & Inflows:
Deposits are the main source of funds for the Bank comprising around 85% of total
liabilities.

Currency mismatch in LCR::
LCR is expected to be met and reported in a single currency. The bank is not having
significant liabilities and HQLAs in any foreign currency.
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Description of the degree of centralization of liquidity management and
interaction between the group’s units:

The Bank does not belong to any group and does not have any associate,
subsidiaries, joint venture, etc.

7. The amount of advances for which intangible securities such as charge over rights
licenses, authority etc., has been taken as collateral security and the value of such
collateral security NIL

8. In respect of certain branches/offices where additional information was required, the
data available at Controlling/Head office was considered.

9. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to this
year’s classification.

10. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees in the Financial
Statements.

Sd\-
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Sd\- Sd\- Sd\- Sd\-
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Sd\- Sd\- Sd\- Sd\-
K.Nagarajan K.N.Rajan K.V.Rajan A.Shidambaranathan
Directors
Sd\- Sd\- Sd\-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of
TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED
(the “Bank”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and the Profit and Loss account and
the cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information in which are Incorporated in these financial statements are the returns of 14
branches audited by us and 491 branches audited by branch auditors .

Management's Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and provision of sec 29 of the Banking
Regulation Act 1949 and circulars and guidelines/Disclosures issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
from time to time. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
into account the provision of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to
be included in the auditreport under the provisions of the Act and the rules made there under.

We conducted our audit of the bank including its branches in accordance with the standards on Auditing ('the
standards') specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Bank's preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
inthe circumstances. Anauditalsoincludes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the bank's directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
(23
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as the
Companies Act, 2013, in the manner so required for the banking companies and give a true and fair view in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31st
March 2017, and its profits and cash flows for the year then ended.

i. Inthe case ofthe Financial statement, ofthe state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31,2017

ii. Inthe case of the Profitand Loss Account of the Profit for the year ended on that date, and

iii. Inthe case ofthe Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

i. We draw attention to Note 6.8 to the financial statements, regarding deferred tax assets of Rs.6.22
Crores on the diminution in the fair value of Standard restructured accounts, as the realisability of the same is
considered certain. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Matters

1. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act
2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

2. Asrequired sub section 3 of Section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act 1949 we report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory.

b) The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been within the powers of the Bank

c) The returns received from the offices and branches of the Bank have been found adequate for the
purposes of our audit.

3. Furtherasrequired by Section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 we further report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as appears from

our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purpose of our audit have been received
from branches not visited by us.
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b) The reports on the accounts of the branches audited by branch auditors of the bank under section 143(8)
of the companies act 2013 have been sent to us and have been dealt with in preparing our report.

c¢) The Balance Sheet and Profitand Loss Account and cash flow statement dealt with by us in the report are
in agreement with the books of account and with the audited returns from the branches.

d) In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent they are not
inconsistent with the accounting policies prescribed by RBI

e) On the basis of the written representation received from the directors as on 31/03/2017and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being
appointed as a directorin terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With Respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of the bank and
the operating effectiveness of such controls referred to our separate report to our annexure-1

g) With respect to the other matters to be include in the Auditor's report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanation given to us

i. Thebankhasdisclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements
- Refer Note 6.11

ii. The Bank has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting standards for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Bank.

iv. The disclosure requirement as envisaged in Notification G.S.R 308€ dated 30th March 2017 is not
applicable to the company.

4. Being a Banking Company, the Company (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, is not applicable.

For MAHARAJ N R SURESH AND CO.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN No.:01931S

Sd/-

N.R.JAYADEVAN
PARTNER

Membership No.023838

14/06/2017
Tuticorin
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ANNEXURE - 1 TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TAMILNADU
MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED, TUTICORIN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2017

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TAMILNADU MERCANTILE BANK
LIMITED, TUTICORIN (“the Bank”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Bank for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Bank's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the bank considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Bank's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”)

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, ( 'the
standards') both issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the bank's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

(23
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A bank's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A bank's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that;

[. pertain to the maintenance of records, that in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Bank;

II. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the bank are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the bank; and

[ll. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
ordisposition of the bank's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2017, based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the bank
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note issued by the ICAI

i. existing policies and procedures adopted by the Bank for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of
business.

ii. continuous adherence to Bank's policies.

ii. existing procedures in relation to safeguarding of Bank's fixed assets, investments, inventories,
receivables, loans and advances made and cash and bank balances.

iv. existing systemto preventand detect fraud and errors.

v. accuracy and completeness of Bank's accounting records; and

vi. existing capacity to prepare timely and reliable financial information

ForMaharajN R SureshAnd Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No.001931S

Sd/-

N R Jayadevan
Membership No. 023838
Partner

Date :14/06/2017
Place: Tuticorin
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2017

. . Year ended Year ended
Cash profit generated from operations | 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Cash profit generated from operations | Rs. In thousands
Net profit for the year 3,166,647 4,021,565
Add/Deduct
Loss/(Profit) on sale of assets (1103) (711)
Depreciation on Fixed assets 402,765 334,542
Provisions & Contingencies
(incl. Deferred tax adjustments) 5,590,803 3,233,994
Total 9,159,112 7,589,390
Cash flow from operating assets & liabilities Il
Increase/Decrease in liabilities
Deposits 18,212,845 47,190,027
Other liabilities & Provisions (6,114,720) (1,725,906)
Increase/Decrease in assets
Advances 6,053,930 (32,417,665)
Investments (26,397,697) (11,936,014)
Other assets 6,611,893 (8,883,913)
Total (1,633,749) (7,773,471)
A. Net cash flow from operating activities | + Il 7,525,363 (184,081)
Cash flow from investing activities
Sale/disposal of fixed assets 3,803 3,076
Purchase of fixed assets (385,406) (627,787)
B. Net Cash flow from investing activities (381,603) (624,711)
Cash flow from financing activities
Interim Dividend incl.tax (343,047) (479,307)
Borrowings (3,331,991) 2,928,230
C. Net Cash flow from financing activities (3,675,038) 2,448,923
Total cash flow during the year (A+B+C) 3,468,722 1,640,131
Cash & Cash equivalents as on 01-04-2016
Cash & bank balances with RBI 13,978,201 12,716,468
Balances with banks & money at call & short notice 2,010,672 1,632,274
Total 15,988,873 14,348,742
Cash & Cash equivalents as on 31-03-2017
Cash & bank balances with RBI 14,582,046 13,978,201
Balances with banks & money at call & short notice 4,875,549 2,010,672
Total 19,457,595 15,988,873
Increase or decrease in cash flow 3,468,722 1,640,131
Sd\- S.Annamalai
Chairman

Sd\- S.R.Aravind Kumar Sd\- P.C.G.Asok Kumar Sd\- S.Ezhil Jothi Sd\- B.S.Keshava Murthy

Sd\- K.Nagarajan Sd\- K.N.Rajan Sd\- K.V.Rajan Sd\- A.Shidambaranathan
Directors

Sd\- B.Vijayadurai Sd\- V.V.D.N.Vikraman Sd\- P.Yesuthasen

Directors Directors Directors

Sd\- M.Gunasekaran Sd\- S.Kandavelu Sd\- M.A.Nayagam Sd\- R.Ravindran

General Manager General Manager General Manager General Manager

Vide our report of even date attached

For Maharaj N R Suresh And Co.
FRN No. 01931S

Sd\- PC.Panda
Company Secretary

) Sd\- N.R Jayadevan
Thoothukudi Chartered Accountants
14.06.2017 Partner (M.No.23838)
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

Registration Details Registration No.l | | ! | 9 | 0 | 8 | State Code ﬂ

Balance Sheet Date [3]1] [0[3] [2[0]1]7]

(Rupees in Thousands) (Rupees in Thousands)
Capital raised during the Year

Public Issue N I[L Rights Issue N I L
Bonus Issue N[ I|L Private Placement N || L

Position of mobilisation and Deployment of funds

Total Liabilities |3]6]9]8]4]3]6]6]1] Total Assets |3]6]9]8]4]|3]6]6]1]

Sources of funds

Paid up Capital 114/2|5/1|1|5 Reserves and Surplus 3/0(8|1(5|2|7]|0
Secured Loans N|I'|L Unsecured Loans 3/2/1/9]0]|1/4|9|5
Application of funds
Net Fixed Assets 15]4|3|8|6|5 Investments 111|5|0|4|4|7|6|6
Net Current Assets 2|13|7/5|5|3(2]4|9 Miscellaneous Expenditure NI |L
Accumulated Losses N|I|L
Performance of Company
Turnover 3/8|1(1|4|6|8|6
Total Expenditure 313(112]9|0(3]9
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 419/8|5/6(4|7| +
Profit/(Loss) After Tax 3/1/6/6|6|4|7| *
Earning per share inR 2|12
Dividend Rate % 2|0
Generic names of three principal products / services Item Code No. : NOT APPLICABLE
of the Company (as per monetary terms) Product Description : Banking Company
Sd\- S.Annamalai
Chairman
Sd\- S.R.Aravind Kumar Sd\- P.C.G.Asok Kumar Sd\- S.Ezhil Jothi Sd\- B.S.Keshava Murthy
Sd\- K.Nagarajan Sd\- K.N.Rajan Sd\- K.V.Rajan Sd\- A.Shidambaranathan
Directors
Sd\- B.Vijayadurai Sd\- V.V.D.N.Vikraman Sd\- P.Yesuthasen
Directors Directors Directors
Sd\- M.Gunasekaran Sd\- S.Kandavelu Sd\- M.A.Nayagam Sd\- R.Ravindran
General Manager General Manager General Manager General Manager
Sd\- PC.Panda Vide our report of even date attached
Company Secretary For Maharaj N R Suresh And Co.

FRN No. 01931S

) Sd\- N.R Jayadevan
Thoothukudi Chartered Accountants
14.06.2017 Partner (M.No.23838)
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LIST OF NOSTRO ACCOUNTS

Name of the Bank

urrency

count Number

SWIFT Cade |

Commercial Bank of Dubai
Al litihad street, Dubai
United Arab Emirates

AED

AE220230000001001461068

CBDUAEAD

National Australia Bank Limited
32/500 Bourke Strest
Melbourne VIC 3000 Australia

1803-090089-500

NATAAU33032

IThe Bank of Novascotia
14 KING STREET WEST
TORONTO ONTARIO
CANADA M5H 1H1

ICAD

627120259314

“uercher Kantonal Bank
Bahnhofstrasse 9
Zurich 8010, Switzerland

HF

ells Fargo Bank N.A.
London branch

ICH5000700070001302132

NOSCCATT

ZKBKCHZZBOA

|EURO GB97TPNBP16567106503162

FPNBFGB2ZL

[Bank of India
ISuccursale de Paris
13,Rue Scribe, 75009 Paris France

[EURO

1310 EUR 002006

BKIDFRPP

Commerz Bank AG
Juergen-Ponto-Platz 1
60301 Frankfurt am Main

JEUROC

100875030900EUR

COBADEFF

iStandard Chartered Bank, London

1 Basinghall Avenue,

London EC2V 5DD, UK

IBAN: GB 12 SCBL 6091 0412 7040 21
Sort Code: 609104

IGBP

00 01270402101

SCBLGB2L

Wells Fargo Bank N.A.

'Yamato International Nihonbashi
Bldg., 8th Floor

2-1-3, Nihonbashi Horidomecho
Chuo-Ku, Tokyo 103-0012, Japan

JPY

09848069

PNBPJPJX

IStandard Chartered Bank, Singapore
8 Marina Boulevard
¢ 27-01 Marina Bay Financial Centre
ISingapore - 018981

SGD

0106343548

SCBLSGSG

Wells Fargo Bank N.A.
11 Penn Plaza,4th floor.
New York NY 10001
ABA 026005092

[usD

2000193008674

PNBPUS3NNYC

IStandard Chartered Bank
ICne Madison Avenue,New York
NY 10010-3603 U.S.A.

05D

3582 089235 001

SCBLUS33

IStandard Chartered Bank
Colombo, SriLanka

ACU $

15384878701USD

SCBLLKLX

&
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Thoothukudi Main
Madurai Main
Sivakasi
Virudhunagar
Nagercoil
Dindigul

Theni

Chennai-21
Vilathikulam
Muhavoor
Kamuthi
Pavoorchatram
Puthiamputhur
Rajakkamangalam
N.Pudukottai
Coimbatore Main
Pudur
Anjugramam
Tiruchirapalli
Chennai G.T
Kommadikottai
Megnanapuram
Yercaud
Kayamozhi
Tirunelveli

Thalakulam

LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE

27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52

Mullakkadu
Salem
Radhapuram
Tisayanvilai
T.Kallikulam
Vellore
Elayirampannai
Kovilpatti
Pudukottai (035)
Erode
Kumbakonam
Aruppukottai
Kalloorani
Alangulam
Bommidi
Thickanamcode
Thiruvarur
Villupuram
Palliyadi
Verkhizambi
Chinnamanur
Colachel
Agasteeswaram
Eriyodu
Sayalkudi

Siruthondanallur

&

33
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78

Prahasapuram
Chennai T.Nagar
Rayagiri
Kanjampuram
Podanur
K.Puthur
Kannankurichi
Ayyalur
Thanjavur
Sonakanvilai
Arumanai
Usilampatti
Vallalnathi
Pannaipuram
Rajapalayam
Tirupur
Odaipatti
Kallimandayam
Viralipatti
Pavithrampudur
Pottireddipatti
Vattur
Cuddalore
Govindakudi
Vengadampatti

Karur
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79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104

Palani

Pollachi

Puliampatti
Edalakudy

Madurai Simmakkal
Mayiladuthurai
Chennai Mount Road
Porulur
Padanthalumoodu
Mayiladumparai
Kappukadu
Kancheepuram
Thoothukudi South
Chengavilai
Vadamalaikurichi
Pandaravilai
Varaghur
Chockalingapuram
M.M Kovilur
Madurai Chinthamani
Dr.Nanjappa Road
Chennai T.T.K.Road
Udumalpet
Tiruchengodu
Karaikudi

Pudukottai (128)

LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE

105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130

Namakkal
Ramanathapuram
Sattur
Thiruvannamalai
Nagapattinam
Coimbatore R.S.Puram
Dharmapuri
Sankarankoil
Mettupalayam
Chennai Aminjikarai
Marthandam

Hosur

Chennai Tambaram
Palayamkottai
Thirumangalam
Sivaganga

Cumbum

Sipcot, Thoothukudi
Chennai Perambur
Chennai Thiruvanmiyur
Valliyoor
Chengalpattu
Chennai Anna Nagar
Madurai Tallakulam
Gobichettipalayam

Chennai Purasawalkam

131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156

Thuckalay
Gingee

Tiruchendur Road

Kovilpatti Pasuvanthanai Road

Vadakkankulam
Alagappapuram
Kulasekaram
Perundurai
Bodinayakanur
Paramakudi
Virudhachalam
Pillayarpuram
Aranthangi
Surandai
Bhavani
Ranipet
Tindivanam
Krishnagiri
Arakonam
Sivakasi, A.J.College
Panruti
Sholinganallur
Shenkottai
Perumanallur
Rasipuram

Sathyamangalam
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157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182

Sriperumbudur
Kunnathur
Poonamalle
Valasaravakkam
Kottivakkam
Maduravoyal
Thiruvallur
Pallavaram
Gudiyatham
Guduvancheri
Melmaruvathur
Andipatti
Palamedu
Maraimalainagar
Neelambur
Annur
Vandavasi
Madipakkam
Naravarikuppam
Porur

Pettai Rural
Thiruthangal
Kavundampalayam
Chitlapakkam
Medavakkam

Chatrapatti

LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE

183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208

Melur
Chengam
Somanur
Sankaraperi
Natham
Thuraiyur
Sathankulam
Sankari
Avinashi
Kaveripattinam
Elampillai
Panagudi
Ariyalur
Punnaiyapuram
Arcot

Authoor
Manapparai
Udangudi
Mudhukulathur
Thiruthuraipoondi
Kuthukkalvalasai
Poovanthi
Katpadi
Veppadai
Koolipatti

Bellaipalayam

(2

209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234

Othakuthirai
Therekalputhur
Kanyakulam
Oddanchatram
Kallakurichi
Kariapatti
Kulathur
Thirunagar
Asesham
Kalakkad
Chekkadu
Perambalur
Adayalampattu
Chinnalapatti
Pallipalayam
Dasanaickenpatti
Pachanampatti
Uchipuli
Checkanurani
Bikshandarkoil
Devakottai
Tharamangalam
Kilambi
Dharapuram
Harur

Sevagampatti
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235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260

Chikkandarchavadi
T.Saveriyarpuram
Chinnappampatti
Soolakkarai
Coonoor
Pattukottai

Arni
Arumuganeri
Vembar
Chidambaram
Senapathipalayam
Aralvaimozhi
Attur
Kadayanallur
Pasuvanthanai
Komarapalayam
Thiruvengadam
Pallagoundenpalayam
Madampalayam
Villapuram
Srivilliputhur
Madurantakam
Kalangani
Athipatti
Mathvarayapuram

Tirupathur

LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE

261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286

Reddiarpatti
Pappakudi
Venkateswarapuram
Vilampatti
Ambur
Iravathanallur
Thippanampatti
Edappadi
Senneerkuppam
Sulur
Kannicheriputhur
Sivathaiyapuram
Puthagaram
Kulayankarisal
Peraiyur
Vandiyur
Kuruvikulam
Vazhkkai
Poravachery
Lalgudi
Kanakkan kadu
Mettur
Somayampalayam
Servaikaranpati
87-Goundenpalayam

Sikkarayapuram

287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312

Tiruchendur
Allampatti
Ayapakkam
Rameswaram
Poonjeri
Malayandipattinam
Siruvalur
Saravanampatti
Thoothukudi Port Trust
Avadi

Thillai nagar- Trichy
Mdu SS colony
Karungal

Kulithalai
Ammapalayam
Neelankarai
Pudugummidipoondi
Kazhugumalai
Veerasigamani
Vedaranyam
Pallikaranai
Gudalur
Ayyampalayam
Ponneri
Dharmaapuri

Ariyakulam
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313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338

LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE

Sithurajapuram

Keelaeral

Kallikudi

Kangeyam

Palladam
Vickramasingapuram
Nerkundram
Vengatadampatti
Kilakarai

Tirunelveli NGO Colony
Ganapathy

Singanallur
Regunathapuram
Ambasamudram
Kelambakkam

Tenkasi

Sirkali

SME Branch, Thoothukudi
Thoothukudi - Mattakadai
Sivakasi,Palaniadavarpuram
Chennai - Adyar
Chappadi

Madambakkam

Cbe Oppanakara Street
Nalumavadi

Chennai-Mylapore

339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366

Madurai- K.K Nagar
Srivaikundam

Salem Ramakrishna Road
Chennai-Velachery
Midalam

Erichanatham
Periyanaickenpalayam
Kuniamuthur

Anthiyur

Mannargudi
Chennai_Nungambakkam
Kurinjipadi
Manamadurai
Periyakulam
Vasudevanallur
Chennai-Kodambakkam
Eruvadi

Ambattur
Cheranmahadevi
Silvarpatti

Therku Kallidaikurichi
Idumbavanam

Venkarai

Tirupattur
Adiyamankottai

Chennai- Guindy
Tirunelveli-Vannarapettai

Coimbatore Peelamedu

&
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ANDHRA PRADESH

Hyderabad
Guntur
Vijayawada
Nellore
Rajamundry
Tadepalligudam
Secunderabad
Vishakapatnam
Kakinada
Tirupathi
Kurnool
Nandyal

Rikab Gunj, Hyderabad
Gollapudi
Chebrolu
Pedanandipadu
Tanuku
Vinukonda
Jaggayyapet
Mandapeta
Miryalguda
Chirala
Chilakaluripet
Suryapet
Narasaraopet

Kavali
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30
31

O 0 9 O W B~ W N -

[ I e e i e e e e
S O 0 N O B R~ W N —= O

Sirkalahasti
Bapatla

Bhimavaram

Vijayawada-Benz Circle

Gudur

CHATTISGARH
Raipur

GUJARAT
Ahmedabad
Surat
Unjha
Vadodara
Surat, Ring Road
Sidhpur
Bardoli
Himatnagar
Vapi
Sachin
Deesa
Visnagar
Gandhinagar
Bilimora
Borsad
Rajkot
Amreli
Gondal
Anjar

Jamnagar

LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE
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HARYANA
Faridabad

Gurugram
KARNATAKA
Bangalore City

Gulburga
Bangalore Cantt.
Mangalore
Hassan

Anekal
Nelamangala
Hebbagodi
Kanakapura
Yelahanka
Yadgiri
Ramanagara
Channapatna
Chamarajanagara
Kengeri
Ranebennur
Bagalkot

Dod Ballapur
Hubli

Mysuru
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KERALA

Tirupuram
Kottugal
Thiruvananthapuram
Kollam
Ernakulam
Kozhikode
Chenganachery
Kottayam
Kalamassery
Pappanamcode
Pathanamthitta
Kayankulam
Chavakad
Kanhangad
Palakkad
Malappuram
Payyanur
Kasargod
Kodungallur
Taliparamba

Thrissur

MADHYAPRADESH

Pithampur
Dhar

ORISSA
Cuttack
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MAHARASTRA
1 Mumbai Mandvi
2 Mumbai Vashi
3 Ichalkaranji
4 Pune
5 Mumbai Andheri (E)
6 Mumbai Sion
7 Andheri(West), Mumbai
8 Sewri,Mumbai
9 Chembur,Mumbai
10 Mumbai Dharavi
11 Boisar
12 Sukapur
13 Vita
14 Madhavnagar
15 Ratnagiri
16 Jaysingpur
17 Nanded
18 Manmad
19 Chiplun
20 Khopoli
21 Vasai
22 Indore
23 Thane
24 Mumbai Mulund

LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE
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PUNJAB
Ludhiana

RAJASTHAN

Bhilwara
Bhiwadi

Jaipur

TELANGANA
Mehdipatnam

Hyderabad-Manikonda
Hyderabad-Malakpet

UNION TERRITORY
Delhi

Pondicherry
Karaikkal
Shahdara, Delhi
Karol bhagh, Delhi
Silvassa

Port Blair
UTTAR PRADHESH
Ghaziabad

UTTARAKHAND

Roorkee

WEST BENGAL
Kolkata

TOTAL NO. OF BRANCHES - 505
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PROGRESS AT A GLANCE
(Rupees in lakhs)

Year Capital Reserves Investment Deposits Advances  Profit BNO' of
ranches
1983 19 134 2064 9269 5338 49 103
1984 19 171 2815 12487 6580 58 106
1985 19 240 3091 13409 6752 90 108
1986 19 337 3915 14556 7345 136 108
1987 19 424 4765 16795 7810 157 108
1988-89 19 576 5473 17792 10820 228 115
1989-90 28 1025 6309 22604 12445 235 115
1990-91 28 1320 9309 30906 17257 305 117
1991-92 28 1826 12012 40819 20662 498 117
1992-93 28 2470 15975 54769 28838 665 123
1993-94 28 3874 20912 78897 43210 1036 133
1994-95 28 5528 29306 104404 63412 1683 139
1995-96 28 7916 34100 111687 69580 2405 139
1996-97 28 11317 49698 125830 74619 3420 142
1997-98 28 15107 66238 160445 82547 3815 142
1998-99 28 18587 88605 205595 97147 3503 144

1999-2000 28 22623 123899 266453 125504 4063 157
2000-2001 28 27643 148532 319807 158835 5040 160
2001-2002 28 33167 181571 372999 177266 5535 163
2002-2003 28 39660 214211 408458 195998 6376 165
2003-2004 28 47654 235371 440427 211399 8068 171
2004-2005 28 55856 228557 482688 262624 8235 172
2005-2006 28 65650 236194 520287 312639 10119 173
2006-2007 28 75887 231641 601988 404672 10578 183
2007-2008 28 85800 255354 767026 533132 12673 200
2008-2009 28 98824 320719 956604 657169 15021 213
2009-2010 28 114790 349919 1163930 828761 18453 216
2010-2011 28 136573 376714 1379330 1075865 25090 233
2011-2012 28 163456 489027 1711044 1377886 31346 280
2012-2013 28 202179 534827 2022381 1625599 44028 320
2013-2014 28 226931 677189 2264568 1714385 30077 370
2014-2015 28 259403 767111 2564986 1933595 37940 430

2015-2016 28 294139 886470 3036886 2257771 40215 487
2016-2017 14251 308153 1150447 3219015 2197232 31666 505
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